
I hereby certify that the following Agenda was posted at least 72 
hours prior to the time of the Board Meeting so noticed below, at 
the usual agenda posting location of the South Orange County  
Wastewater Authority [SOCWA] and at www.socwa.com. 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of The  
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors 
 

November 1, 2018 
8:30 a.m. 

 
 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM IS LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA. THE 
ROOM IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS (I.E. 
ACCESS TO AN AMPLIFIED SOUND SYSTEM, ETC.), PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER 
AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT 949-234-5421 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
SCHEDULED MEETING.  THIS AGENDA CAN BE OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE 
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY SECRETARY AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO 
THE SCHEDULED MEETING. 
 
AGENDA ATTACHMENTS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR 
A MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
IN CONNECTION WITH A MATTER SUBJECT TO DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY OFFICE, 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, 
DANA POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY OFFICE”).  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE 
RECEPTION AREA OF THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT THE SAME TIME AS THEY ARE DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS, EXCEPT THAT, IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, 
THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM. 
 
1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Members of the public may address the board regarding an item on the agenda or may 
reserve this opportunity during the meeting at the time item is discussed by the board.  
There will be a three-minute limit for public comments. 

 
4.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A.  Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting(s) 
 

Board of Directors Meeting October 4, 2018 [8:30 a.m.] ........................................ 1 
Board of Directors Meeting October 4, 2018 [10:30 a.m.] ...................................... 9 
 
ACTION The Board will be requested to approve subject Minutes. 

 
 

http://www.socwa.com/


AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
November 1, 2018 

   

 
 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

B.  Minutes of Finance Committee Meeting(s) 
 

Finance Committee Meeting June 27, 2018 .......................................................... 12 
Finance Committee Meeting August 10, 2018 ....................................................... 15 

      Finance Committee Meeting August 29, 2018 ....................................................... 18 
      Finance Committee Meeting September 19, 2018 ................................................. 14 
  

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes. 
 
C.  Financial Matters    
 
      1)  Monthly Financial Report for July 2018............................................................. 52 

  
 a)  Summary of Disbursements for July 2018 – Exhibit A................................. 53 
 b)  Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment – Exhibit B ......................... 54 

c)  Schedule of Cash and Investments – Exhibit C ........................................... 55 
 
 ACTION The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of 

Directors to ratify the Summary of Disbursements for July 
2018 totaling $3,303,774, and to receive and file the 
Financial Reports as submitted. 

 
2)  Monthly Financial Report for August 2018 ........................................................ 56 
 

a) Summary of Disbursements for August 2018 – Exhibit A ........................... 57 
b) Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment – Exhibit B ........................ 58 
c) Schedule of Cash and Investments – Exhibit C .......................................... 59 

 
ACTION  The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of 

Directors to ratify the Summary of Disbursements for August 
2018 totaling $1,721,877, and to receive and file the 
Financial Reports as submitted. 

 
3)  Monthly Financial Report for September 2018 .................................................. 60 
 

a) Summary of Disbursements for September 2018 – Exhibit A ..................... 61 
b) Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment – Exhibit B ........................ 62 
c) Schedule of Cash and Investments – Exhibit C .......................................... 63 

 
ACTION  The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of 

Directors to ratify the Summary of Disbursements for 
September 2018 totaling $2,192,852, and to receive and file 
the Financial Reports as submitted. 

 
4)  Quarterly (Q1) Financial Reports July 1, 2018 thru September 30, 2018 .......... 64 
 

a) Capital Summaries – Exhibit D ................................................................... 65 
b) Capital Projects – Graph – Exhibit D1 ........................................................ 66 
c) Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1) .............................. 67 
d) Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2) ....................... 75 
e) Administration (Exhibit E-3) ........................................................................ 76 



AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
November 1, 2018 

   

 
 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

f) Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4) ................................................... 77 
g) PARS Retiree Health Trust Fund Ending Balance June 30, 2018 (Exhibit F)..78 
h) LAIF Performance Report Quarter Ending September 30, 2018 (Exhibit G)..79 

 
ACTION The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors to:  

 
Receive and file the following as information items: 

 
 YTD Capital Schedule (Exhibit D) 
 YTD Capital Projects Graph (Exhibit D-1) 
 YTD Budget vs. Actual Expenses: 

 
 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1) 
 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2) 
 Administration (Exhibit E-3) 
 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4) 
 PARS Retiree Health Trust Fund Ending Balance June 30, 2018 (Exhibit F) 
 LAIF Performance Report Quarter Ending September 30, 2018 (Exhibit G) 

 
5)  Cash Roll Forward Fiscal Years Summary –  
     June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2018, Ending September 30, 2018................. 80 
 
ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject 

report. 
 
D.  Operational Reports 
 

 1)  Monthly Operations Report – September 2018 ........................................... 83 
 2)  Ocean Outfall Discharges ........................................................................... 95 
 3)  Quarterly Report on Key Operational Expenses ......................................... 97 
 4)  Beach/Ocean Monitoring Report ................................................................. 104 
 5)  Recycled Water Report ............................................................................... 126 
 6)  Pretreatment Report ................................................................................... 129 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the 
September 2018 Operations Report.    

 
E.  Capital Improvement Program 
  

Status Report(s) .................................................................................................... 132 
 
ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject reports. 

 
F.  Minutes of Engineering Committee Meeting(s) 

 
 Engineering Committee September 13, 2018 ........................................................ 145 
       
 ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes. 

 
 



AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
November 1, 2018 

   

 
 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

5.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 

A.  Agreement with the State of California ................................................................... 150 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the additional 
budget of up to $250,000 per year via PC12 for FY 18-19 
through FY 20-21 subject to the budget approval for each 
Fiscal Year and continuing concurrence to pay for their 
shares as agreed to by MNWD and SMWD, with MNWD 
funding 25% and SMWD funding 75% of service costs 
incurred and properly invoiced. 

 
 
 
B.  Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update ....................................................... 165 
  

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the 2018 
Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update. 

 
C.  Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations .................................. 195 

 
ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the Monthly 

Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations – State 
Audit Schedule. 

 
D.  General Manager’s Status Report .......................................................................... 199 

  
 ACTION  Information item only. 

 
E.  JPA and Project Committee Claims from Third Parties .......................................... 202 

 
ACTION Information item. 

 
6.  CLOSED SESSION 

 
Closed Session pursuant to Government code section 54957 
 
A.  Public Employee Performance Evaluation  

Title: General Manager.  
 
OTHER MATTERS 
 
     A.  Open discussion or items received too late to be agendized. 
 

Note: Determine the need to take action on the following item(s) 
introduced by the General Manager which arose subsequent to 
the agenda being posted. 
 
[Adoption of this action requires a two-thirds vote of the Board, or 
if less than two-this are present an unanimous vote.] 
 



AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
November 1, 2018 

   

 
 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

THE NEXT REGULAR SOCWA BOARD MEETING WILL HELD ON 
December 6, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 Board of Directors 

October 4, 2018 
The Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 

Board of Directors was held on October 4, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. at the Administrative Offices 
located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  The following members of the 
Board of Directors were present: 

MIKE DUNBAR, Emerald Bay Water District  Director 
SCOTT GOLDMAN, El Toro Water District  Director 
STEPHAN DOPUDJA, Trabuco Canyon Water District Vice Chairman 
MATT COLLINGS, Moulton Niguel Water District  Alternate Director 
DOUG REINHART, Irvine Ranch Water District Director 
TONI ISEMAN, City of Laguna Beach  Director 
DAN FERONS, Santa Margarita Water District Chairman 
DENNIS ERDMAN, South Coast Water District Director 
RAY MILLER, City of San Juan Capistrano  Director 
DAVE REBENSDORF, City of San Clemente Director 

Staff present: 

BETTY BURNETT  General Manager/Secretary 
ADRIANNA OCHOA  Procopio Law Firm 
BRAD NEUFELD Varner&Brandt [arrival 9:46 a.m.] 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance  
JIM BURROR  Director of Operations 
MARY CAREY Finance Controller 
JEANETTE CONTINOLA Procurement/Contracts Administrator 
KONSTANTIN SHILKOV Senior Accountant 
NAYDN KIM  Accountant 
DANITA HIRSH Assistant to the General Manager 
ANNA SUTHERLAND Accounts Payable 
JASON MANNING  Senior Engineer 
RONI YOUNG  Associate Engineer 
TERI NOSON  Clerk of the Board/Assistant Secretary 

Also present: 

DONALD FROELICH Moulton Niguel Water District  
FRED ADJARIAN El Toro Water District 
ROGER BUTOW Clean Water Now 
RICK SHINTAKU South Coast Water District 
DAVID SHISSLER City of Laguna Beach 
MICHAEL PEREA Trabuco Canyon Water District 
JOHN PIETIG  City of Laguna Beach [arrival 9:00 a.m.] 
JEREMY JUNGREIS  Rutan & Tucker Law Firm [arrival 9:00 a.m.] 

1. Call meeting to Order
Chairman Ferons called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. and welcomed everyone 

present.  

1



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 2 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

2. Pledge of Allegiance
Director Dunbar led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

3. Oral Comments
Chairman Ferons asked if members of the public desired to address the Board, or

desired to reserve addressing the Board during the meeting regarding any item on the
Agenda.

Mr. Butow, founder and Executive Director of Clean Water Now (CWN), reported that
CWN had been working with the Regional Board staff on their prioritization list for
Administrative Civil Liability (ACL) actions.  Mr. Butow stated that CWN had attended
several meetings with SOCWA and MNWD staff discussing the estimated overflow at RTP,
and that CWN would be meeting again with MNWD and SOCWA staff to settle the matter to
preclude an ACL action.

Mr. Butow stated that CWN is considering filing a Notice of Intent, which would entail
naming the Regional Board for failure to enforce the RTP spill.  Mr. Butow believes there is
potential to settle the matter locally and the Reginal Board staff was very supportive on his
interest in the spill.
ACTION TAKEN
No action required.

4. Consent Calendar
Chairman Ferons referenced the items under the Consent Calendar and asked if there

were any questions or comments.
Ms. Carey pulled item 4.C. 1) Monthly Financials Report for June 2018, and Director

Goldman pulled item 4.A. Board of Directors Meeting September 6, 2018.

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Miller and seconded by Director Erdman to approve the
remaining items under the Consent Calendar.

Motion carried:  Aye 10; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Reinhart Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 
Director Rebensdorf  Aye 

4. Minutes of Board of Directors Meetings(s)
A. Board of Directors Meeting September 6, 2018

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Goldman and seconded by Director Dunbar to approve the
Board of Directors minutes for September 6, 2018 with the correction of 2017 to 2018 in
the heading of the Minutes.

2



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 3 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

Motion carried:  Aye 10; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Reinhart Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 
Director Rebensdorf  Aye 

4.C.  Financial Matters
1) Monthly Financials Report for June 2018

Ms. Carey referenced the provided handout and noted the updated changes to the
Budget vs. Actual and Capital Spending.  The changes agreed with the preliminary FY
2017-18 Use Audit that was distributed at the Finance Officer’s meeting on October 3,
2018.  An open discussion ensued.  Director Erdman requested that the item be
reviewed by the Finance Committee prior to Board action.

ACTION TAKEN
There being no objection, the Chairman tabled this item for Finance Committee review,
and then resubmit the Monthly Financials Report for June 2018 to the Board for action
at the November Board meeting.

5. Engineering Matters
A. Award Contract – CTP Tertiary System Upgrade Project [PC15]

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Erdman and seconded by Director Iseman to approve the
award of construction contract to S.S. Mechanical at a price not to exceed $883,211.

Motion carried:  Aye 3; Nay 0; Abstain 1; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Collings Abstain 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 

6. General Manager’s Reports
A. Final 2016-17 Use Audit

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Erdman and seconded by Director Miller to approve the
Use Audit and collection from and payments to SOCWA member agencies consistent
with the results of the FY 2016-17 Use Audit as submitted.

Motion carried:  Aye 10; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Aye 

3



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 4 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

Director Reinhart Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 
Director Rebensdorf Aye 

B. Final 2016-17 Use Audit Reconciliation to Finance Statements Audit
ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Erdman and seconded by Director Miller to receive and file
the SOCWA Financial Reconciliation for the Year Ended June 30, 2017.

Motion carried:  Aye 10; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Reinhart Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 
Director Rebensdorf  Aye 

C. Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Distribution by Member Agencies Results and
Recommendation
ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Erdman and seconded by Director Dunbar to approve
member agency Distribution Percentages, Timing and Future Application (as detailed in
staff report).

Director Collings noted that MNWD would be abstaining due to concerns about the 
application of the distribution percentages in the future; however, MNWD did not have an 
alternative recommendation at this time, and would therefore abstain from the vote. 

Motion carried:  Aye 9; Nay 0; Abstain 1; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Abstain 
Director Reinhart Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 
Director Rebensdorf  Aye 

4



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 5 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

D. Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations
ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Erdman and seconded by Director Miller to receive and file
the Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations – State Audit Response
Schedule.

Motion carried:  Aye 10; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Reinhart Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 
Director Rebensdorf  Aye 

E. Resolution No. 2018-13 – Basin Plan Amendment [PC12]
Mr. Butow reported that CWN was the only NGO from South County to attend all the

salt and nutrient plan meetings, and CWN was also the only South County NGO to
provide any comments to support the position presented to the Regional Board.

Chairman Ferons indicated SMWD approved a companion resolution at their
October 3, 2018, Board meeting.  Chairman Ferons also suggested that the SMWD and
MNWD signature lines be removed from the Resolution, noting that the Resolution
stated “SOCWA” and did not include SMWD and MNWD.

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Collings and seconded by Director Erdman to approve
Resolution No. 2018-13 – Basin Plan Amendment sans the SMWD and MNWD
signature lines.

Motion carried:  Aye 7; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Goldman Aye 
Vice Chairman Dopudja Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Reinhart Aye 
moChairman Ferons  Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 

There was further consensus of the Board for: 
• As needed, costs to be assigned through PC 12 to SMWD and

MNWD (as noted in FY 2018-19 Budget Assumptions Item 2:
expenses incurred for single agency or group of agencies that is

5



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 6 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

less than a full PC may be billed to and paid for by the incurring 
agency or agencies). 

• SMWD and MNWD to be requested to authorize the funding
commitment.

F. Contract Extension – Chlor-Alkai Products [PC 2, 15 & 17]
ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Dunbar and seconded by Director Erdman to award an up
to one (1) year contract extension to Olin Corporation DBA Olin Chlor-Alkali Products for
Chlor-Alkali Products for (5.25%-12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite, and 30%-50% Sodium
Hydroxide) with the prices as indicated including applicable additional charges.

Motion carried:  Aye 7; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 

G. Change Order – Treatment Cost Allocation Analysis [PC 2, 15 & 17]
ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Director Collings and seconded by Director Dunbar to approve the
Carollo Engineering Contract Change Order for the Treatment Cost Allocation Analysis
in the amount of $28,374 for a total not to exceed amount of $68,268.

Motion carried:  Aye 7; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
Director Dunbar Aye 
Director Goldman Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Chairman Ferons Aye 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Miller  Aye 

H. General Manager’s Status Report
ACTION TAKEN
Information item only, no action required.

The Chairman adjourned the Board Meeting for a five (5) minute recess at 9:40 a.m. 

The Board meeting reconvened at 9:46 a.m. and went into Closed Session at 9:46 a.m. 

7. Closed Session
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation

6



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 7 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision 
(d) of Section 54956.9: 1 potential case

B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation

Noson v. SOCWA et al., Case No. 30-2018-01016336-CU-OE-CJC
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1)

The Board meeting reconvened at 10:30 a.m.

8. Report Out of Closed Session
There was no reportable action out of Closed Session.

Other Matters 
The Chairman asked if there were questions or comments from the Board. 
There were none. 

Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chairman Ferons adjourned the meeting at 10:32 a.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Board of Directors of 
October 4, 2018, and approved by the Board of Directors of the South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority. 

__________________________________________________________ 
Betty C. Burnett, General Manager / Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

7



Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting Page 8 of 8 
October 4, 2018 

SUMMARY OF BOARD ACTIONS 
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

October 4, 2018

 DESCRIPTION   MOTION MADE BY        ACTION 

4. Consent Calendar    Miller  Approved 

4.A. Minutes of Board of
Directors Meeting September
6, 2018

Erdman Approved 

4.C. Financial Matters
1) Monthly Financials for
June 2018

Direction of the Board Tabled 

5.A. Award of Contract –
CTP Tertiary System
Upgrade Project [PC15]

Erdman Approved 

6.A. Final 2016-17 Use Audit Erdman Approved 

6.B. Final 2016-17 Use Audit
Reconciliation for the Year
Ended June 30, 2017

Erdman Receive and File 

6.C. Unfunded Pension
Liability (UAL) Distribution by
Member Agencies Results
and Recommendation

Erdman Approved 

6.D. Monthly Progress Report
on State Audit
Recommendations

Erdman Receive and File 

6.E. Resolution No. 2018-13
Basin Plan Amendment
[PC12]

Collings Approved 

6.F. Contract Extension –
Chlor-Alkai Products
[PC 2/15/17]

Dunbar Approved 

6.G. Change Order –
Treatment Cost Allocation
Analysis [PC 2/15/17]

Collings Approved 

8



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 Board of Directors 

October 4, 2018 
The Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 

Board of Directors was held on October 4, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. at the Administrative Offices 
located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  The following members of the 
Board of Directors were present: 

MIKE DUNBAR, Emerald Bay Water District  Director 
SCOTT GOLDMAN, El Toro Water District  Director 
STEPHAN DOPUDJA, Trabuco Canyon Water District Vice Chairman 
MATT COLLINGS, Moulton Niguel Water District  Director 
DOUG REINHART, Irvine Ranch Water District Director 
DAN FERONS, Santa Margarita Water District Chairman 
DENNIS ERDMAN, South Coast Water District Director 
RAY MILLER, City of San Juan Capistrano  Director 
DAVE REBENSDORF, City of San Clemente Director 

Absent: 
TONI ISEMAN, City of Laguna Beach Director 

Staff present: 
BETTY BURNETT  General Manager/Secretary 
ADRIANA OCHOA  Procopio Law Firm 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance  
JIM BURROR  Director of Operations 
MARY CAREY Finance Controller 
JEANETTE CONTINOLA Procurement/Contracts Manager 
KONSTANTIN SHILKOV Senior Accountant 
NAYDN KIM  Accountant 
DANITA HIRSH Assistant to the General Manager 
ANNA SUTHERLAND Accounts Payable 
JASON MANNING  Senior Engineer 
RONI YOUNG  Associate Engineer 
TERI NOSON  Clerk of the Board/Assistant Secretary 

Also present: 
DONALD FROELICH Moulton Niguel Water District  
FRED ADJARIAN El Toro Water District  
ROGER BUTOW Clean Water Now 
RICK SHINTAKU South Coast Water District 
DAVID SHISSLER City of Laguna Beach 
MICHAEL PEREA Trabuco Canyon Water District 
JOHN PIETIG  City of Laguna Beach 
JEREMY JUNGREIS Runtan & Tucker 

9



Minutes – Special Board of Directors Page 2 of 3 
October 4, 2018 

1. Call Meeting to Order
Chairman Ferons called the meeting to order at 10:33 a.m. and welcomed everyone 

present.  

2. Public Comments
ACTION TAKEN
No public comments received.

3. Open Session
A. Update on Project Committee No. 15 Critical Infrastructure Repairs

Director Reinhart reported he had requested the meeting to discuss the
advisement provided in Open Session by legal counsel at the September 6th Board
meeting regarding SOCWA’s liability to Project Committee litigation. Director Reinhart
stated that the request for the meeting was not Project Committee No. 15 (PC15)
specific.

Director Reinhart expressed concern of exposure to Project Committee litigation
and the possible implications for SOCWA and IRWD.  Director Reinhart stated that
SOCWA was an entity unto itself, all member agencies were included in SOCWA, and
Project Committees did not own SOCWA.  Therefore, all member agencies were
responsible for SOCWA.

Director Reinhart reported that a meeting was held with legal counsel from
IRWD, ETWD and TCWD to discuss SOCWA liability and Project Committee litigation.
The challenge was that the agreements were written in a format for a claim amongst all
SOCWA member agencies, and written in a way that SOCWA would function as a unit.

Director Reinhart stated that the SOCWA Board needed clarity on how
agreement(s) and indemnification are applied to third party liability claims, and to those
agencies that are not a party to Project Committee litigation. It was important for IRWD
to understand SOCWA’s liability regarding actions or inaction of a legal matter that they
[IRWD] are not privy to information because the end result of third party litigation
regarding any of SOCWA facilities would have to be approved by all the Board
members.

Director Goldman expressed his concern of ETWD’s much greater liability
exposure as a member of the JPA, and requested a discussion regarding the new issue
of SOCWA liability for any Project Committee in the organization.

Ms. Ochoa provided an update on legal staff’s outreach effort to member agency
legal counsel to schedule a meeting to specifically discuss Section 11.3 of the JPA,
which is the section that discusses liability such as third party claims.  Other matters
considered for member agency legal counsel input could include what other issues could
be resolved that are Project Committee specific with respect to amending the JPA, any
issues that can be resolved that can be better addressed in the Project Committee
agreement(s), and perhaps addressing the Unfunded Pension Liability issue of AB1912.

Ms. Ochoa reported that legal counsel could provide a formal presentation to the
Board of Directors, but the current goal was to schedule a meeting with member agency
general counsels to discuss a solution through an amendment to the JPA.

Director Dopudja requested that legal counsel provide to the Board of Directors
what triggered legal counsel to take the position it had taken, the reason legal counsel
had taken that position, the reason legal counsel believed in that position; and,
specifically present that information to the Board in writing.  Director Dopudja stated that

10



Minutes – Special Board of Directors Page 3 of 3 
October 4, 2018 

this needed to be resolved immediately so that the Board had clarity amongst all the 
members. 

Director Goldman concurred and stated ETWD wanted a resolution sooner rather 
than later. 

Director Reinhart inquired how the SOCWA Board could stay apprised of the 
status of a Project Committee litigation matter without violating legal issues.   

Ms. Ochoa stated the way to stay informed was to ask for an update. Board 
members are entitled to the information. If a Board member had a specific interest in a 
Project Committee litigation matter, a Closed Session would be held to address that 
specific interest.  If a Board member wanted to remain apprised of the status of a 
litigation matter, it would be appropriate for the Board member to request staff to add 
that Agenda Item.  If a Board member wanted a standing Closed Session on the Agenda 
at every Board meeting for an update on a litigation matter, that Board member can 
make that request.  And if a majority of the Board agreed to that request, the item would 
be included on the Agenda of every Board meeting.  Regarding a current ongoing 
litigation, there would probably be a Closed Session discussion and whether or not a 
Board member can participate depends on their interest in the lawsuit.  An open 
discussion ensued. 

Ms. Burnett requested that Board members communicate with their member 
agency legal counsel to respond to SOCWA’s legal counsel staff request to schedule a 
meeting to discuss amendment of the JPA.  The goal was to keep the meetings to a 
reasonable number. 

ACTION TAKEN 
There being no objection, the Chairman directed legal counsel to prepare a formal 
written Legal Opinion regarding liability for third party lawsuits specific to member 
agencies not a party to Project Committee litigation, provide the reason(s) legal counsel 
has taken the position that SOCWA has a potential for liability exposure to Project 
Committee litigation, and provide clarity to Section 11.3 of the SOCWA Joint Powers 
Agreement to be submitted to the Board for an Open Session discussion at the 
November 1, 2018, Board of Directors meeting.  

4. Closed Session

There being no objection from the Board, Chairman Ferons announced that the Closed 
Session would not be held. 

Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chairman Ferons adjourned the meeting at 10:59 a.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Board of Directors on 
October 4, 2018, and approved by the Board of Directors of the South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority. 

__________________________________________________________ 
Betty C. Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY  

11



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
Finance Committee 

June 27, 2018 

The Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) Finance 
Committee Meeting was held on June 27, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. at their Administrative Offices located 
at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California. The following members of the Finance 
Committee were present: 

DENNIS ERDMAN South Coast Water District 
DAN FERONS Santa Margarita Water District 
RAY MILLER City of San Juan Capistrano 
TONI ISEMAN City of Laguna Beach  
FRED ADJARIAN El Toro Water District 
MATT COLLINGS Moulton Niguel Water District (arrived at 8:15 a.m.) 

Staff Present: 
BETTY BURNETT General Manager 
DANITA HIRSH Executive Assistant 
MARY CAREY  Finance Controller 
JIM BURROR Director of Operations 
BRIAN PECK Director of Engineering 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance 
DINA ASH HR Administrator 
ANNA SUTHERLAND Accounts Payable 
KONSTANTIN SHILKOV Sr. Accountant  
NADYN KIM Accountant 

Also Present: 
BRAD NEUFELD Varner & Brandt 
MARILYN JONES Nyhart 
MARY BETH REDDING Bartel Associates, LLC 
WILL KANE Nyhart 
MATTHEW PEREA South Coast Water District 
NEELY SHAHBAKHTI El Toro Water District 
TREVOR AGRELIUS Moulton Niguel Water District 
DREW ATWATER Moulton Niguel Water District 

1. Call Meeting to Order

Chairperson Erdman called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Fred Adjarian

3. Public Comments

Ms. Burnett stated that Director Collings would be arriving late.  She also stated that the
Actuaries from Nyhart and Bartel Associates were present and would be discussing the work
they’ve performed with staff regarding the data that is available for understanding the Unfunded
Liability Distribution methodology.  Ms. Burnett then stated that she would prefer the agenda
item be discussed when Director Collings is present.
Chairperson Erdman stated, Director Iseman would be exiting the meeting at 10:00 a.m. and
therefore would adjust the agenda accordingly.

12



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
June 27, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

4. Approval of Minutes

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Ferons and seconded by Director Miller to approve the Finance 
Committee Minutes of August 29, 2017, June 14, 2017 and June 12, 2017 as submitted. 

Motion carried: Aye 5, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 1 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Absent 
Director Adjarian Aye 
Director Miller Aye 

5. Financial Matters – Month of April 2018 Financials

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Adjarian and seconded by Director Iseman to recommend to the 
Board of Directors: 

1) Ratify the Summary of Disbursements for the period from April 1, 2018 through April
30, 2018, totaling $2,714,726 (attached as Exhibit A).

2) Receive and file the following as information items:

 Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)
 Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)
 Capital Schedule (Exhibit D)
 Capital Projects Graph (Exhibit D-1)
 Budget vs. Actual Expenses:

a. Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
b. Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
c. Administration (Exhibit E-3)
d. Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)

Motion carried: Aye 5, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 1 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Absent 
Director Adjarian Aye 
Director Miller Aye 

6. UAL Distribution by Member Agency – Method Update

Ms. Burnett gave a brief introduction on the slides that would be presented.  She introduced 
consultant Actuaries Marilyn Jones of Nyhart and Mary Beth Redding of Bartel Associates.  An 
open discussion ensued. 
There was consensus amongst the Committee that Ms. Burnett would provide the Committee 
with SOCWA’s list of historical Use Audits, and the member agencies would provide back to 
SOCWA staff any data of their own should they find data that is relevant to the UAL 
Methodology.  Additionally, the Committee directed staff to review and evaluate historical data 
as far back as available. 

13



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
June 27, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

7. CalPERS Special Compensation Reimbursements

Ms. Burnett provided the Committee with an overview of the previous discussions with PERS 
following the PERS audit.  She stated, after much discussion, PERS was not allowing merit pay 
to be credited as PERsable.  The retired employees who had already paid into the plan would 
be receiving a refund of the employee payments, but they would also be required to reimburse 
PERS if reported merit pay inflated their final salary.  An open discussion ensued. 

Chairman Erdman recommended creating an Adhoc Committee of Directors that would meet 
with staff and the employees who were affected.  He asked Directors Adjarian and Miller if they 
would be willing to take on the request.  Both Directors responded yes.   

Director Iseman exited the meeting at 10:08 a.m. 

8. Annual Review of SOCWA Investment Policy and Public Funds

Ms. Burnett stated that the agenda item was brought forth due to SOCWA having an annual 
policy review requirement and that to date there were no changes. An open discussion ensued. 

Counsel, Mr. Neufeld, noted on page 80 of the agenda materials, a typo correction to section 4 
to remove the inadvertent “+” in the first sentence.  He also noted on page 81, 4th line from the 
top, a change to either use the word “money” or “monies”.  Either would suffice. Staff duly noted 
the corrections. 

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Adjarian and seconded by Director Ferons to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to receive and file the SOCWA Investment Policy for Public Funds with the 
corrections as noted. 

Motion carried: Aye 5, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 1 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Absent 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 
Director Miller Aye 

9. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairman Erdman adjourned the meeting at 10:25 a.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Finance Committee of 
June 27, 2018 as approved by the Finance Committee.  

_______________________________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

14



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
Finance Committee 

August 10, 2018 

The Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) Finance 
Committee Meeting was held on August 10, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. at their Administrative Offices 
located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California. The following members of the Finance 
Committee were present: 

DENNIS ERDMAN South Coast Water District 
ROBB GRANTHAM Santa Margarita Water District 
RAY MILLER City of San Juan Capistrano 
TONI ISEMAN City of Laguna Beach  
FRED ADJARIAN El Toro Water District 
MATT COLLINGS Moulton Niguel Water District 

Staff Present: 
BETTY BURNETT General Manager 
DANITA HIRSH Executive Assistant 
MARY CAREY  Finance Controller 
JIM BURROR Director of Operations 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance 
DINA ASH HR Administrator 
ANNA SUTHERLAND Accounts Payable 
KONSTANTIN SHILKOV Sr. Accountant  
NADYN KIM Accountant 

Also Present: 
MARY BETH REDDING Bartel Associates, LLC 
WILL KANE Nyhart 
MATTHEW PEREA South Coast Water District 
NEELY SHAHBAKHTI El Toro Water District 
TREVOR AGRELIUS Moulton Niguel Water District 
DREW ATWATER Moulton Niguel Water District 

1. Call Meeting to Order

Chairperson Erdman called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Toni Iseman

3. Public Comments

None

4. Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Distribution by Member Agency – Results and
Recommendation
Methodology presentation given by Mary Beth Redding of Bartel Associates and Will Kane of
Nyhart.  An open discussion ensued.

15



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
August 10, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

ACTION TAKEN 
There was consensus amongst the Committee Members to take the information provided by the 
Actuaries back to their organizations to share with their internal Finance staff and come prepared 
to make a recommendation to the Board of Directors at the next Finance Committee meeting. 

5. Step-by-Step Accounting Procedures

Ms. Carey provided the Committee Members with an overview of the finance accounting
procedures necessary for day-to-day operations.

ACTION TAKEN 
There was consensus amongst the Committee Members to make the procedures available to 
SOCWA Member Agency’s Finance Officers for review. Staff will also be submitting the 
procedures to the State Auditor’s office. 

6. Financial Matters – Month of May 2018 Financials

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Iseman and seconded by Director Adjarian to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to Ratify the Summary of Disbursements for the period from May 1, 2018 
through May 31, 2018, totaling $1,728,250 (attached as Exhibit A). 

Motion carried: Aye 6, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 0 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 

Motion was made by Director Miller and seconded by Director Adjarian to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to receive and file the following as information items: 

 Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)
 Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)
 Capital Schedule (Exhibit D)
 Capital Projects Graph (Exhibit D-1)
 Budget vs. Actual Expenses:

a. Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
b. Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
c. Administration (Exhibit E-3)
d. Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)

Motion carried: Aye 6, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 0 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 
Director Miller Aye 

16



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
August 10, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

7. Financial Matters – Month of June 2018 Financials (Preliminary Budget vs. Actual
expenses and Capital expenditures)

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Iseman and seconded by Director Adjarian to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to Ratify the Summary of Disbursements for the period from June 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2018, totaling $2,432,134 (Exhibit A). 

Motion carried: Aye 6, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 0 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 
Director Miller Aye 

Motion was made by Director Miller and seconded by Director Adjarian to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to receive and file the following as information items: 

 Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)
 Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)
 Capital Schedule (Exhibit D)
 Capital Projects Graph (Exhibit D-1)
 Budget vs. Actual Expenses:

a. Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
b. Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
c. Administration (Exhibit E-3)
d. Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)

Motion carried: Aye 6, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 0 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Aye 
Director Ferons Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 
Director Miller Aye 

8. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairman Erdman adjourned the meeting at 11:50 a.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Finance Committee of 
August 10, 2018 as approved by the Finance Committee. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

17



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
Finance Committee 

August 29, 2018 

The Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) Finance 
Committee Meeting was held on August 29, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. at their Administrative Offices 
located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California. The following members of the Finance 
Committee were present: 

DENNIS ERDMAN South Coast Water District 
ROBB GRANTHAM Santa Margarita Water District 
RAY MILLER City of San Juan Capistrano 
FRED ADJARIAN El Toro Water District 

Absent: 
TONI ISEMAN City of Laguna Beach  
MATT COLLINGS Moulton Niguel Water District 

Staff Present: 
BETTY BURNETT General Manager 
DANITA HIRSH Executive Assistant 
MARY CAREY  Finance Controller 
JIM BURROR Director of Operations 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance 
DINA ASH HR Administrator 
ANNA SUTHERLAND Accounts Payable 
KONSTANTIN SHILKOV Sr. Accountant  
NADYN KIM Accountant 

Also Present: 
MARY BETH REDDING Bartel Associates LLC 
WILL KANE Nyhart 
DENNIS CAFFERTY El Toro Water District 
NEELY SHAHBAKTI El Toro Water District 
MATTHEW PEREA South Coast Water District 

1. Call Meeting to Order

Chairperson Erdman called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Fred Adjarian

3. Public Comments

None

Chairperson Erdman stated he would like to address the meeting calendar for any upcoming
meetings in September and October. An open discussion ensued.

At the direction of the Chairperson, staff was directed to poll Board members for an alternate
date to hold the Board of Directors meeting in October should there be a conflict with the regular
meeting date of October 4, 2018 and WEFTEC Conference dates.

18



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
August 29, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

Ms. Burnett asked if the Chairperson would like to discuss the schedule for work to be done by 
the Finance Committee. An open discussion ensued. 

Ms. Burnett reviewed a memo with the projected dates previously shared with the Board and 
the Committee.  Ms. Burnett noted that there would be updates as necessary to meet critical 
deadlines.  She stated due to conflicts with the projected September 6th meeting date, the 
Finance Committee would be meeting on September 19th.   

4. Approval of Minutes

Chairperson Erdman noted a correction on page 2 of the May 24 Minutes, under the “Action
Taken” under General Fund for the spelling of the word “Budget”.

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Adjarian and seconded by Director Grantham to approve the 
Finance Committee Minutes of May 24, 2018, May 16, 2018 and March 30, 2018 with the 
correction as noted.  

Motion carried: Aye 4, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 2 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Absent 
Director Miller Aye 
Director Grantham Aye 
Director Collings Absent 
Director Adjarian Aye 

5. Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Distribution by Member Agency – Results and
Recommendation

Ms. Carey provided the Committee with an update on the meeting with SOCWA’s Finance
Managers and the additional work performed by the Actuaries.  An open discussion ensued.

Chairperson Erdman noted for the record, Moulton Niguel Water District was absent and that
they wanted to take more time to research their internal data.  He continued to state, if Moulton
had any other changes or issues they would like addressed, the Committee would be open to
hear them.

Ms. Burnett noted that the item would also be added to the agenda for the next Finance
Committee meeting as a place holder should Moulton Niguel Water District desire to present
further information.

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Adjarian and seconded by Director Grantham to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to approve Member Agency Distribution percentages to use for allocating the 
Authority’s three Long Term Liabilities for FY 2015-16, FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18: a) Pension, 
b) Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits; and c) Compensated Absences as presented
(attached).

Motion carried: Aye 4, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 2 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Absent 
Director Miller Aye 
Director Grantham Aye 
Director Collings Absent 
Director Adjarian Aye 

19



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
August 29, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

6. Update on USE-AUDIT Preparation, FY2016-17, and FY2017-18

Ms. Baylor provided the Committee with an overview on the FY 2017-18 Flows and Solids
Loading percentages for distribution amongst member agencies (attached). An open
discussion ensued.  This was an information item; no action was required.

7. Distribution of FY2017-18 Legal Expenditures

Ms. Burnett gave an overview on processing legal expenditures.  She stated that a more
detailed summary would be provided at the September 19th Finance Committee.  This was an
information item; no action was required.

8. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairman Erdman adjourned the meeting at 2:25 p.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Finance Committee of 
August 29, 2018 as approved by the Finance Committee. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
Finance Committee 
September 19, 2018 

The Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) Finance 
Committee Meeting was held on September 19, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. at their Administrative Offices 
located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California. The following members of the Finance 
Committee were present: 

DENNIS ERDMAN South Coast Water District 
ROBB GRANTHAM Santa Margarita Water District 
RAY MILLER City of San Juan Capistrano 
FRED ADJARIAN El Toro Water District 
MATT COLLINGS Moulton Niguel Water District 

Absent: 
TONI ISEMAN City of Laguna Beach 
BETTY BURNETT General Manager 

Staff Present: 
DANITA HIRSH Administrative Assistant 
MARY CAREY  Finance Controller 
JIM BURROR Director of Operations 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance 
DINA ASH HR Administrator 
ANNA SUTHERLAND Accounts Payable 
KONSTANTIN SHILKOV Sr. Accountant  
NADYN KIM Accountant 

Also Present: 
MARY BETH REDDING Bartel Associates, LLC 
WILL KANE Nyhart 
DENNIS CAFFERTY El Toro Water District 
NEELY SHAHBAKTI El Toro Water District 
MATTHEW PEREA South Coast Water District 

1. Call Meeting to Order

Chairperson Erdman called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Ray Miller

3. Public Comments

None

49



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

4. Approval of Minutes

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Adjarian and seconded by Director Miller to approve the Finance 
Committee Minutes of December 6, 2017 as submitted. 

Motion carried: Aye 5, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 1 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Absent 
Director Miller Aye 
Director Grantham Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 

5. Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Distribution by Member Agency – Results and
Recommendation

Director Collings thanked the Committee for allowing him time to present the methodology to
Moulton’s Board of Directors.  He stated however, that Moulton is not prepared to support the
methodology due to concerns of overall liabilities and concerns with how to manage the future
growth of labor costs and that Moulton does not have an alternate methodology to present.
An open discussion ensued.

There was consensus amongst the Committee Members, with the exception of Director Collings 
comments, to forward the agenda item on to the Board of Directors for full discussion and 
consideration for approval.   

6. FY2016-17 Use Audit (Final)

Ms. Carey provided the Committee with an update on the expenditures for the FY 2016-17
Use Audit.  An open discussion ensued.

The Committee directed staff to provide reconciliation of the cash summary for CIP Projects 
project-by-project to be included in the FY17-18 Use Audit going forward.  Staff was also directed 
to redistribute the reconciliation for the FY2016-17 that will tie the Financial Statements Audit to 
the Use Audit for the member agencies.   

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Grantham and seconded by Director Adjarian to recommend to the 
Board of Directors to approve the FY2016-17 Use Audit and collection from and payments to 
SOCWA member agencies consistent with the results of the FY 2016-17 Use Audit contingent on 
the additional items as requested. 

Motion carried: Aye 5, Nay 0, Abstained 0, Absent 1 
Director Erdman Aye 
Director Iseman Absent 
Director Miller Aye 
Director Grantham Aye 
Director Collings Aye 
Director Adjarian Aye 

50



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

7. FY2017-18 Use Audit (Preliminary)

Ms. Carey noted that the FY2017-18 Use Audit had been distributed to SOCWA’s Member
Agency’s Finance Officers electronically for review and feedback.  She also stated, the
FY2017-18 Use Audit was preliminary pending the completion of the Annual Financial
Statements Audit.  An open discussion ensued.

The Committee directed staff to schedule a meeting with SOCWA’s Member Agency’s Finance 
Officers in the next 2 weeks to review the materials that were distributed.  

This was an Information Item; no action was required. 

8. FY 2017-18 Cash Roll Forward (Preliminary)

Ms. Carey provided a presentation to the Committee on the FY2017-18 Cash Roll Forward
stating the numbers are preliminary pending completion of the Financial Statements Audit.
Additionally, the information provided is detailed by Project Committee, project level and
Member Agency level and has been forwarded to SOCWA’s Finance Officers for review.  An
open discussion ensued.

The Committee directed staff to also include discussion of the Preliminary FY 2017-18 Cash Roll 
Forward at the Finance Officers meeting when scheduled in the next 2 weeks.  

9. Distribution of FY2017-18 Legal Expenditures

The Committee directed staff to report back on this item and revise the information to include the 
list of law firms providing services for the areas identified. 

10. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairman Erdman adjourned the meeting at 2:25 p.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Finance Committee of 
September 19, 2018 as approved by the Finance Committee. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

51



Agenda Item     
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Mary Carey, Finance Controller 

SUBJECT:      Financial Matters – Month of July 2018 

Summary/Discussion 

The following selected financial reports are routinely provided monthly to the Board of Directors.  
This information is presented, including the Monthly Financial Report, to the Finance Committee 
and could include a request for the Board to approve recommendations of the Finance 
Committee.  The reports included are as follows: 

a) Summary of Disbursements

 July 2018 (Exhibit A)

b) Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

c) Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)

Fiscal impact 
During the month of July 2018, disbursements totaled $3,303,774 and are summarized in the 
attached Exhibit A.  The attached Exhibits B and C are informational reports only. 

Recommendation 

The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors to: 

1) Ratify the Summary of Disbursements for the period from July 1, 2018 through July 31,
2018 (attached as Exhibit A).

2) Receive and file the following as information items:

 Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

 Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)

52



53



54



55



Agenda Item     
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Mary Carey, Finance Controller 

SUBJECT:      Financial Matters – Month of August 2018 

Summary/Discussion 

The following selected financial reports are routinely provided monthly to the Board of Directors.  
This information is presented, including the Monthly Financial Report, to the Finance Committee 
and could include a request for the Board to approve recommendations of the Finance 
Committee.  The reports included are as follows: 

a) Summary of Disbursements

 August 2018 (Exhibit A)

b) Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

c) Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)

Fiscal impact 
During the month of August 2018, disbursements totaled $1,721,877 and are summarized in the 
attached Exhibit A.  The attached Exhibits B and C are informational reports only. 

Recommendation 

The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors to: 

1) Ratify the Summary of Disbursements for the period from August 1, 2018 through August
31, 2018 (attached as Exhibit A).

2) Receive and file the following as information items:

 Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

 Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)

56



57



58



59



Agenda Item     
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Mary Carey, Finance Controller 

SUBJECT:      Financial Matters – Month of September 2018 

Summary/Discussion 

The following selected financial reports are routinely provided monthly to the Board of Directors.  
This information is presented, including the Monthly Financial Report, to the Finance Committee 
and could include a request for the Board to approve recommendations of the Finance 
Committee.  The reports included are as follows: 

a) Summary of Disbursements

 September 2018 (Exhibit A)

b) Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

c) Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)

Fiscal impact 
During the month of September 2018, disbursements totaled $2,192,852 and are summarized in 
the attached Exhibit A.  The attached Exhibits B and C are informational reports only. 

Recommendation 

The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors to: 

1) Ratify the Summary of Disbursements for the period from September 1, 2018 through
September 30, 2018 (attached as Exhibit A).

2) Receive and file the following as information items:

 Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B)

 Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C)

60



61



62



63



Agenda Item     
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Mary Carey, Finance Controller 

SUBJECT:      Quarterly (Q1) Financial Reports July 1, 2018 thru September 30, 2018 

Summary/Discussion 

The following selected financial reports are routinely provided monthly to the Board of Directors. 

This information below is presented for the first quarter of the fiscal year 2018-19. The Finance 
Committee will be meeting on October 31, 2018 to consider a recommendation of approval to the 
Board for the reports listed below.  The reports included are as follows: 

• YTD Capital Schedule (Exhibit D)
 YTD Capital Projects – Graph (Exhibit D-1)

• YTD Budget vs. Actual Expenses:
 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
 Administration (Exhibit E-3)
 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)
 PARS Retiree Health Trust Fund Ending Balance June 30, 2018 (Exhibit F)
 LAIF Performance Report Quarter Ending September 30, 2018 (Exhibit G)

Fiscal impact 

The attached Exhibits D through G are informational reports only. 

Recommendation 

The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors to: 

1) Receive and file the following as information items:

 YTD Capital Schedule (Exhibit D)
 YTD Capital Projects Graph (Exhibit D-1)
 YTD Budget vs. Actual Expenses:

 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)
 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2)
 Administration (Exhibit E-3)
 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4)
 PARS Retiree Health Trust Fund Ending Balance June 30, 2018 (Exhibit F)
 LAIF Performance Report Quarter Ending September 30, 2018 (Exhibit G)

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



Agenda Item
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Jim Burror, Director of Operations 

SUBJECT:      September 2018 Operations Report 

Summary/Discussion 

The following selected operational reports are provided monthly to the Board of Directors. The 
operational reports included are as follows: 

1) Monthly Operational Report

A nine (9) page overview and comparison of owner use of facilities, including influent
and recycled water production. The pages include ongoing calculation used by SOCWA
for billing the agencies. Other items include important statistics for regulatory
compliance, visits by the public to the treatment works, and other vendor interactions.
The information is broken down by facility and by member agency.

2) SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency

This data shows how much water is being discharged to the ocean each month and for
the last 12 months. This data is presented for the agencies planning reuse projects to
better understand the potential to expand water reuse in their service area.

3) Quarterly Report on Key Operational Expenses

A seven (7) page overview of monthly expenses for key operational expenses with
estimated projections for the Fiscal Year. The key parameters that are being tracked are
Electricity, Odor Control, Polymer, Biosolids, Maintenance expenses (not including
SOCWA staff labor), small capital purchases and safety.

4) Beach Ocean Monitoring Report

5) Recycled Water Report

6) Pretreatment Report

Fiscal impact 

No change 

Recommendation 

Receive and file the operational reports. 

83



Monthly Operational Report

84



Events CTP RTP JBL Totals

Odor 0 2(1) 0 2
Noise 0 0 0 0
Spills 0 0 0 0
Violations 0 0 0 0
Others 0 0 0 0
(1) Both odor complaints were from the same resident that notices odors from the

secondary aeration tanks.

Key Parameters CTP RTP JBL TP1 JBL TP2 Totals

Influent (mgd) (1) 2.43 7.51 4.46 0.92 15.31
Effluent (mgd) 1.57 0.78 4.46 1.10 7.91
Peak Flow (mgd) 6.80 16.80 9.86 4.51 37.97
Influent BOD (mg/l) 260 225 251 255
Influent TSS (mg/l) 328 297 493 388
Effluent BOD (mg/l) 4.6 6.1 6.9 8.9
Effluent TSS (mg/l) 6.1 7.1 6.5 7.5
Effluent Turbidity (NTU) 2.8 2.4 3.6 4.1
(1) CTP Influent value does not include AWT backwash in this table.

Key Parameters CTP RTP JBL Totals

Average Flow (mgd) 1.40 6.72 0.00 8.12
Days of Operation (days) 29 30
Total Flow (million gallons) 42.0 201.7 243.7
Plant Irrigation (million gallons) 0.00 0.00 0.35
AWT Time Online (%) 96.6 99.0 0.300

Wastewater Unit Definitions

mgd = million gallons per day

mg/l = milligram per liter also known as parts per million

NTU = Nephelometric Turbidity Units 

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018

Plant Wastewater  Billing Characteristics

Recycled Water (AWT) Operations

Excursion, Complaint, and Violation Events

85



Biosolids Management Site CTP RTP JBL Totals
Synagro Compost (tons) 760.2 0.0 760.2
Nursery Products (tons) 200.5 420.0 620.5
Prima Deshecha (tons) 230.0 112.9 342.9
Other:______________  (tons) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Processed (tons) 1,190.7 532.9 1,723.6

Task Type CTP RTP JBL Totals
Preventative Maintenance 339 673 217 1,229
Corrective Maintenance 54 104 92 250

Visitor Types CTP RTP JBL Totals
Regulatory 0 1 0 1
Member Agency 1 2 2 5
Residents 0 0 0 0
Others 11 0 37 48
Tours #/Visitors 2 21 0 23

Grit & Screenings CTP RTP JBL Totals
Simi Valley Landfill (tons) NA 10.4 NA 10.4

Chemical/Utility CTP RTP JBL Totals
Ferric Chloride (tons) NA 17.7 NA 17.7
Utility Power Purchase (kWh) 208,337 565,581 565,581 1,339,499
Cogen Power (kWh) 26,042 432,800 458,842
Natural Gas (Dth) 20 3,895 22,446 26,361
Digester Gas to Engine (scfm) 7,708 3,401,565 3,409,273
Digester Gas to Boiler (scfm) 227 227
Digester Gas to Flares (scfm) 9,438,412 132,529 9,570,941
Digester Gas Power Savings 2,779.75$    
(1) The bills to calculate these values are received after this report is prepared for the

Board meeting, but will be available upon request at the Board meeting.
NA = Not Available at the time this report was generated.

Wastewater Unit Definitions

kWh = kilowatt hours

Dth = Dekatherms

scfm = standard cubic feet per minute

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

Site Visitors

Grit Disposal Management

Summary of Maintenance Activities

Biosolids Management

Chemical and Energy Utilization

86



Agency CTP 
(mgd) CTP (%)

RTP 
(mgd)

JBL  
(mgd) JBL (%)

Total 
(mgd)

CLB 1.537 60.12% 1.54
EBSD 0.046 1.80% 0.05
SCWD 0.974 38.08% 1.616 30.07% 2.59
MNWD 0.000 0.00% 7.51 1.400 26.05% 8.91
CSJC 2.033 37.84% 2.03
SMWD 0.325 6.04% 0.32
Total 2.557 100.00% 7.51 5.374 100.00% 15.44

Agency
SJCOO 
(mgd)

SJCOO 
(%)

SJCOO 
Meter 
(mgd)

ACOO 
(mgd)

ACOO 
(%)

Total 
(mgd) Notes

CLB 1.54 29.20% 1.54
EBSD 0.05 0.87% 0.05
SCWD 1.64 21.58% -0.10 -1.98% 1.54 Includes Desalters
MNWD 1.40 18.40% 0.78 14.86% 2.18
ETWD 1.85 35.20% 1.85 Direct Outfall Only
CSJC 2.43 31.88% 2.43 Incudes Desalter
SMWD 0.32 4.26% 0.32 Includes Chiquita
CSC 1.82 23.88% 1.82 Direct Outfall Only
IRWD 1.15 21.84% 1.15 Direct Outfall Only
Total 7.61 100.00% 5.53 5.26 100.00% 12.87

Agency Wastewater Flows to SOCWA by Facility

Total Agency Outfall Flows by Outfall System-Billing Flows

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

 (Including Internal Waste Streams Used for Billing)

87



Agency Own 
(mgd)

Own    
(%)

Budget 
(mgd)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
(mgd)(1)

Month (%) FY Avg to 
Date (mgd)

FY Avg to 
Date (%)

CSJC 4.00 30.77% 2.12 31.98% 2.033 37.84% 2.09 36.20%
MNWD 3.00 23.08% 1.40 21.12% 1.400 26.05% 1.40 24.22%
SCWD 3.75 28.85% 1.70 25.64% 1.616 30.07% 1.80 31.06%
SMWD 2.25 17.31% 1.41 21.27% 0.325 6.04% 0.49 8.52%
Total 13.00 100.00% 6.63 100.00% 5.374 100.00% 5.78 100.00%

Agency Own 
(lbs/d)

Own    
(%)

Budget 
(lbs/d)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
(lbs/d)

Month (%) 36 Month 
Rol. Avg. 
(lbs/d) (2)

36 Month 
Rol. Avg. 

(%)

CSJC 11,572 30.00% 5,767 24.54% 5,524 33.78% 5,327 24.49%
MNWD 8,340 21.62% 4,396 18.70% 4,512 27.59% 5,616 25.82%
SCWD 7,715 20.00% 5,391 22.94% 5,272 32.24% 5,294 24.34%
SMWD 10,946 28.38% 7,949 33.82% 1,046 6.40% 5,513 25.35%
Total 38,573 100.00% 23,503 100.00% 16,354 100.00% 21,750 100.00%

Agency Own    (%) Variable 
Budget 
(mgd)

Variable 
Budget 

(%)

Month 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

Month 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

Month EPS 
Outfall 

Flow (mgd)

Month EPS 
Outfall Flow 

(%)

CSC 16.62% 2.531 21.57% 1.82 23.88%
CSJC 11.08% 2.348 20.01% 2.43 31.88% 2.03 37.84%
MNWD(3) 15.51% 2.013 17.16% 1.40 18.40% 1.40 26.05%
SCWD 12.47% 1.740 14.83% 1.64 21.58% 1.62 30.07%
SMWD 44.32% 3.101 26.43% 0.32 4.26% 0.32 6.04%
Total 100.00% 11.733 3.10% 7.61 100.00% 5.37 100.00%
(1) Influent billing meter summary:

a. CSJC is metered daily in the collection system. The area‐velocity meter has an accuracy of +/‐ 20%.

b. MNWD is assumed to be 1.4 mgd unless Treatment Plant 3A is discharging to the sewer. If other

discharges occur, they are estimated.

c. SCWD is the summation of the DPSD and Victoria PS meters. The two metering systems have an

accuracy of +/‐ 10%.

d. The Oso Trabuco sewer is metered daily in the collection system.

The flows from MNWD are subtracted from the metering data collected to determine SMWD's
flows. The area velocity metering system in the collection system has an accuracy of +/‐ 20%.

(2) The 36‐month average is the average of the past 36 months. The Use Audit is based on the last 3

Fiscal Years versus the average of the past 36 months.

(3) All monthly flow data for 3A is reported as part of MNWD's flow to the ocean outfall. The actual allocation

of the flows split between MNWD and SMWD is completed annually during the Use Audit.

Sources: 1) Cost Allocation Methodology for Project Committees, Dudek Engineering 2012.

2) Instructions to SOCWA Staff regarding the constant flow of 1.4 MGD from MNWD and SMWD

dated March 2018.

Project Committee No. 2 Solids (JBL)

Project Committee No. 2 Liquids (JBL)

Project Committee No. 5 - Effluent Pumping Station (SJCOO EPS)

FY Flow/Solids Summary-Billing

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

88



Agency FY  Avg 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

FY  Avg 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

FY Avg 
EPS Outfall 
Flow (mgd)

FY Avg 
EPS 

Outfall 
Flow (%)

CSC 1.944 22.81%
CSJC 2.518 29.54% 2.09 36.20%
MNWD 1.639 19.22% 1.40 24.22%
SCWD 1.882 22.08% 1.80 31.06%
SMWD 0.541 6.34% 0.49 8.52%
Total 8.525 100.00% 5.78 100.00%

Agency Own 
(mgd)

Own    (%) Budget 
(mgd)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
(mgd)

Month 
(%)

FY Avg to 
Date 

(mgd)

FY Avg to 
Date (%)

CLB 2.54 37.91% 1.770 59.00% 1.537 60.12% 1.615 59.24%
EBSD 0.20 2.99% 0.050 1.67% 0.046 1.80% 0.048 1.75%
SCWD 2.00 29.85% 1.180 39.33% 0.974 38.08% 1.063 39.01%
MNWD 1.96 29.25% 0.000 0.00% 0.000 0.00% 0.000 0.00%
Total 6.70 100.00% 3.000 100.00% 2.557 100.00% 2.725 100.00%

Agency Budget 
Liquids 
(mgd)

Budget 
Liquids 

(%)

Month 
Plant 

Influent 
(mgd)

Month 
Centrate 

(mgd)

Month 
Total 

(mgd)(1)

Month 
Total (%)

FY Avg to 
Date 

(mgd)

FY Avg to 
Date (%)

CLB 0.01220 0.157% 0.0000 0.0154 0.0154 0.20% 0.0149 0.19%
EBSD 0.00040 0.005% 0.0000 0.0005 0.0005 0.01% 0.0004 0.01%
SCWD 0.00810 0.104% 0.0000 0.0098 0.0098 0.13% 0.0098 0.13%
ETWD 0.01410 0.181% 0.0000 0.0133 0.0133 0.18% 0.0126 0.16%
MNWD 7.75000 99.553% 7.5057 0.0546 7.5602 99.49% 7.6581 99.51%
Total 7.78480 100.000% 7.5057 0.0936 7.5993 100.00% 7.6959 100.00%
(1) Month total does not double count MNWD centrate. It is included in the Monthly Plant Influent too.

Project Committee No. 15 (CTP)

Project Committee No. 17 Liquids (RTP)

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

FY Flow/Solids Summary-Billing (cont'd)

Project Committee No. 5 - Outfall (SJCOO)

89



Agency
Own 

(lbs/d)
Own    
(%)

Budget 
(lbs/d)

Budget 
(%)

Total 
Month 
(lbs)

Total 
Month 

(%)

FY Avg 
Total to 

Date (lbs)

FY Avg 
Total to 
Date (%)

CLB 5,605 11.22% 5,133 12.48% 185,314 16.49% 196,321 16.50%
EBSD 295 0.59% 158 0.38% 5,545 0.49% 5,795 0.49%
SCWD 4,480 8.96% 3,546 8.62% 117,386 10.45% 129,191 10.86%
ETWD 10,200 20.41% 5,755 13.99% 160,084 14.25% 165,093 13.88%
MNWD 29,395 58.82% 26,532 64.52% 655,195 58.32% 693,455 58.28%
Total 49,975 100.00% 41,124 100.00% 1,123,525 100.00% 1,189,855 100.00%

Agency

Own    (%)
Budget 
(mgd)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

Month 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

FY Avg 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

FY Avg 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

CLB 11.000% 1.89 17.73% 1.537 29.20% 1.615 34.85%
EBSD 0.780% 0.05 0.47% 0.046 0.87% 0.048 1.03%
ETWD 16.302% 2.46 23.08% 1.853 35.20% 1.504 32.47%
IRWD 15.760% 2.48 23.26% 1.150 21.84% 0.902 19.46%
MNWD 43.848% 3.08 28.89% 0.782 14.86% 0.687 14.83%
SCWD 12.310% 0.70 6.57% -0.104 -1.98% -0.122 -2.64%
Total 100.000% 10.66 100.00% 5.265 0.00% 4.633 100.00%

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

Project Committee No. 24 (ACOO)

FY Flow/Solids Summary (cont'd)

Project Committee No. 17 Solids (RTP)

90



Select Critical Equipment Repairs

JBL ‐ PC2

Replaced the drive end bearing on Centrifuge #2.

Diagnosed and repacked Centrifuge #3 drive end bearing.

Rebuilt Secondary #2 wear strips and cut flights.

Diagnosed RAS pump #4 pad and pump.

Removed and replaced two failed 6” Dezurik valves on Digester #3. 

Jetted clogged centrifuge centrate line.

Troubleshot front gate.

Repaired underground broken potable water line near chlorine building. 

Replaced and rebuilt RAS failed Pulsafeeder chlorine pump.

Aeration tank #5 diffuser cleaning.

Painted and resealed ferric tank.

CTP ‐ PC15

Replaced failed 1/2” air pipe near aeration tanks.

Replaced failed insulation of discharge check valve for aeration blower #1. 

Replaced failed flight shoes on secondary clarifier tanks #2.

Replaced failed flight shoes on secondary clarifier tanks #3.

Troubleshot RAS Pump #2.

Troubleshot DPS Sump Pump #1 (Outside).

Troubleshot RAS Sump #3.

Repaired failed bleach pipeline near AWT.

Fixed leaking RAS bleach pump #1.

Replaced failed 3” pipeline on the potable water system near airgap tank. 

Troubleshot Bleach Transfer Pump.

RTP ‐ PC17

Testing polymer screening system for night operations.

Replaced and repiped failed AWT 2 applied sample pump.

Repiping failed 2 Water Pump piping, replaced valves.

Repaired failed sections of the hot water loop.

Removed scroll from Centrifuge 1 and clear out debris, rebuild shear joint. 

Removed sand out of the bottom of the DAFT and TWAS Pump. 

Fabricated new Cyclone drain line for Hydrogritter.

Installed safety chains on AWT 2 ladders.

Replace Hydrogritter failed feed lines with PVC.

Replaced failed bypass valve for the heat loop feed line.

Replaced all worn or broken eyewash station parts.

Replace failed suction flanges on AWT 2 CCT bleach pumps.

Repiped broken eyewash at the NPW Loading Station.

Items with a (*) have been identified as preventable repairs.

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

91



Select Critical Equipment Repairs (cont'd)

All PC's ‐ Electrical and SCADA Staff

Replaced outdoor lighting at Bldg #35 at JBL.

Replaced failed fuse holder in scrubber control at JBL.

Replaced failed Nitrate and TSS probes at CTP.

Replaced lighting system in heat loop pump room at RTP.

Troubleshot DO probes at CTP and RTP.

Rewired repaired aeration blower #1 at CTP.

Troubleshot gas skid equipment at RTP.

Replaced gas meters beyond their useful lives at JBL, including bring installation up to current

code.

Troubleshot AWT cell #5 backwash cycling at CTP.

Automated the Plant #2 Vulcan Wash Press at JBL.

Troubleshot RTP Scrubber pH probe on Scrubber #2.

Troubleshot CTP Export Pump #3.

Replaced Plant #2 RAS PLC Panel that was at the end of its useful life.

Items with a (*) have been identified as preventable  repairs.

SOCWA Operational Report September, 2018 (cont'd)

92



8
7
, 4

1
%

3
7
, 1

7
%

9
0
, 4

2
%

1
st
 Q
u
ar
te
r 
(7
/1
8
 t
o
 9
/1
8
) 
C
ri
ti
ca
l E
q
u
ip
m
en

t 
C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 M

ai
n
te
n
an

ce
 

R
e
p
ai
rs
 (
2
1
4
)

B
ey
o
n
d
 E
xp
ec
te
d
 L
if
e 
Eq

u
ip
m
en

t 
R
ep

ai
rs

W
it
h
in
 E
xp
ec
te
d
 U
se
fu
l L
if
e 
Eq

u
ip
m
en

t 
R
ep

ai
rs

N
o
 in

st
al
la
ti
o
n
 D
at
a 
o
r 
U
ti
lit
y 
Li
n
e 
W
o
rk

93



SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency 

94



Agency
SJCOO 
(mgd)

SJCOO 
(%)

ACOO 
(mgd) ACOO (%) Total (mgd)

CLB 1.54 29.20% 1.54
EBSD 0.05 0.87% 0.05
SCWD 1.64 21.58% -0.10 -1.98% 1.54
MNWD 1.40 18.40% 0.78 14.86% 2.18
ETWD 1.85 35.20% 1.85
CSJC 2.43 31.88% 2.43
SMWD 0.32 4.26% 0.32
CSC 1.82 23.88% 1.82

IRWD 1.15 21.84% 1.15
Total 7.61 100.00% 5.26 100.00% 12.87

14,420

12-Month Running Total Discharge to Ocean Outfalls (AF)

Sep-18 1,202
Aug-18 1,207
Jul-18 1,205
Jun-18 1,307
May-18 1,564
Apr-18 1,702
Mar-18 2,529
Feb-18 1,923
Jan-18 2,208
Dec-17 1,744
Nov-17 1,883
Oct-17 1,530
Total 20,005

SOCWA Outfall Discharge Report September, 2018

            or Acre-Feet per year equivalent

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Jun‐17 Sep‐17 Dec‐17 Apr‐18 Jul‐18 Oct‐18

Last 12 months

Prior 12 months

95



Quarterly Report on Key Operational 
Expenses

96



Ju
l‐
1
8

A
u
g‐
1
8

Se
p
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
1
,0
6
3
,1
9
8

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 

FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
9
3
,8
5
1

$
1
5
5
,7
4
9

$
1
2
4
,5
9
9

B
u
d
ge
t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
1
,0
5
6
,0
0
0

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 

C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
1
4
5
,0
0
0

$
1
0
9
,0
0
0

$
1
1
2
,0
0
0

$
1
0
2
,0
0
0

$
8
6
,0
0
0

$
8
9
,0
0
0

$
7
6
,0
0
0

$
6
9
,0
0
0

$
7
9,
0
0
0

$
4
2
,0
0
0

$
6
0
,0
0
0

$
8
7
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

U
n
d
er
(+
)/
O
ve
r 
(‐
) 
B
u
d
ge
t

‐$
7
,1
9
8

El
ec
tr
ic
it
y 
(5
0
0
2
) 
C
o
st
s

$
0

$
2
0,
0
0
0

$
4
0,
0
0
0

$
6
0,
0
0
0

$
8
0,
0
0
0

$
1
00

,0
00

$
1
20

,0
00

$
1
40

,0
00

$
1
60

,0
00

$
1
80

,0
00

Ju
l‐
1
8

A
u
g‐
1
8

Se
p
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
0

$
2
00

,0
00

$
4
00

,0
00

$
6
00

,0
00

$
8
00

,0
00

$
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
1
,2
0
0
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s

FY
1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge

t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

97



Ju
l‐
1
8

A
u
g‐
1
8

Se
p
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
1
5
0
,1
9
2

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 

FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
8
,0
0
2

$
1
0
,6
3
3

$
1
3
,5
5
7

B
u
d
ge
t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
1
6
3
,0
0
0

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 

C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
2
0
,0
0
0

$
1
6
,0
0
0

$
9
,0
0
0

$
1
2
,0
0
0

$
1
5
,0
0
0

$
1
6
,0
0
0

$
1
1
,0
0
0

$
8
,0
0
0

$
9
,0
0
0

$
2
0,
0
0
0

$
1
6
,0
0
0

$
1
1
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

U
n
d
er
(+
)/
O
ve
r 
(‐
) 
B
u
d
ge
t

$
1
2
,8
0
8

O
d
o
r 
C
o
n
tr
o
l (
5
0
0
9
) 
C
o
st
s

$
0

$
5
,0
0
0

$
1
0,
0
0
0

$
1
5,
0
0
0

$
2
0,
0
0
0

$
2
5,
0
0
0

Ju
l‐
1
8

A
u
g‐
1
8

Se
p
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
0

$
2
0,
0
0
0

$
4
0,
0
0
0

$
6
0,
0
0
0

$
8
0,
0
0
0

$
1
00

,0
00

$
1
20

,0
00

$
1
40

,0
00

$
1
60

,0
00

$
1
80

,0
00

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s

FY
1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge

t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

98



Ju
l‐
1
8

A
u
g‐
1
8

Se
p
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
6
2
0
,7
9
3

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 

FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
6
1
,4
9
8

$
6
6
,2
9
5

$
0

B
u
d
ge
t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
6
5
8
,0
0
0

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 

C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
5
,0
0
0

$
5
3
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

U
n
d
er
(+
)/
O
ve
r 
(‐
) 
B
u
d
ge
t

$
3
7
,2
0
7

P
o
ly
m
er
 (
5
0
0
7
) 
C
o
st
s

$
0

$
2
0,
0
0
0

$
4
0,
0
0
0

$
6
0,
0
0
0

$
8
0,
0
0
0

$
1
00

,0
00

$
1
20

,0
00

$
1
40

,0
00

Ju
l‐
1
8

A
u
g‐
1
8

Se
p
‐1
8

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
0

$
1
00

,0
00

$
2
00

,0
00

$
3
00

,0
00

$
4
00

,0
00

$
5
00

,0
00

$
6
00

,0
00

$
7
00

,0
00

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s

FY
1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge

t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

99



Ju
l‐
1
7

A
u
g‐
1
7

Se
p
‐1
7

O
ct
‐1
7

N
o
v‐
1
7

D
ec
‐1
7

Ja
n
‐1
8

Fe
b
‐1
8

M
ar
‐1
8

A
p
r‐
1
8

M
ay
‐1
8

Ju
n
‐1
8

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
1
,5
3
3
,8
1
5

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 

FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
5
8
,6
7
0

$
1
6
3
,7
0
3

$
1
0
4
,4
4
3

B
u
d
ge
t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
1
,6
3
9
,0
0
0

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 

C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
1
0
6
,0
0
0

$
1
1
9
,0
0
0

$
2
0
7
,0
0
0

$
2
2
4
,0
0
0

$
1
1
8
,0
0
0

$
1
1
6
,0
0
0

$
6
0
,0
0
0

$
1
0
9
,0
0
0

$
1
2
5
,0
0
0

$
2
3
2
,0
0
0

$
1
1
3
,0
0
0

$
1
1
0
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

U
n
d
er
(+
)/
O
ve
r 
(‐
) 
B
u
d
ge
t

$
1
0
5
,1
8
5

B
io
so
lid

s 
(5
0
4
9
) 
C
o
st
s

$
0

$
5
0,
0
0
0

$
1
00

,0
00

$
1
50

,0
00

$
2
00

,0
00

$
2
50

,0
00

Ju
l‐
1
7

A
u
g‐
1
7

Se
p
‐1
7

O
ct
‐1
7

N
o
v‐
1
7

D
ec
‐1
7

Ja
n
‐1
8

Fe
b
‐1
8

M
ar
‐1
8

A
p
r‐
1
8

M
ay
‐1
8

Ju
n
‐1
8

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
0

$
2
00

,0
00

$
4
00

,0
00

$
6
00

,0
00

$
8
00

,0
00

$
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
1
,2
0
0
,0
0
0

$
1
,4
0
0
,0
0
0

$
1
,6
0
0
,0
0
0

$
1
,8
0
0
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s

FY
1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge

t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

100



Ju
n
‐1
7

Ju
l‐
1
7

A
u
g‐
1
7

Se
p
‐1
7

O
ct
‐1
7

N
o
v‐
1
7

D
ec
‐1
7

Ja
n
‐1
8

Fe
b
‐1
8

M
ar
‐1
8

A
p
r‐
1
8

M
ay
‐1
8

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
2
,1
7
0
,3
3
1

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 

FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
1
9
8
,6
1
8

$
1
4
3
,6
4
9

$
1
0
1
,0
6
4

B
u
d
ge
t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

$
2
,2
1
3
,0
0
0

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 

C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
2
3
5
,0
0
0

$
1
0
3
,0
0
0

$
1
4
8
,0
0
0

$
2
3
3
,0
0
0

$
1
9
4
,0
0
0

$
1
9
1
,0
0
0

$
1
1
5
,0
0
0

$
1
8
1
,0
00

$
2
0
5
,0
0
0

$
4
0
,0
0
0

$
2
7
6
,0
0
0

$
2
9
2
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

 

U
n
d
er
(+
)/
O
ve
r 
(‐
) 
B
u
d
ge
t

$
4
2
,6
6
9

M
ai
n
te
n
an

ce
 R
ep

ai
r 
(5
0
5
6
 t
o
 5
0
6
0
) 
C
o
st
s

$
0

$
5
0,
0
0
0

$
1
00

,0
00

$
1
50

,0
00

$
2
00

,0
00

$
2
50

,0
00

$
3
00

,0
00

$
3
50

,0
00

Ju
n
‐1
7

Ju
l‐
1
7

A
u
g‐
1
7

Se
p
‐1
7

O
ct
‐1
7

N
o
v‐
1
7

D
ec
‐1
7

Ja
n
‐1
8

Fe
b
‐1
8

M
ar
‐1
8

A
p
r‐
1
8

M
ay
‐1
8

A
ct
u
al
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 M

o
n
th
ly
 C
o
st
s 
FY
 1
8
‐1
9

$
0

$
5
00

,0
00

$
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
1
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

$
2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

$
2
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

C
u
rr
en

tl
y 
P
ro
je
ct
ed

A
cc
u
m
u
la
te
d
 C
o
st
s

FY
1
8
‐1
9

B
u
d
ge

t 
FY
1
8
‐1
9

101



Sm
al
l I
n
te
rn
al
 C
ap

it
al
 C
o
st
s

$
7
8
,2
5
9
, 4

%

$
3
1
0
,5
2
0
, 1

5
%

$
1
,6
2
0
,2
2
1
, 8

1
%

Sp
e
n
t 
to
 d
at
e

In
 P
ro
ce
ss

U
n
sp
e
n
t 
Fu

n
d
in
g

102



O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17
Ja

n-
18

Fe
b-

18
M

ar
-1

8
Ap

r-
18

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n-

18
Ju

l-1
8

Au
g-

18
Se

p-
18

O
SH

A 
RE

CO
RD

AB
LE

 
IN

JU
RI

ES
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17
Ja

n-
18

Fe
b-

18
M

ar
-1

8
Ap

r-
18

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n-

18
Ju

l-1
8

Au
g-

18
Se

p-
18

N
EA

R 
M

IS
S 

RE
PO

RT
S

2
2

2
3

1
3

5
13

7
7

6
5

SA
FE

TY
 U

PD
AT

E 
- O

CT
O

BE
R 

1,
 2

01
8

SA
FE

TY
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

Fe
br

ua
ry

 '1
8 

- B
lo

od
bo

rn
e 

Pa
th

og
en

 T
ra

in
in

g
M

ar
ch

 '1
8 

- C
PR

/F
irs

t A
id

/A
ED

 T
ra

in
in

g
10

0%
 (a

ll 
SO

CW
A 

em
pl

oy
ee

s)
10

0%

TR
AI

N
IN

G
 T

O
PI

C
AT

TE
N

D
AN

CE
 

Ju
ne

 '1
8 

- I
ni

tia
l a

nd
 R

ef
re

sh
er

 C
on

fin
ed

 E
nt

ry
 R

es
cu

e 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

10
0%

Ap
ril

 '1
8 

- A
nn

ua
l H

AZ
W

O
PE

R 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
10

0%

Ju
ly

 '1
8 

- A
nn

ua
l F

ire
 E

xt
in

gu
is

he
r T

ra
in

in
g

10
0%

M
ay

 '1
8 

- A
nn

ua
l H

ea
t I

lln
es

s 
Tr

ai
ni

ng

Au
gu

st
 '1

8 
- L

oc
ko

ut
/T

ag
ou

t T
ra

in
in

g 
&

 F
ire

 A
w

ar
en

es
s 

Sa
fe

ty
 fo

r F
ie

ld
 P

er
so

nn
el

 

Ju
ne

 '1
5 

- I
ni

tia
l C

on
fin

ed
 S

pa
ce

 A
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

N
on

-E
nt

ry
 R

es
cu

e 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
10

0%

Au
gu

st
 '1

5 
- F

ire
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
fo

r W
at

er
 U

til
ity

 F
ie

ld
 S

ta
ff 

an
d 

Di
sa

st
er

 C
os

t R
ec

ov
er

y 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
10

0%

Ju
ly

 '1
5 

- I
ni

tia
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 N

IM
S/

IC
S 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 W
at

er
 a

nd
 P

ow
er

 R
es

ili
en

cy
 W

or
ks

ho
p

O
ng

oi
ng

Se
pt

em
be

r '
15

 - 
Pr

e-
St

or
m

 W
or

ks
ho

p/
Tr

ai
ni

ng
, A

rc
 F

la
sh

 T
ra

in
in

g,
 a

nd
 F

or
kl

ift
 T

ra
in

in
g 

(B
ie

nn
ia

l)
10

0%

10
0%

N
ov

em
be

r '
15

 - 
An

nu
al

 H
ea

rin
g 

Te
st

in
g 

an
d 

La
bo

ra
to

ry
 S

af
et

y 
(fo

r L
ab

or
at

or
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s)
10

0%

O
ct

 '1
5 

an
d 

Ja
n 

'1
6 

- I
ni

tia
l C

on
fin

ed
 S

pa
ce

 E
nt

ry
 R

es
cu

e 
(T

w
o 

3-
da

y 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 s

es
sio

ns
)  

10
0%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 '1
6 

- B
io

m
ec

ha
ni

cs
 a

nd
 E

rg
on

om
ic

s 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 (w

ith
 C

SR
M

A)
 a

nd
 B

lo
od

bo
rn

e 
Pa

th
og

en
 T

ra
in

in
g

M
ay

 '1
6 

- F
ire

 E
xt

in
gu

is
he

r T
ra

in
in

g,
 E

nt
ry

 L
ev

el
 N

IM
S/

IC
S 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

, a
nd

 H
ea

t I
lln

es
s T

ra
in

in
g

10
0%

10
0%

O
ct

ob
er

 '1
6 

- C
on

fin
ed

 S
pa

ce
 A

w
ar

en
es

s/
En

tr
y 

Re
sc

ue
 T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

Fo
rk

lif
t T

ra
in

in
g 

(fo
r 

ne
w

er
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s)

Ja
nu

ar
y 

'1
7 

- C
on

fin
ed

 S
pa

ce
 R

es
cu

e 
Pr

ac
tic

e/
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 L

oc
ko

ut
/T

ag
ou

t T
ra

in
in

g

10
0%

10
0%

Se
pt

em
be

r '
17

 - 
Ac

tiv
e 

Sh
oo

te
r a

nd
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 V
io

le
nc

e 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
10

0%

Ju
ly

/A
ug

us
t '

17
 - 

Sp
ill

 R
es

po
ns

e 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 (h

an
ds

 o
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ith

 u
se

 o
f I

CS
 S

ys
te

m
)

10
0%

M
ay

 '1
7 

- A
nn

ua
l F

ire
 E

xt
in

gu
is

he
r T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

ul
tu

re
 T

ra
in

in
g

10
0%

M
ar

ch
 '1

7 
- A

ut
ho

riz
ed

 U
se

r F
al

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 C
PR

/F
irs

t A
id

/A
ED

 T
ra

in
in

g

Se
pt

em
be

r '
18

 - 
Si

lic
a 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ra
in

in
g 

90
%

De
ce

m
be

r '
17

 - 
An

nu
al

 D
ef

en
si

ve
 D

riv
in

g 
an

d 
DU

Is
/D

is
tr

ac
te

d 
Dr

iv
er

 T
ra

in
in

g 
(w

ith
 C

H
P)

90
%

Ja
nu

ar
y 

'1
8 

- R
es

pi
ra

to
ry

 P
PE

 T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
Fi

t T
es

tin
g 

(R
es

pi
ra

to
rs

 a
nd

 S
CB

As
) /

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 

IC
S 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
10

0%

90
%

N
ov

em
be

r '
17

 - 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

io
m

et
ric

 T
es

tin
g

O
ct

ob
er

 '1
7 

- F
or

kl
ift

 T
ra

in
in

g 
/ 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

012345678

Oct-17

Nov-17

Dec-17

Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

O
SH

A 
RE

CO
RD

AB
LE

 IN
JU

RI
ES

02468101214

Oct-17

Nov-17

Dec-17

Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

N
EA

R 
M

IS
S 

RE
PO

RT
S

O
SH

A
RE

CO
RD

AB
LE

 IN
JU

RI
ES

N
EA

R 
M

IS
S 

RE
PO

RT
S 

103



A
L

IS
O

 C
R

E
E

K
 O

C
E

A
N

 O
U

T
F

A
L

L
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
8

IR
W

D
S

O
C

W
A

S
O

C
W

A
IR

W
D

IR
W

D
S

C
W

D

L
O

S
 A

L
IS

O
S

 W
R

P
E

L
 T

O
R

O
 W

R
P

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
A

N
T

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 P

L
A

N
T

ID
P

S
G

U
A

C
W

R
F

A
C

O
O

R
a
i n

F
L

O
W

T
S

S
c
B

O
D

S
S

F
L

O
W

T
S

S
c
B

O
D

S
S

F
L

O
W

T
S

S
c
B

O
D

S
S

F
L

O
W

T
S

S
c
B

O
D

S
S

F
L

O
W

F
L

O
W

F
L

O
W

F
L

O
W

F
a

l l

D
A

T
E

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g

/L
m

l/
L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g

/L
m

l/
L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g

/L
m

l/
L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g

/L
m

l/
L

M
G

D
M

G
D

M
G

D
M

G
D

in
ch

e
s

0
9

/0
1

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.1
8

7
1

3
.0

5
.2

<
0

.1
0

.3
5

0
1

.7
0

2
0

.4
0

7
0

.6
2

8
0

.1
1

4
4

.3
8

8
0
.0

0

0
9

/0
2

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.4
2

8
1

2
.4

4
.6

<
0

.1
0

.5
7

1
3

.9
4

.0
0

.1
1

.7
0

8
4

.8
4

.0
0

.4
0

7
0

.6
2

7
0

.0
8

3
4

.8
2

3
0
.0

0

0
9

/0
3

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.1
9

8
1

3
.8

5
.1

<
0

.1
1

.4
1

0
11

.1
6

.0
0

.2
1

.9
1

0
8

.6
7

.0
0

.1
0

.4
0

6
0

.6
2

6
0

.1
0

1
5

.6
5

1
0
.0

0

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.4
7

7
1

7
.3

5
.9

<
0

.1
0

.8
3

0
4

.4
5

.0
<

0
.1

2
.7

7
7

3
.5

5
.0

0
.1

0
.4

0
7

0
.6

2
5

0
.1

1
6

6
.2

3
2

0
.0

0

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.2
3

3
2

9
.7

8
.8

<
0

.1
0

.1
6

0
7

.3
3

.0
0

.1
0

.9
1

8
1

5
.0

7
.0

<
0

.1
0

.4
0

7
0

.6
2

5
0

.0
8

8
3

.4
3

1
0
.0

0

0
9

/0
6

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.0
4

3
3

5
.0

1
0

.5
<

0
.1

0
.0

7
0

4
.6

5
.0

0
.2

0
.6

9
9

4
.9

<
2

.0
1

.5
0

.4
0

7
0

.6
2

3
0

.1
11

2
.9

5
3

0
.0

0

0
9

/0
7

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.8
5

0
4

0
.7

1
0

.9
<

0
.1

0
.2

3
0

11
.9

9
.0

0
.1

1
.2

2
1

4
.4

4
.0

0
.1

0
.4

0
6

0
.6

2
3

0
.0

9
7

4
.4

2
7

0
.0

0

0
9

/0
8

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
2

.4
5

0
3

3
.3

11
.3

<
0

.1
0

.1
2

0
1

.1
7

0
0

.4
0

7
0

.6
2

3
0

.1
0

1
4

.8
7

1
0
.0

0

0
9

/0
9

/1
8

N
o

 F
l o

w
3

.3
3

1
3

2
.3

1
0

.6
<

0
.1

0
.9

1
0

4
.1

5
.0

0
.1

1
.7

2
1

8
.9

4
.0

0
.4

0
7

0
.6

2
2

0
.1

0
0

7
.0

9
1

0
.0

0

0
9

/1
0

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.4
8

8
3

5
.3

9
.3

<
0

.1
2

.5
7

0
5

.1
5

.0
<

0
.1

1
.8

8
4

1
6

.0
5

.0
<

0
.1

0
.4

0
6

0
.6

2
1

0
.0

8
3

7
.0

5
2

0
.0

0

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.4
2

1
1

3
.7

5
.6

<
0

.1
0

.5
2

0
3

.3
2

.0
<

0
.1

1
.3

2
3

5
.8

3
.0

0
.1

0
.4

0
7

0
.6

0
2

0
.0

8
2

4
.3

5
5

0
.0

0

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.2
7

2
1

2
.2

3
.4

<
0

.1
0

.2
6

0
2

.7
7

.0
0

.1
1

.3
0

0
1

6
.1

7
.0

<
0

.1
0

.4
0

6
0

.5
9

6
0

.1
0

9
3

.9
4

3
0
.0

0

0
9

/1
3

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.1
9

0
1

0
.0

3
.7

<
0

.1
0

.4
3

0
3

.8
6

.0
<

0
.1

1
.3

11
3

.5
6

.0
<

0
.1

0
.4

0
6

0
.5

9
6

0
.1

1
3

4
.0

4
6

0
.0

0

0
9

/1
4

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.4
8

1
11

.0
4

.0
<

0
.1

0
.3

6
0

5
.8

6
.0

0
.1

1
.3

7
6

6
.2

6
.0

<
0

.1
0

.4
0

1
0

.5
7

3
0

.0
9

8
4

.2
8

9
0
.0

0

0
9

/1
5

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
2

.8
2

3
1

0
.8

4
.9

<
0

.1
0

.3
9

0
1

.4
5

4
0

.4
0

7
0

.5
5

6
0

.1
0

3
5

.7
3

3
0
.0

0

0
9

/1
6

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.7
0

0
1

0
.8

4
.4

<
0

.1
1

.1
8

0
5

.6
5

.0
0

.1
1

.6
4

6
8

.1
7

.0
0

.4
0

6
0

.5
5

6
0

.1
0

9
5

.5
9

7
0
.0

0

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
7

.1
0

8
1

4
.2

7
.1

<
0

.1
1

.0
7

0
1

2
.1

5
.0

0
.1

1
.7

6
4

3
.7

4
.0

0
.1

0
.4

0
7

0
.5

5
5

0
.0

9
9

11
.0

0
3

0
.0

0

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.4
5

2
6

.2
3

.3
<

0
.1

0
.3

9
0

3
.4

9
.0

0
.1

1
.8

2
7

0
.9

2
.0

<
0

.1
0

.4
0

7
0

.6
0

8
0

.0
9

9
4

.7
8

3
0
.0

0

0
9

/1
9

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.7
4

7
11

.0
4

.5
<

0
.1

0
.3

5
0

4
.2

8
.0

0
.2

1
.0

1
2

4
.2

4
.0

0
.1

0
.4

0
7

0
.6

1
2

0
.0

8
7

4
.2

1
5

0
.0

0

0
9

/2
0

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.0
1

0
9

.8
3

.5
<

0
.1

0
.4

4
0

4
.5

3
.0

0
.1

1
.1

1
4

8
.9

4
.0

0
.1

0
.6

1
3

0
.6

1
0

0
.1

1
0

3
.8

9
7

0
.0

0

0
9

/2
1

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.7
7

1
1

2
.0

4
.4

<
0

.1
0

.4
3

0
1

0
.3

0
.2

0
.9

4
3

3
.9

4
.0

0
.1

0
.7

7
8

0
.6

0
1

0
.1

0
1

4
.6

2
4

0
.0

0

0
9

/2
2

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.0
1

0
8

.5
3

.6
<

0
.1

0
.2

9
0

1
.6

0
1

0
.8

0
6

0
.6

2
7

0
.1

0
0

4
.4

3
4

0
.0

0

0
9

/2
3

/1
8

N
o

 F
l o

w
1

.6
2

8
11

.5
5

.3
<

0
.1

2
.3

8
0

1
6

.2
5

.0
0

.2
1

.7
2

8
2

.8
5

.0
0

.8
0

5
0

.6
3

6
0

.0
9

7
7

.2
7

4
0
.0

0

0
9

/2
4

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
2

.0
11

1
4

.8
6

.4
<

0
.1

2
.1

6
0

7
.5

<
0

.1
2

.0
0

2
4

.0
<

0
.1

0
.8

0
5

0
.6

2
8

0
.1

0
0

7
.7

0
6

0
.0

0

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.8
4

3
2

0
.2

8
.5

<
0

.1
0

.4
5

0
3

.6
4

.0
0

.2
1

.3
1

3
2

.8
4

.0
0

.1
0

.8
0

5
0

.6
4

1
0

.1
1

3
5

.1
6

5
0

.0
0

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.3
6

9
1

5
.8

6
.1

<
0

.1
0

.2
9

0
6

.5
1

6
.0

0
.1

1
.3

7
0

2
.7

2
.0

<
0

.1
0

.8
0

5
0

.6
4

7
0

.1
0

5
4

.5
8

6
0
.0

0

0
9

/2
7

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.6
0

2
1

3
.5

5
.0

<
0

.1
0

.4
1

0
6

.5
1

5
.0

0
.3

1
.3

5
3

4
.5

2
.0

<
0

.1
0

.8
0

5
0

.6
4

5
0

.0
9

0
4

.9
0

5
0
.0

0

0
9

/2
8

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.8
8

5
1

5
.2

5
.3

<
0

.1
0

.7
8

0
6

.8
0

.1
1

.4
11

3
.2

0
.1

0
.8

0
4

0
.6

4
6

0
.1

0
4

5
.6

3
0

0
.0

0

0
9

/2
9

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
3

.0
4

1
1

0
.8

5
.3

<
0

.1
1

.5
2

0
1

.1
5

9
0

.7
4

5
0

.6
1

3
0

.0
4

2
7

.1
2

0
0
.0

0

0
9

/3
0

/1
8

N
o

 F
lo

w
1

.5
4

5
1

2
.8

6
.2

<
0

.1
2

.1
5

0
11

.8
6

.0
0

.1
1

.6
6

0
5

.1
6

.0
0

.6
0

7
0

.6
1

0
0

.0
0

1
6

.5
7

3
0
.0

0

A
V

G
N

o
 F

lo
w

1
.8

5
3

1
6

.9
6

.1
<

0
.1

0
.7

8
2

7
.1

6
.3

<
0

.1
1

.4
7

9
6

.1
4

.5
<

0
.2

0
.5

3
7

0
.6

1
3

0
.0

9
5

5
.3

6
0

T
O

T
A

L
N

o
 F

lo
w

5
5

.5
9

2
3

.4
7

4
4

.3
8

1
6

.1
0

1
8

.4
0

2
.8

5
6

1
6

0
.8

0
0

.0
0

104



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
1

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-A

lis
o
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
1
  
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
S

u
rf

 z
o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

: S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 7
0
8

W
e
a

th
e
r:

P
a
rt

ly
 C

lo
u

d
y

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
3

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

7
5

5
<

1
0

0
<

2
0

3
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
0

C
le

a
r

S
4

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

1
0

3
0

<
1

0
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
5

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

1
0

1
0

3
0

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
6

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

9
5

5
<

1
0

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

W
E

S
T

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

9
5

0
3

0
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
7

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

9
4

5
1

0
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
8

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

9
4

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

lu
e

C
le

a
r

S
9

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

9
2

5
>

=
2

0
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

A
C

M
1

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

9
1

5
>

=
9

9
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
1

0
0

9
/0

5
/1

8
8

5
5

<
1

0
0

<
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
11

0
9

/0
5

/1
8

8
4

5
<

1
0

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
1

2
0

9
/0

5
/1

8
8

4
0

>
=

5
<

1
0

6
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

105



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
2

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-A

lis
o
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 1
1
2

5

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
3

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

8
4

0
9

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
4

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

11
0

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
5

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

1
0

4
0

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
6

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

1
0

2
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

W
E

S
T

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

1
0

1
5

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
7

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

1
0

1
0

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
8

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

1
0

0
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
C

le
a

r

S
9

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

9
5

0
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

A
C

M
1

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

9
4

0
5

0
2

0
1

0
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
1

0
0

9
/1

2
/1

8
9

2
5

4
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
11

0
9

/1
2

/1
8

9
2

0
9

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
1

2
0

9
/1

2
/1

8
9

1
5

2
0

5
<

4
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

R
E

C
E

IV
I N

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

106



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a
ch

 M
o
n
ito

ri
n
g

#
3

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e
 C

o
u
n
t y

 W
a
st

e
w

a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

-A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 O

ce
a
n
 O

u
tf

a
ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 2
0
1
8

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
:

M
o
n
th

ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
, 
2
0
1
8

E
X

A
C

T
 S

A
M

P
L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s
 s

p
e
ci

fi
e
d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n
ito

ri
n
g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
ce

iv
in

g
 w

a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n
e

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 C

O
L
L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n
d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e
 0

7
0
4

W
e
a
th

e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:
0
.0

T
o
ta

l
F

e
ca

l
E

n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

co
cc

u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
O

ri
g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2
2
2
B

S
M

9
2
2
2
D

E
P

A
 1

6
0
0

O
n
sh

o
re

O
ff

sh
o
re

G
re

a
se

O
d
o
r

C
o
lo

r
T
e
m

p
(F

)
C

o
n
d
iti

o
n

O
u
tle

t
B

ir
d
s

S
3

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

1
0

4
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

7
T

u
rb

id

S
4

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

1
0

1
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
5

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
9

3
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
6

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
9

1
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

W
E

S
T

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
9

1
0

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
7

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
9

0
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
8

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
9

0
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
9

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
8

3
5

1
0

<
1

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

A
C

M
1

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
8

3
0

<
2

0
9

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
1

0
0

9
/1

8
/1

8
0

8
1

5
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
11

0
9

/1
8

/1
8

0
8

1
0

<
2

0
9

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

6
6

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
1

2
0

9
/1

8
/1

8
0

8
0

5
<

2
0

9
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
F

e
ca

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e

4
0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
co

cc
u
s 

d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l.

107



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a
ch

 M
o
n
ito

ri
n
g

#
4

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e
 C

o
u
n
t y

 W
a
st

e
w

a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

-A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 O

ce
a
n
 O

u
tf

a
ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 2
0
1
8

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
:

M
o
n
th

ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
, 
2
0
1
8

E
X

A
C

T
 S

A
M

P
L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s
 s

p
e
ci

fi
e
d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n
ito

ri
n
g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
ce

iv
in

g
 w

a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n
e

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 C

O
L
L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n
d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e
 1

0
1
2

W
e
a
th

e
r:

O
v
e
rc

a
st

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

T
o
ta

l
F

e
ca

l
E

n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

co
cc

u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f  
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
O

ri
g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2
2
2
B

S
M

9
2
2
2
D

E
P

A
 1

6
0
0

O
n
sh

o
re

O
ff

sh
o
re

G
re

a
se

O
d
o
r

C
o
lo

r
T
e
m

p
(F

)
C

o
n
d
iti

o
n

O
u
tle

t
B

ir
d
s

S
3

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

1
0

4
0

3
0

<
2

0
4

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
4

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

1
0

3
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

7
T

u
rb

id

S
5

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

1
0

1
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

8
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
6

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
9

5
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

W
E

S
T

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
9

4
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
7

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
9

4
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
8

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
9

3
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
9

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
9

1
0

5
5

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id
5

0

A
C

M
1

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
9

0
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id
5

0

S
1

0
0

9
/2

6
/1

8
0

8
2

5
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
11

0
9

/2
6

/1
8

0
8

2
0

2
0

<
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
1

2
0

9
/2

6
/1

8
0

8
1

5
<

2
0

9
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

6
T

u
rb

id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
F

e
ca

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 

4
0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
co

cc
u
s 

d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l.

108



Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall

Unified Beach Water Quality Monitoring Stations

SOCWA's NPDES discharge permit requires participation in the South Orange County 

Unified Beach Water Quality Monitoring Program. The monitoring stations below are tested by

SOCWA at least once per week for Total and Fecal Coliform and Enterococcus Bacteria.

Station Location

S3 Three Arch Bay Beach; 10,000' down-coast from ACOO

S4 Ninth Street-1000 Steps; 5,000' down-coast from ACOO

S5 Laguna Lido Beach; 4,000 down-coast from ACOO

West West Street Drain; 2,000' down-coast from ACOO

S6 Table Rock Beach; 3,000' down-coast from ACOO

S7 Camel Point Beach; 2,000' down-coast from ACOO

S8 Aliso Beach south; 1,000' down-coast from ACOO

S9 Aliso Beach middle; at ACOO

ACM1 Aliso Beach at Aliso Creek Outlet

S10 Aliso Beach north; 1,000' up-coast of ACOO

S11 Treasure Island Beach; 2,000' up-coast of ACOO

S12 Goff Island Beach; 3,000' up-coast of ACOO

109



U
ni

fie
d 

Be
ac

h 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Sa
m

pl
e 

St
at

io
n 

M
ap

 –
 A

lis
o 

C
re

ek
 O

ce
an

 O
ut

fa
ll 

110



MONITORING REPORT Off Shore Stations

South Orange County Wastewater Authority

DISCHARGE:  Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall

REPORT FOR: September 2018 REPORT FREQUENCY:  Monthly

REPORT DUE: November 1, 2018

SAMPLE SOURCE:  Receiving water, nearshore and offshore SAMPLING FREQUENCY:  Monthly

EXACT SAMPLE POINTS:  As specified in permit TYPE OF SAMPLE:  Grab

SAMPLES COLLECTED BY:  Seaventures/SOCWA staff

SAMPLES ANALYZED BY:  SOCWA  Lab

Comments: High Tide 946

Total Fecal Entero- 0 - None

Coliform Coliform coccus 1 - Mild

Sta Sample Sample CFU/100ml CFU/100ml CFU/100ml Sample Oil & Sewage 2 - Moderate

No. Depth Date SM9222B SM9222D EPA 1600 Time Grease Debris 3 - Severe

A-1 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 802 0 0

A-1 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

A-2 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 749 0 0

A-2 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

A-3 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 754 0 0

A-3 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

A-4 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 806 0 0

A-4 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

A-5 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 758 0 0

A-5 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

B-1 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 740 0 0

B-1 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

B-2 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 815 0 0

B-2 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

N1 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 830 0 0

N2 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 829 0 0

N3 Surface 09/25/18 2 2 2 827 0 0

N4 Surface 09/25/18 2 2 <2 825 0 0

N5 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 824 0 0

N6 Surface 09/25/18 <2 2 <2 822 0 0

N7 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 820 0 0

REQUIREMENT:  (1) Floating particulates and grease and oil shall not be visible. (2) The  

discharge of wasteshall not cause aesthetically undesireable discoloration of the ocean surface. 

111



C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

A
li

s
o

 C
re

e
k

 O
c

e
a

n
 O

u
tf

a
ll

  
2

0
1

8

A
g

e
n

c
y
 -

 F
a
c
il
it

y
V

io
la

ti
o

n
C

o
n

s
ti

tu
e
n

t
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
L

im
it

U
n

it
s

P
e
rm

it
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 V
a
lu

e
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l

D
a
te

V
io

la
ti

o
n

L
im

it
F

in
e

A
C

O
O

 -
 S

O
C

W
A

 

O
u

tf
a

ll
4

/9
/2

0
1

8
C

h
ro

n
ic

 T
o

x
ic

it
y

M
o

n
th

ly
T

U
c

2
3
8

1
0
0

0
 T

U
c

$
3
0
0
0

IR
W

D
 -

 I
D

P
9

/1
1

/2
0
1

8
S

a
m

p
le

 T
im

e
M

o
n
th

ly
T

im
e

D
a

ily
E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
$
3
0
0
0

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 C
T

P
9

/2
4

/2
0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
e

d
$
3
0
0
0

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 C
T

P
9

/2
8

/2
0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
e

d
$
3
0
0
0

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
9

/2
4

/2
0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
e

d
$
3
0
0
0

A
C

O
O

 P
e
rm

it
 O

rd
e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
3

112



S
O

C
W

A
 a

n
d

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

A
C

O
O

 S
p

il
l 
/ 
O

v
e
rf

lo
w

 R
e
p

o
rt

 L
o

g
 -

 2
0
1
8

O
rd

e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
3
  
~

  
N

P
D

E
S

 P
e
rm

it
 N

o
. 
C

A
0
1
0
7
6
1
1

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
D

a
te

R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
V

o
lu

m
e

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

D
a
te

A
g

e
n

c
y

A
g

e
n

c
y

(G
a
ll
o

n
s
)

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
W

a
te

rs
T

o
 S

ta
te

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

N
o
 s

p
ill

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
.

113



S
A

N
 J

U
A

N
 C

R
E

E
K

 O
C

E
A

N
 O

U
T

F
A

L
L
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
8

C
S

JC
S

C
W

D

 J
.B

. 
L
A

T
H

A
M

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

S
A

N
 C

L
E

M
E

N
T

E
 W

R
P

S
M

W
D

 C
H

IQ
U

IT
A

 W
R

P
3
-A

 P
L
A

N
T

D
e
sa

lte
r

D
e
sa

lte
r

S
J
C

O
O

R
a

in

F
L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
F

L
O

W
F

L
O

W
F

a
ll

D
A

T
E

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
M

G
D

M
G

D
in

c
h

e
s

0
9
/0

1
/1

8
5
.0

5
0

0
.8

3
1

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

9
3

0
.4

4
5

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.2

1
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

2
/1

8
5
.1

6
0

5
.1

4
.8

0
.9

5
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

4
4

0
.4

5
5

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.9

7
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

3
/1

8
5
.1

6
0

7
.4

5
.9

0
.2

2
.4

7
3

8
.4

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.1

2
0

7
.1

1
5
.2

0
.1

0
.2

1
0

6
.3

1
4
.0

0
.3

0
.4

5
5

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.9

5
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

4
/1

8
5
.5

2
0

7
.5

6
.9

0
.1

2
.5

7
0

8
.8

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

6
0

4
.5

1
3
.6

<
0
.1

0
.4

6
7

7
.8

1
3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

5
5

N
o
 F

lo
w

9
.1

6
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

5
/1

8
6
.0

3
0

6
.0

4
.7

<
0
.1

2
.2

6
0

6
.1

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

0
3

4
.0

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.2

3
2

N
o
 F

lo
w

9
.5

1
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

6
/1

8
5
.3

2
0

5
.9

4
.9

0
.1

1
.6

8
8

6
.0

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

1
0

3
.9

4
.0

0
.3

0
.2

5
8

6
.8

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.1

4
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.9

6
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

7
/1

8
5
.3

2
0

6
.0

8
.0

0
.1

1
.8

3
3

9
.6

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

2
0

1
0
.0

8
.4

0
.2

0
.2

4
2

6
.0

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

9
8

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.5

5
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

8
/1

8
5
.1

3
0

1
.3

5
3

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

11
0
.4

1
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.5

4
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/0

9
/1

8
5
.3

2
0

6
.5

7
.0

1
.7

2
8

0
.0

4
0

0
.3

2
2

0
.4

11
N

o
 F

lo
w

7
.7

9
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

0
/1

8
5
.2

5
0

7
.4

6
.2

0
.1

2
.2

7
5

5
.6

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

3
0

5
.8

1
5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

9
9

3
.4

1
4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

1
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.6

1
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

1
/1

8
5
.3

8
0

6
.5

5
.2

0
.1

1
.2

3
0

4
.8

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

5
7

8
.8

1
3
.0

0
.3

0
.4

5
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.2

7
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

2
/1

8
5
.2

7
0

6
.1

8
.0

<
0
.1

2
.5

6
1

3
.7

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.2

2
0

2
.7

3
.6

<
0
.1

0
.1

9
2

5
.6

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

6
9

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.6

4
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

3
/1

8
5
.0

7
0

6
.4

8
.2

0
.3

1
.8

9
3

4
.2

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

7
0

11
.3

8
.9

0
.3

0
.3

0
5

7
.8

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

4
7

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.7

3
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

4
/1

8
5
.1

2
0

6
.9

8
.5

0
.1

1
.3

4
6

3
.7

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

1
0

5
.2

4
.4

0
.1

0
.3

1
4

0
.5

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

0
2

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.4

6
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

5
/1

8
5
.2

2
0

0
.4

0
6

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

7
9

0
.3

8
7

N
o
 F

lo
w

6
.9

3
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

6
/1

8
5
.4

3
0

5
.8

9
.4

2
.3

2
9

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

0
4

0
.3

7
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.9

5
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

7
/1

8
5
.3

7
0

7
.4

7
.4

0
.1

3
.0

5
5

3
.2

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

1
0

1
.8

1
6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

0
2

4
.5

1
5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

7
2

N
o
 F

lo
w

9
.2

5
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

8
/1

8
5
.2

6
0

8
.2

6
.2

0
.1

2
.5

7
4

3
.2

8
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

7
9

3
.8

1
4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

7
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.2

8
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/1

9
/1

8
5
.1

0
0

8
.5

9
.4

0
.1

0
.1

9
3

3
.1

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

1
7

4
.5

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

7
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.3

3
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

0
/1

8
4
.9

6
0

7
.0

6
.0

0
.1

1
.7

8
9

3
.6

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.7

4
0

1
0
.8

5
.2

<
0
.1

0
.2

8
9

5
.2

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

7
2

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.0

7
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

1
/1

8
5
.1

8
0

7
.9

1
0
.8

0
.1

1
.8

4
7

9
.6

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

1
0

2
.3

3
.6

0
.2

0
.2

1
3

3
.2

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

7
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.7

2
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

2
/1

8
5
.0

7
0

1
.8

5
6

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

11
0
.3

7
1

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.9

8
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

3
/1

8
5
.3

1
0

5
.6

1
0
.8

2
.0

0
5

0
.3

7
0

0
.3

4
2

0
.3

7
2

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.4

0
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

4
/1

8
5
.3

3
0

8
.8

<
0
.1

2
.0

2
7

5
.0

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

9
6

4
.0

1
4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

8
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

9
.2

9
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

5
/1

8
5
.1

2
0

5
.6

7
.2

0
.1

2
.0

6
5

5
.7

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

1
0

2
.1

1
4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.2

3
3

6
.4

1
3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

0
0

0
.0

9
0

8
.0

0
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

6
/1

8
4
.8

3
0

6
.7

4
.2

<
0
.1

1
.7

2
0

4
.6

5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

2
7

5
.6

3
.0

0
.3

0
.4

1
0

0
.2

7
2

8
.2

0
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

7
/1

8
4
.9

6
0

4
.2

7
.2

<
0
.1

1
.6

7
1

4
.6

5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.3

8
0

3
.3

3
.9

0
.1

0
.2

5
7

5
.7

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

1
0

0
.3

9
9

8
.5

0
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

8
/1

8
4
.9

5
0

7
.1

0
.1

1
.7

5
3

5
.9

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

1
0

2
.5

3
.9

<
0
.1

0
.1

9
7

5
.2

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

1
3

0
.0

11
8
.1

2
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/2

9
/1

8
4
.9

6
0

1
.7

9
9

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

7
8

0
.4

1
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.0

7
0

0
.0

0

0
9
/3

0
/1

8
5
.1

6
0

7
.0

1
0
.4

2
.4

2
7

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

0
8

0
.4

1
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.8

5
0

0
.0

0

A
V

G
5
.2

1
0

6
.7

7
.3

<
0
.1

1
.8

1
7

5
.5

5
.3

<
0
.1

0
.0

9
4

5
.2

8
.6

<
0
.1

0
.2

7
2

5
.3

7
.2

<
0
.1

0
.3

9
3

0
.0

2
6

8
.2

7
6

T
O

T
A

L
1
5
6
.3

1
0

5
4
.5

11
2
.8

1
0

8
.1

4
9

11
.7

8
9

0
.7

7
2

2
4
8
.2

9
0

0
.0

0

114



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
1

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
 L

a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

 L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 0
6
1

2

W
e
a

th
e
r:

O
v
e
rc

a
s
t

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

3
2

<
4

0
<

4
0

5
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

7
T

u
rb

id

S
1

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

3
9

2
0

<
4

0
7

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
2

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
5

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

0
0

5
4

0
1

0
0

1
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
ro

w
n

T
u

rb
id

S
3

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

4
5

2
0

2
0

2
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
4

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

4
9

<
4

0
2

0
2

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
5

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
8

5
7

2
0

<
4

0
5

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
1

0
9

/0
4

/1
8

0
9

1
0

<
4

0
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

6
7

T
u

rb
id

S
J
C

1
0

9
/0

4
/1

8
0

8
3

2
<

2
0

0
<

2
0

0
3

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

115



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
2

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
 L

a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

 L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 t
id

e
 1

0
4

8

W
e
a

th
e
r:

P
a
rt

ly
 C

lo
u

d
y

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

9
3

9
<

4
0

<
4

0
1

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
1

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

9
5

0
2

0
4

0
3

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

0
T

u
rb

id

S
2

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

9
0

5
4

0
<

4
0

7
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
5

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

8
5

5
5

0
2

0
8

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

0
T

u
rb

id

S
3

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

9
5

5
5

0
<

4
0

5
8

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
4

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

9
5

7
2

0
<

4
0

3
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
5

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

1
0

0
2

2
0

<
4

0
1

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

0
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
1

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

1
0

0
6

2
0

<
4

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

C
1

0
9

/1
1

/1
8

9
3

5
<

1
0

0
<

1
0

0
5

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

116



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
3

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
 L

a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

 L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 0
6
1

0

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

3
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

7
T

u
rb

id

S
1

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

4
0

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
2

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

2
5

<
4

0
2

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
5

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

1
5

1
0

<
3

0
<

5
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

ro
w

n
T

u
rb

id

S
3

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

4
7

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
4

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

5
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
5

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
9

1
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
1

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
9

1
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
ro

w
n

6
8

T
u

rb
id

C
1

0
9

/1
7

/1
8

0
8

3
1

<
2

0
0

<
2

0
0

<
2

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

117



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
4

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

: S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 0
9
4

6

W
e
a

th
e
r:

O
v
e
rc

a
s
t

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

r i
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

8
2

6
2

0
2

0
2

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

8
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

S
1

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

8
5

2
5

0
3

0
5

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

S
2

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

8
1

7
2

0
<

4
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
5

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

8
0

6
>

=
4

0
<

4
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

ro
w

n
6

9
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

S
3

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

8
5

8
5

0
9

0
8

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id
2

0

D
S

B
4

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

9
0

2
7

0
5

0
1

2
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

2
0

S
5

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

9
0

8
<

4
0

<
4

0
1

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

8
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
1

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

9
1

8
<

4
0

<
4

0
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

C
1

0
9

/2
5

/1
8

8
2

7
<

4
0

<
4

0
5

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

118



San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall

Unified Beach Water Quality Monitoring Stations

SOCWA's NPDES discharge permit requires participation in the South Orange County Unified

Beach Water Quality Monitoring Program. The monitoring stations below are tested by SOCWA

SOCWA at least once per week for Total and Fecal Coliform and Enterococcus Bacteria.

Station Location

DSB 5 Doheny Beach – North Creek Outlet   1500’ up-coast from SJCOO

S2 Doheny Beach- Midway between Jetty and San Juan Creek 

SJC1 San Juan Creek Mouth – up-coast from SJCOO

S0 Doheny Beach at Outfall; surf line over SJCOO

S1 Doheny Beach Campground;  1,000’ down-coast from SJCOO

DSB 4 Doheny State Beach;    1,900’ down-coast from SJCOO

S3 South Day Use;     2000’ down-coast from SJCOO

S5 Doheny Beach near overpass;   3000’ down-coast from SJCOO

DSB 1 End of Doheny State Beach;   3500’ down-coast from SJCOO

119



120



MONITORING REPORT Offshore

South Orange County Wastewater Authority

DISCHARGE:  San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall

REPORT FOR: September 2018 REPORT FREQUENCY:  Monthly

REPORT DUE: November 1, 2018

SAMPLE SOURCE:  Receiving water, nearshore and offshore SAMPLING FREQUENCY:  Monthly

EXACT SAMPLE POINTS:  As specified in permit TYPE OF SAMPLE:  Grab

SAMPLES COLLECTED BY:  Seaventures/SOCWA staff

SAMPLES ANALYZED BY:  SOCWA  Lab

Comments: High Tide 946

Total Fecal Entero- 0 - None

Coliform Coliform coccus 1 - Mild

Sta Sample Sample CFU/100ml CFU/100ml CFU/100ml Sample Oil & Sewage 2 - Moderate

No. Depth Date SM9222B SM9222D EPA 1600 Time Grease Debris 3 - Severe

A-1 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 2 928 0 0

A-1 Mid depth 09/25/18 10 <10 10

A-2 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 933 0 0

A-2 Mid depth 09/25/18 40 10 <10

A-3 Surface 09/25/18 4 <2 <2 936 0 0

A-3 Mid depth 09/25/18 20 10 <10

A-4 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 945 0 0

A-4 Mid depth 09/25/18 30 20 10

A-5 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 940 0 0

A-5 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

B-1 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 920 0 0

B-1 Mid depth 09/25/18 <10 <10 <10

B-2 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 955 0 0

B-2 Mid depth 09/25/18 20 <10 <10

N1 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 915 0 0

N2 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 912 0 0

N3 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 4 906 0 0

N4 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 859 0 0

N5 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 858 0 0

N6 Surface 09/25/18 <2 <2 <2 855 0 0

REQUIREMENT:  (1) Floating particulates and grease and oil shall not be visible. (2) The  

discharge of waste shall not cause aesthetically undesireable discoloration of the ocean surface. 

121



C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 R
e
p

o
rt

S
a
n

 J
u

a
n

 C
re

e
k
 O

c
e
a
n

 O
u

tf
a
ll
  
2
0
1
8

A
g

e
n

c
y

V
io

la
ti

o
n

C
o

n
s

ti
tu

e
n

t
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
L

im
it

U
n

it
s

P
e
rm

it
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 V
a
lu

e
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l

D
a
te

V
io

la
ti

o
n

L
im

it
F

in
e

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

4
/2

/2
0

1
8

S
e

tt
le

a
b

le
 S

o
lid

s
In

s
ta

n
ta

n
e

o
u

s
m

L
/L

3
.0

0
7

.5
0

$
3

,0
0

0

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

4
/2

/2
0

1
8

S
e

tt
le

a
b

le
 S

o
lid

s
W

e
e

k
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

L
/L

1
.5

0
1

.5
8

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

5
/2

5
/2

0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

c
B

O
D

W
e

e
k
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

4
0

9
2

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

c
B

O
D

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

2
5

3
9

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

T
S

S
W

e
e

k
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

4
5

3
8
1

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

T
S

S
M

o
n

th
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

3
0

1
3
0

$
3

,0
0

0
C

it
y
 o

f 
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

7
/1

9
/2

0
1

8
S

e
tt
le

a
b

le
 S

o
lid

s
In

s
ta

n
ta

n
e

o
u

s
m

L
/L

3
.0

0
1

0
.0

0
$

3
,0

0
0

S
M

W
D

8
/3

1
/2

0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

$
3

,0
0

0
S

O
C

W
A

 -
 J

B
 L

a
th

a
m

9
/2

4
/2

0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

$
3

,0
0

0
S

O
C

W
A

 -
 J

B
 L

a
th

a
m

9
/2

8
/2

0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

 V
io

la
ti
o
n

m
g

/L
D

a
ily

N
o

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

$
3

,0
0

0

S
J
C

O
O

 P
e
rm

it
 O

rd
e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
2

122



S
O

C
W

A
 a

n
d

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

S
J
C

O
O

 S
p

il
l 
/ 
O

v
e
rf

lo
w

 R
e
p

o
rt

 L
o

g
 -

 2
0
1
8

O
rd

e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
2
  
~

  
N

P
D

E
S

 P
e
rm

it
 N

o
. 
C

A
0
1
0
7
4
1
7

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
D

a
te

R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
V

o
lu

m
e

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

D
a
te

A
g

e
n

c
y

A
g

e
n

c
y

(G
a
ll
o

n
s
)

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
W

a
te

rs
T

o
 S

ta
te

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

S
O

C
W

A
S

O
C

W
A

-J
B

L
5
,4

0
0

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

Ir
ri
g
a
ti
o
n
 v

a
lv

e
 m

a
lf
u
n
c
ti
o
n

S
a
n
 J

u
a
n
 

C
re

e
k

0
2
-0

9
-1

8
0
2
-0

9
-1

8

123



C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 R
e
p

o
rt

R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

e
rm

it

2
0
1
8

A
g

e
n

c
y
 -

 F
a
c
il
it

y
V

io
la

ti
o

n
C

o
n

s
ti

tu
e
n

t
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
L

im
it

U
n

it
s

P
e
rm

it
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 V
a
lu

e
R

e
m

a
rk

s

D
a
te

V
io

la
ti

o
n

L
im

it

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
1
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

7

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
2
/1

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
3
/1

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
3
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

T
C

W
D

 -
 R

R
W

R
P

3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

N
it
ra

te
 a

s
 N

O
3

A
n
n
u
a
l

m
g
/L

4
5

5
5

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
4
/1

8
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
4
/2

4
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
5
/1

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
5
/3

1
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
6
/3

/2
0
1
8

C
o
lif

o
rm

A
c
u
te

c
fu

/1
0
0
m

L
<

2
1
6
0
0

S
M

W
D

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

p
le

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
r 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
.

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
6
/7

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
6
/8

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
7
/3

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

7

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
7
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
8
/6

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6
S

O
C

W
A

 -
 R

T
P

8
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
9
/3

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
9
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

W
a
s
te

 D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
O

rd
e
r 

9
7
 -

 5
2

124



Recycled Water Report

125



Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L
Y

  
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

D
  

W
A

T
E

R
  

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 P

e
ri
o

d
 E

n
d
in

g
:

S
e
p
 3

0
, 

2
0
1
8

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t

U
n
it
s

1
2
-m

o
n
th

 A
v
g

IR
W

D
-L

A
W

R
P

E
T

W
D

-W
R

P
T

C
W

D
S

M
W

D
 O

s
o

S
M

W
D

 C
h
iq

u
it
a

S
M

W
D

 N
ic

h
o
ls

M
N

W
D

-3
A

M
N

W
D

-R
T

P
S

C
W

D
-C

T
P

M
a
x
im

u
m

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

P
e
rm

it
 L

im
it

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

*
**

**
*

T
D

S
m

g
/L

1
0

0
0

8
4

4
8

8
8

9
6

3
7

7
2

8
1

3
8

6
0

7
6

5
9

4
4

8
1

9

C
h
lo

ri
d

e
m

g
/L

3
7

5
1

8
6

1
7

2
2

6
2

1
7

2
1

9
0

2
3

2
1

9
1

2
4

2
2

4
6

S
u
lf
a
te

m
g
/L

4
0

0
2

5
1

2
1

7
2

6
9

2
1

2
1

8
8

2
0

4
1

6
8

3
3

1
2

1
9

S
o
d
iu

m
m

g
/L

N
o
n

e
1

6
5

1
5

0
1

9
3

1
5

0
1

6
0

1
8

5
1

4
0

1
7

0
1

4
5

A
lk

a
lin

it
y

m
g
/L

N
o
n

e
-

-
-

-
-

-
2

7
0

2
4

0
1

7
5

A
d
ju

s
te

d
 S

A
R

R
a
ti
o

N
o
n

e
5

.1
0

-
4

.6
6

4
.8

3
5

.1
2

5
.8

0
4

.9
0

4
.9

0
4

.5
5

Ir
o
n

m
g
/L

0
.3

0
.0

3
2

0
.0

5
5

0
.0

2
0

0
.0

4
5

0
.1

2
7

0
.0

1
1

0
.1

3
0

.1
8

3
0

.0
9

6

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0

.0
3

4
0

.0
0

8
0

.0
1

6
0

.0
2

5
0

.0
3

8
0

.0
0

8
0

.0
6

2
0

.0
6

0
0

.0
5

4

M
B

A
S

m
g
/L

0
.5

0
.0

9
0

.0
0

0
.1

6
0

.2
1

0
.1

8
0

.2
0

0
.1

8
0

.0
5

0
.0

7

B
o
ro

n
m

g
/L

0
.7

5
0

.3
2

0
.2

6
0

0
.3

0
6

0
.3

4
5

0
.3

7
5

0
.3

7
3

0
.3

3
0

.3
1

0
0

.3
3

F
lu

o
ri
d

e
m

g
/L

N
o
n

e
0

.4
4

1
.0

1
0

0
.2

5
0

.9
4

3
0

.7
5

0
.7

3
0

.9
0

0
.8

8
0

.8
3

T
o

ta
l 
O

rg
a
n
ic

 C
a
rb

o
n

m
g
/L

N
o
n

e
1

0
.0

-
7

.9
1

2
.3

1
1

.2
7

.6
1

0
.1

9
.6

9
.7

*
T

h
e
 L

A
W

R
P

 1
2
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
rm

it
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

**
T

h
e
 E

T
W

D
 1

2
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
rm

it
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

**
* 

T
h
e
 C

T
P

 1
2
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
rm

it
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

T
D

S
1
0
0
0
 m

g
/L

T
D

S
9
1
0
 m

g
/L

T
D

S
1
2
0
0
 m

g
/L

C
h
lo

ri
d

e
1
8
0
 m

g
/L

C
h
lo

ri
d

e
4
0
0
 m

g
/L

S
u
lf
a
te

3
4
0
 m

g
/L

S
u
lf
a
te

 
5
0
0
 m

g
/L

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

126



A
n
n
u
a
l

A
g
e
n
c
y

J
a
n
 '1

8
F

e
b
 '1

8
M

a
r 

'1
8

A
p
r 

'1
8

M
a
y
 '
1
8

J
u
n
 '
1
8

J
u
l 
'1

8
A

u
g
 '
1
8

S
e
p
 '1

8
O

c
t 
'1

8
N

o
v
 '1

8
D

e
c
 '1

8
T

o
ta

ls

C
S

J
C

 1
3
-A

 P
la

n
t/
M

N
W

D
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
.6

7
3
0
.1

6
3
5
.2

4
4
0
.8

3

C
S

J
C

 2
C

h
iq

u
it
a
/S

M
W

D
1
3
.7

0
1
9
.2

0
0
.0

0
1
4
.4

1
1
5
.3

5
1
5
.8

1
2
3
.2

6
2
2
.8

6
1
8
.5

9
1
4
3
.1

7

C
S

J
C

 3
N

o
n

-D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 W

e
ll

1
3
.3

2
1
6
.3

1
2
6
.4

0
5
0
.3

7
5
2
.1

8
6
6
.6

5
5
9
.3

4
5
8
.3

9
2
7
.5

5
3
7
0
.5

1

E
T

W
D

R
e
g
io

n
 8

5
9
.0

7
9
2
.0

1
4
3
.9

8
1
4
0
.3

0
1
2
9
.2

3
1
8
0
.4

6
2
1
5
.8

7
2
3
3
.3

0
1
6
5
.6

9
1
2
6
5
.6

2

IR
W

D

4
IR

W
D

 -
 8

5
5
.6

4
7
7
.7

7
2
8
.8

0
1
1
1
.4

4
1
2
3
.1

0
1
5
2
.9

0
1
6
8
.3

2
1
8
1
.2

3
1
5
7
.8

7
1
0
5
7
.0

7

4
IR

W
D

 -
 9

6
1
.2

8
7
2
.8

9
1
8
.1

5
1
2
4
.8

0
1
0
7
.1

5
1
4
1
.2

9
1
4
9
.4

2
1
3
3
.0

1
1
3
7
.9

3
9
4
5
.9

0

S
C

W
D

S
O

C
W

A
 C

T
P

7
3
.0

5
1
0
7
.6

1
1
2
9
.4

1
1
4
1
.5

5
1
5
1
.9

7
1
2
8
.8

9
8
0
2
.5

8

M
N

W
D

 J
R

P
4
3
8
.8

5
5
2
2
.4

8
1
9
4
.2

6
4
5
4
.0

7
4
4
6
.0

0
5
6
6
.5

2
6
7
2
.2

1
6
6
2
.0

8
6
1
8
.9

9
4
8
1
8
.0

6

3
-A

 P
la

n
t

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
7
.7

3
2
1
0
.2

6
2
1
8
.5

8
2
1
0
.3

4
2
1
8
.1

2
2
2
6
.2

2
2
1
8
.1

3
1
4
0
9
.3

9

5
C

T
P

-3
6
.7

0
-4

8
.8

5
-3

8
.1

2
-1

8
.4

5
9
.4

7
8
.8

2
1
5
.1

0
1
3
.5

0
1
2
.0

5
-9

5
.2

1

S
M

W
D

O
s
o
 C

re
e
k

1
4
7
.8

0
1
3
2
.3

3
1
4
5
.6

5
1
3
7
.8

5
1
4
6
.7

5
1
4
0
.9

5
1
4
6
.9

7
1
3
7
.4

6
1
2
0
.2

1
1
2
5
5
.9

7

C
h
iq

u
it
a

3
3
0
.9

8
4
2
2
.4

6
3
1
8
.4

6
4
7
1
.6

0
4
8
7
.4

9
4
7
8
.1

3
4
9
0
.6

2
4
8
9
.0

0
4
6
3
.1

3
3
9
5
1
.8

7

N
ic

h
o
ls

1
.9

4
1
.7

5
2
.1

7
1
.9

6
2
.0

4
2
.0

5
2
.4

3
2
.6

9
2
.1

9
1
9
.2

3

T
C

W
D

R
R

W
R

P
4
7
.8

4
4
0
.6

8
4
2
.1

1
4
2
.1

2
4
6
.7

0
4
3
.3

9
4
4
.2

7
4
2
.1

8
4
7
.2

6
3
4
9
.2

9

T
O

T
A

L
S

1
1
3
3
.7

2
1
3
4
9
.0

3
8
8
9
.5

8
1
8
1
3
.7

9
1
8
9
1
.6

7
2
1
3
6
.7

3
2
3
5
8
.1

5
2
3
8
4
.0

4
2
0
5
9
.1

6
1
6
3
3
4
.2

8

1
D

e
n
o
te

s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
fr

o
m

 M
N

W
D

 (
3
A

 P
la

n
t)

 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 i
n

 t
h
e
 C

S
J
C

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

 N
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
.

2
D

e
n
o
te

s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 S
M

W
D

 C
h
iq

u
it
a
-W

R
P

 u
s
e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 C

S
J
C

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

N
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
.

3
D

e
n
o
te

s
 n

o
n
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 g

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 w
e
lls

 u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 i
rr

ig
a
ti
o

n
.

4
IR

W
D

 p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
, 

n
o
n
p
o
ta

b
le

 w
a
te

r 
w

e
lls

, 
a
n
d
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
im

p
o
u
n
d
m

e
n
ts

5
D

e
n
o
te

s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
fr

o
m

 S
C

W
D

 (
S

O
C

W
A

 C
T

P
) 

fo
r 

u
s
e
 i
n

 t
h
e
 M

N
W

D
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

 N
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
.

N
o
te

: 
 A

ll 
o
f 

E
T

W
D

 r
e
c
la

im
e
d
 w

a
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 R

e
g
io

n
 8

.

N
R

 =
 N

o
 R

e
p
o
rt

R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

a
c
-f

t)
 2

0
1
8

S
O

C
W

A
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

F
a
c
ili

ty
 o

r 
  
  
 

R
e
g
io

n

127



Pretreatment Report

128



Agenda Item
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2018 

TO: SOCWA Board of Directors    

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Katie Greenwood, Source Control Manager 

SUBJECT:     Monthly Pretreatment Report, September and October 2018 
San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall  
NPDES Permit #CA0107417 Order #R9-2012-0012  
Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall 
NPDES Permit #CA0107611 Order #R9-2012-0013 

Summary of Program Activities 

Staff continues to utilize the CA Manufacturers Directory to identify Industrial Users (IUs). 
SOCWA’s dental user survey spreadsheet is also continually updated via submittal of member 
agency (MA) Will-Serve letters and SOCWA’s one-time compliance report provided via 
SOCWA’s website. 

Permit Related Activities 

The following Wastewater Discharge (WD) Permits, Special Wastewater Discharge (SWD) 
Permits, Nuisance Water-Special Wastewater Discharge (NSWD) Permits, Non-Industrial 
Wastewater Discharge (NIWD) forms, and BMP letters were issued or are in the process of 
being drafted for issuance: 

SCWD – NSWD Permit No. SCWD-N4-011 – OC Public Works Poche Beach – 
Renewal NSWD Permit to continue to allow backwash wastewater from the treatment 
system to be discharged to the sewer. The current permit expired October 1, 2018 and a 
permit extension was granted until a new Agreement or an extension of the existing 
Agreement between OC and SCWD is finalized. A renewal NSWD Permit Application 
was provided on September 5, 2018. A new Agreement has been signed by SCWD 
Staff and is now awaiting the signature of OC Council.  

SMWD – WD Permit No. SMWD-1-003 – Applied Medical Resources (Rubber 
Manufacturing Facility) - The WD Permit was modified on October 1, 2018 to reflect and 
apply metal finishing categorical standards to a new ultrasonic cleaner in use to clean 
the metal molds used in the rubber manufacturing process. The wastewater from the 
ultrasonic cleaner is considered non-significant since the discharge does not exceed 
100 gallons per day. 

IRWD – SWD Permit No. IRWD-4-001 – Beacon Bay Enterprises - Renewal SWD 
Permit to continue to allow treated groundwater to be discharged to the sewer. The 
current permit expires on October 20, 2018. A renewal SWD permit application was 
received on October 12, 2018 and a new SWD Permit was issued on October 18, 2018.  

Trainings and Meetings Attended 

On October 15, 2018, SOCWA Staff joined the first day of the California Stormwater Quality 
Association (CASQA) Annual Conference in Riverside to attend a workshop and training event 

129



Monthly Pretreatment Report for September and October 2018 Page 2 of 3 
November 1, 2018 

regarding proposed changes to the State General Industrial Permit (GIP) which take effect June 
2019.  

On October 17, 2018, SOCWA Staff attended the Annual OC Strike Force Training/ Networking 
Event at the Irvine Ranch Water District Rattlesnake Reservoir Facility. Training was presented 
by Orange County Health Care Agency (OCHCA) on radiation and radiation basics.  

Inspections/Sampling Events 

CSC – On approximately September 1, 2018, SOCWA began a flow and loading investigation 
in the La Pata/Pico industrial area. Currently, Staff has three flow meters in place and is 
performing quarterly monitoring to establish loadings and track trends. Staff gathered the first 
two quarterly samples on September 6, 2018 and October 18, 2018. 

ETWD – On October 3, 2018, SOCWA and ETWD Staff jointly inspected Game Craft Brewery, 
a new brewery with a full kitchen. Inspection requirements include installation of a holding tank 
for pH adjustment, installation of a flow meter, development of a spill containment plan (SCP), 
and submittal of SDS sheets associated with cleaning agents. 

SMWD – On October 18, 2018, SOCWA Staff inspected Control Components Inc. (CCI). Staff 
was present to observe the annual clarifier pump-out and inspection and discussed potential 
regulations applicable to a new potential test procedure. Inspection findings are pending at time 
of completion of this report. 

Summary of Activities and Types of IUs in the SOCWA Service Area - YTD through 
October 17, 2018.    
MA Events Permit NIWD BMP FSE OSE Closed Enforcement   # of IUs 
CLB (S) 0   3     2    5     8   111   0 0     129  
CSC (M) 0   7   35  18 181 1283   0 5   1524 
CSJC (S) 0   2   27  59 137 1669   0 0   1894 
ETWD (M) 0   3   98    0 262   134   0 0     497 
EBSD (U) 0   1     0    0     0       0   0 0         1 
IRWD (S) 4   4   51  21   63   920   0 0   1059 
MNWD (S)  118   5 124  40 625 2085  24 1   2879 
SMWD (S)  66          6   19  20 192   765  12 1    1002 
SCWD (S)     7   7   33    7 148   184   0 0     380 
TCWD (S)     0 11     0    0     7     33   0 0       51 
SOCWA (S)     0         3     1    0     0       0   0 0         4 
Totals     195    52 390 170 1623 7184      36       7  9420 
Dentist (All)     444 

 Total Known IUs      9864 
(S) = SOCWA conducts PT program. NIWD = Non-industrial Waste Discharger.  
(M) = MA conducts PT program /w SOCWA oversight. BMP = Best Management Practices.
(U) = Urban Diversion Only. FSE = Food Service Establishment. 
YTD = Year to Date. OSE = Other Surveyed Establishment. 

130



Agenda Item
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Brian Peck, Director of Engineering 

SUBJECT:      Capital Improvement Program Status Report 

The status of the SOCWA Capital Improvement Program is presented in the tables on the 
following pages. 

131



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
2
(R

) 
- 

J
B

 L
A

T
H

A
M

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

32
13

-0
00

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 P

ip
in

g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (2

01
4)

D
es

ig
n

 S
tu

dy
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.  
R

em
ai

ni
ng

 w
or

k 
is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
Pa

ck
ag

e 
'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 g

o 
to

 
bi

d 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

32
14

-0
00

4M
G

D
 D

iv
er

si
on

 F
lo

w
 M

et
er

 &
 C

on
tro

l S
tru

ct
ur

e 
(2

01
2)

D
es

ig
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
; p

ro
je

ct
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

fo
r b

id
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

32
12

-0
00

Ea
st

 P
rim

ar
y 

In
flu

en
t C

ha
nn

el
 R

ep
ai

r (
20

15
)

D
es

ig
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
; p

ro
je

ct
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

fo
r b

id
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

32
80

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

Ba
si

n 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

(2
01

8)
D

es
ig

n
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 o
f 9

0%
 c

om
pl

et
e 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r, 
20

18
. 

32
52

-0
00

Pl
an

t 1
 S

ta
nd

by
 P

ow
er

 G
en

er
at

or
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

(2
01

7)
D

es
ig

n

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 s

ta
ff 

ha
s 

re
qu

es
te

d 
a 

st
an

db
y 

po
w

er
 

ge
ne

ra
to

r l
ar

ge
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 s
up

pl
y 

po
w

er
 to

 a
ll 

of
 P

la
nt

 
N

o.
1.

  D
es

ig
n 

on
 h

ol
d 

to
 a

llo
w

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
(s

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 3

35
2-

00
0)

. 

32
50

-0
00

Pl
an

t 1
 G

rit
 B

as
in

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (2
01

7)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 S
S 
M
ec
ha
ni
ca
l i

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f t

he
 g

ra
tin

g 
re

ba
te

 o
n 

th
e 

by
pa

ss
 

ch
an

ne
l. 

 W
or

k 
re

qu
iri

ng
 m

aj
or

 b
yp

as
s 

w
ill 

no
t b

eg
in

 
un

til
 th

e 
sp

rin
g 

of
 2

01
9.

 

32
53

-0
00

Ef
flu

en
t S

ys
te

m
 V

al
ve

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
20

17
)

D
es

ig
n

 H
az

en
 a

nd
 S

aw
ye

r d
es

ig
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
; p

ro
je

ct
 to

 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ac
ka

ge
 B

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

32
85

-0
00

M
ai

n 
Pl

an
t D

ra
in

 R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(2
01

8)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
; p

ro
je

ct
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

fo
r b

id
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

33
50

-0
00

M
ot

or
 C

on
tro

l C
en

te
r '

M
' R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

20
19

)
D

es
ig

n
 R

FP
 fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

ro
je

ct
 to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 in

 
D

ec
em

be
r, 

20
18

. 

33
51

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

Ba
si

n 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
I (

20
19

)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
ro

je
ct

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 g
o 

to
 b

id
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 L
IQ

U
ID

S

('
1

8
/'
1
9
)

132



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
2
(R

) 
- 

J
B

 L
A

T
H

A
M

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

32
18

-0
00

En
er

gy
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(2
01

5)
D

es
ig

n
 P

ar
t o

f t
he

 P
ac

ka
ge

 'B
' I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

; p
ro

je
ct

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 
fo

r b
id

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 

32
16

-0
00

H
oi

st
 S

ys
te

m
 fo

r M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
ho

p 
(2

01
3)

D
es

ig
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
; p

ro
je

ct
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

fo
r b

id
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

32
86

-0
00

PL
C

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
(2

01
8)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 O

ng
oi

ng
. 

33
52

-0
00

El
ec

tri
ca

l S
ys

te
m

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

(2
01

8)
St

ud
y

 R
FP

 fo
r e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r p
ro

je
ct

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 in
 

D
ec

em
be

r, 
20

18
. 

40
01

-0
00

Pl
an

t D
ra

in
 S

ys
te

m
 S

tu
dy

 (2
01

7)
 (N

C
P)

St
ud

y
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

 is
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
dr

ai
n 

sy
st

em
. 

32
87

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

D
AF

T 
an

d 
An

ci
lla

ry
 

So
lid

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (2

01
8)

D
es

ig
n

 S
ub

m
itt

al
 o

f 9
0%

 c
om

pl
et

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 
N

ov
em

be
r, 

20
18

.  
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

fo
r 

bi
d 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 

32
10

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
So

lid
s 

Ar
ea

 (2
01

5)
D

es
ig

n

 S
O

C
W

A 
ha

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 re

vi
ew

 c
om

m
en

ts
 to

 T
et

ra
Te

ch
 

on
 th

e 
90

%
 tr

an
sm

itt
al

 fo
r t

he
 D

ig
es

te
r N

o.
4 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

fo
r b

id
 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 
33

53
-0

00
C

en
tra

te
 S

ys
te

m
 D

es
ig

n 
(2

01
9)

D
es

ig
n

 Is
su

e 
R

FP
 fo

r d
es

ig
n 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

20
18

. 

33
54

-0
00

Em
ul

si
on

 P
ol

ym
er

 F
ee

de
r R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

20
19

)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 S
O

C
W

A 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 s
ta

ff 
is

 p
ro

cu
rin

g 
a 

de
m

on
st

ra
tio

n 
un

it 
fo

r a
 o

ne
 m

on
th

 s
ite

 te
st

.  
Te

st
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y,

 2
01

9 

33
55

-0
00

D
ig

es
te

r N
o.

4 
R

eh
ab

ilit
at

io
n 

(2
01

9)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 T
hi

s 
ite

m
 w

ill 
go

 to
 b

id
 w

ith
 th

e 
Pa

ck
ag

e 
'B

' 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

33
56

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

D
AF

T 
an

d 
An

ci
lla

ry
 

So
lid

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

- P
ar

t I
 (2

01
9)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
je

ct
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 g

o 
to

 b
id

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 S
O

L
ID

S

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

O
N

('
1

8
/'
1
9
)

133



T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a
s

e
S

ta
tu

s

36
01

-0
00

Ju
nc

tio
n 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
 R

eh
ab

ilit
at

io
n 

D
es

ig
n

D
es

ig
n

 D
es

ig
n 

w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 u

nd
er

 T
as

k 
33

57
-0

00
. 

33
57

-0
00

Ju
nc

tio
n 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
R

ei
nf

or
ce

m
en

t P
er

m
itt

in
g 

an
d 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n

D
es

ig
n

 It
em

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
t 

re
gu

la
rly

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 N

ov
em

be
r m

ee
tin

g.
 

40
04

-0
00

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pl

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

20
16

) (
N

C
P)

St
ud

y

 S
O

C
W

A 
st

af
f p

re
pa

rin
g 

Fi
na

l P
la

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Bl
ac

k 
& 

Ve
at

ch
. T

ar
ge

t 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
is

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

5
 -

 S
A

N
 J

U
A

N
 C

R
E

E
K

 O
C

E
A

N
 O

U
T

F
A

L
L

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

134



T
a

s
k

 C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a

s
e

S
ta

tu
s

1
3

6
7

E
x
p

o
rt

 S
lu

d
g

e
 L

in
e

 R
e

p
a

ir
 &

 R
ip

 R
a

p
 (

R
 -

 2
) 

(2
0

1
2

)
D

e
s
ig

n

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 r

o
u

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 E
x
p

o
rt

 S
lu

d
g

e
 p

ip
e

lin
e

 a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
in

o
r 

e
m

b
a

n
k
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 f

e
a

tu
re

s
 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 E
x
p

o
rt

 S
lu

d
g

e
 S

y
s
te

m
 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t.
  
P

ro
je

c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n

 

M
a

y
, 
2

0
1

9
.

3
5

9
5

-0
0

0

P
ri

m
a

ry
 D

e
v
ic

e
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
C

o
n

d
u

it
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
d

u
c
to

r 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
(2

0
1

8
)

D
e

s
ig

n

 S
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 

F
a

c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
em

e
n

ts
 P

ro
je

c
t.

  
P

ro
je

c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f
o

r 
b

id
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 
2

0
1

9
. 

3
5

1
4

-0
0

0
C

T
P

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 D
e

s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
6

)
D

e
s
ig

n

 P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t.
 H

a
z
e

n
 &

 

S
a

w
y
e

r 
tr

a
n

s
m

it
te

d
 9

0
%

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 S
O

C
W

A
; 
re

v
ie

w
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 H
a

z
e

n
 &

 S
a

w
y
e

r 
h

e
ld

 o
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
1

6
, 

2
0

1
8

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f
o

r 
b

id
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 

2
0

1
9

. 

3
5

3
4

-0
0

0
E

x
p

o
rt

 S
lu

d
g

e
 S

y
s
te

m
  
(1

9
9

7
)

D
e

s
ig

n

 U
S

F
W

S
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 U
S

A
C

O
E

 f
o

r 
N

a
ti
o

n
w

id
e

 P
e

rm
it
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n

 

M
a

y
, 
2

0
1

9
. 

3
5

1
2

-0
0

0

G
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
b

a
te

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

c
re

te
 R

e
p

a
ir

 B
e

tw
e

e
n

 H
W

 

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 B

a
s
in

s
 (

2
0

1
6

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n

 P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t;
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 H
a

z
e

n
 &

 S
a

w
y
e

r 
h

e
ld

 o
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
1

6
, 

2
0

1
8

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f
o

r 
in

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 

2
0

1
9

. 

3
5

9
4

-0
0

0
P

L
C

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
(2

0
1

8
)

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 b

y
 S

O
C

W
A

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t.
 

3
5

9
2

-0
0

0
F

a
c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 
D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
8

)
D

e
s
ig

n

 P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t;
 m

o
n

th
ly

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 H
a

z
e

n
 &

 S
a

w
y
e

r 
h

e
ld

 o
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 

1
6

, 
2

0
1

8
. 

3
3

5
8

-0
0

0
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

 R
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
to

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f
o

r 
b

id
s
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l,
 2

0
1

9
. 

3
3

5
9

-0
0

0

F
a

c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 -

 P
a

rt
 I
 

(2
0

1
9

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 g
o

 t
o

 b
id

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 
2

0
1

9
. 

3
3

6
0

-0
0

0
V

e
h

ic
le

 S
to

ra
g

e
 B

u
ild

in
g

 R
o

o
f 

(2
0

1
9

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
ff
. 

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 
1

5
(R

) 
- 

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 L

IQ
U

ID
S

135



T
a

s
k

 C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a

s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
3

6
1

-0
0

0

A
W

M
A

 R
o

a
d

 S
it
e

s
 W

e
s
t 
1

 a
n

d
 2

 E
m

b
a

n
k
m

e
n

t 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
D

e
s
ig

n

 R
F

P
 f
o

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
e

rm
it
ti
n

g
 t
o

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

 2
0

1
8

. 

3
3

6
2

-0
0

0
A

lis
o

 C
re

e
k
 L

o
n

g
 T

e
rm

 R
e

p
a

ir
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 (

2
0

1
9

)
P

la
n

n
in

g

 R
F

P
 f
o

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
e

rm
it
ti
n

g
 t
o

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r,

 2
0

1
8

. 

3
5

5
3

-0
0

0
P

la
n

t 
D

ra
in

a
g

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
2

0
1

7
)

D
e

s
ig

n

 T
e

tr
a

T
e

c
h

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
. 
 W

o
rk

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

in
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
id

. 
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 f

o
r 

b
in

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 
2

0
1

9
. 

3
5

6
2

-0
0

0

A
W

T
 A

p
p

lie
d

 W
a

te
r 

P
u

m
p

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
(A

W
T

) 

(2
0

1
7

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

3
5

9
6

-0
0

0

A
p

p
lie

d
 W

a
te

r 
V

F
D

 P
u

m
p

 P
a

n
e

l 
a

n
d

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 

(A
W

T
) 

(2
0

1
8

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n

P
ro

je
c
t 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t
o

 S
S

 M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l.
  
P

ro
je

c
t 
is

 i
n

 s
h

o
p

 

d
ra

w
in

g
 p

h
a

s
e

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

y
, 

2
0

1
9

.

3
3

6
4

-0
0

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
B

a
s
in

 M
ix

e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0

1
9

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n

P
ro

je
c
t 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t
o

 S
S

 M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l.
  
P

ro
je

c
t 
is

 i
n

 s
h

o
p

 

d
ra

w
in

g
 p

h
a

s
e

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

y
, 

2
0

1
9

.

3
3

6
5

-0
0

0
M

C
C

 A
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0

1
9

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n

P
ro

je
c
t 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t
o

 S
S

 M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l.
  
P

ro
je

c
t 
is

 i
n

 s
h

o
p

 

d
ra

w
in

g
 p

h
a

s
e

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

y
, 

2
0

1
9

.

3
3

6
6

-0
0

0

A
W

T
 F

ilt
e

r 
V

a
lv

e
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0

1
9

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n

P
ro

je
c
t 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t
o

 S
S

 M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l.
  
P

ro
je

c
t 
is

 i
n

 s
h

o
p

 

d
ra

w
in

g
 p

h
a

s
e

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

y
, 

2
0

1
9

.

3
5

1
7

-0
0

0

A
W

T
 B

a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 W
a

te
r 

P
u

m
p

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
(A

W
T

) 

(2
0

1
6

)
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
P

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 L

IQ
U

ID
S

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 A
W

T

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 
1

5
(R

) 
- 

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

136



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
7
0
1
-0

0
0

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
ro

u
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
4
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
3
0
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 G
a
lle

ry
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
4
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
0
2
-0

0
0

W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti
v
a
te

d
 S

lu
d
g
e
 V

F
D

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 
P

a
n
e
l 
(2

0
1
3
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
5
2
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 N

o
.2

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
7
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 O
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 s

c
o
p
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 S

O
C

W
A

 

s
ta

ff
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 o

rd
e
r 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 

M
N

W
D

 s
ta

ff
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
8
1
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
u
m

 S
k
im

m
e
r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 D
e
s
ig

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 L

e
e
 &

 R
o
; 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 b

id
 i
n
 

la
te

 2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
8
4
-0

0
0

D
A

F
 (

M
a
n
n
ic

h
) 

P
o
ly

m
e
r 

S
y
s
te

m
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
8
5
-0

0
0

D
A

F
 D

is
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 T

a
n
k
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
8
6
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 G
a
lle

ry
 M

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
U

p
g
ra

d
e
 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
6
7
-0

0
0

S
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 
In

fl
u
e
n
t 
S

e
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 M

a
n
h
o
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

(2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 R
F

P
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

o
u
lt
o
n
 

N
ig

u
e
l 
W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
s
tu

d
y
. 

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 L
IQ

U
ID

S

137



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
3
6
8
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 D
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

5
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
2
0
1
9
. 

3
3
6
9
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 G

a
te

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 D
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

5
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
8
7
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 D
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

5
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
2
0
1
9
. 

4
0
0
8
-0

0
0

E
ff

lu
e
n
t 
E

q
u
a
liz

a
ti
o
n
 P

o
n
d
 a

n
d
 G

a
te

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
7
) 

(N
C

P
)

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 V

&
A

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

; 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 
2
0
1
9
.

3
7
1
5
-0

0
0

S
w

it
c
h
g
e
a
r 

U
p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
0
6
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
a
c
if
ic

 H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

u
n
c
h
 l
is

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 

3
7
6
1
-0

0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
7
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
0
-0

0
0

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

e
p
a
ir

 D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 o
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

3
0
, 
2
0
1
8
; 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

6
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
1
-0

0
0

W
e
s
t 
S

lo
p
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

S
tu

d
y

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 o
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

3
0
, 
2
0
1
8
; 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

6
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
2
-0

0
0

M
o
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

e
n
te

r 
A

, 
G

, 
H

 D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 o
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

3
0
, 
2
0
1
8
; 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

6
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
3
-0

0
0

S
o
u
th

s
id

e
 P

la
n
t 
F

lo
o
d
in

g
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

S
tu

d
y

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 o
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

3
0
, 
2
0
1
8
; 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

6
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
4
-0

0
0

S
E

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
M

a
n
h
o
le

 R
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 o
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

3
0
, 
2
0
1
8
; 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

6
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
8
8
-0

0
0

P
L
C

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
8
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 
u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 b

y
 S

O
C

W
A

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 D

e
p
t.
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

O
N

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 L
IQ

U
ID

S

138



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
7
2
0
-0

0
0

D
ig

e
s
te

r 
D

o
m

e
 R

e
c
o
a
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
4
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 P

a
c
if
ic

 H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
. 

3
3
7
5
-0

0
0

P
h
a
s
e
 I
 S

o
lid

s
 P

ip
in

g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
3
7
6
-0

0
0

D
e
w

a
te

ri
n
g
 R

o
o
m

 F
lo

o
r 

S
e
a
lin

g
 a

n
d
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 H
a
rp

e
r 

&
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

lo
o
r 

s
e
a
lin

g
. 

3
3
7
7
-0

0
0

E
n
e
rg

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 B

re
e
z
e
w

a
y
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
9
-0

0
0

S
E

T
 P

ip
in

g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
2
2
-0

0
0

C
o
-G

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
tr

o
fi
t 
(2

0
0
8
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 F
in

a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
P

a
c
if
ic

 

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

u
n
c
h
 l
is

t 
it
e
m

s
. 

3
7
9
0
-0

0
0

S
o
lid

s
 A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 D

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
S

O
C

W
A

 s
ta

ff
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 S
O

L
ID

S

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

139



T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a
s

e
S

ta
tu

s

31
81

-0
00

Ai
r V

ac
uu

m
 R

el
ea

se
 V

al
ve

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t R
ea

ch
 D

 
(2

01
8)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 m

em
or

an
du

m
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

.  
Th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill 

be
 re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
SO

C
W

A 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

N
ov

em
be

r 8
, 2

01
8.

 

31
82

-0
00

Ai
r V

ac
uu

m
 R

el
ea

se
 V

al
ve

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t R
ea

ch
 E

 
(2

01
8)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 m

em
or

an
du

m
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

.  
Th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill 

be
 re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
SO

C
W

A 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

N
ov

em
be

r 8
, 2

01
8.

 

40
04

-0
00

Tr
ai

l B
rid

ge
 C

re
ek

 C
ro

ss
in

g 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

(R
ea

ch
 D

)
D

es
ig

n

 D
ra

ft 
m

em
or

an
du

m
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

; 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
at

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 8

, 2
01

8.
 

T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a
s

e
S

ta
tu

s

34
80

-0
00

In
te

rn
al

 S
ea

l R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
20

18
)

D
es

ig
n

 A
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

or
de

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

 to
 B

la
ck

 &
 V

ea
tc

h 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
de

si
gn

 d
oc

um
en

ts
.  

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 
ad

ve
rti

se
 fo

r b
id

di
ng

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y,

 2
01

9.
 

40
04

-0
00

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pl

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

20
16

) (
N

C
P)

St
ud

y

 S
O

C
W

A 
st

af
f p

re
pa

rin
g 

Fi
na

l P
la

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Bl
ac

k 
& 

Ve
at

ch
. T

ar
ge

t 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
is

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

2
4
 -

 A
L

IS
O

 C
R

E
E

K
 O

C
E

A
N

 O
U

T
F

A
L

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

2
1
 -

 E
F

F
L

U
E

N
T

 T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 M
A

IN
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

140



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
2
(R

) 
- 

J
B

 L
A

T
H

A
M

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

T
a

s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 B

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
2
1
3

-0
0
0

W
a
te

r 
S

y
s
te

m
 P

ip
in

g
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
2
0
1
4

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2
0
2

-0
0
0

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 a
n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

(P
a
c
k
a
g
e
 "

B
")

 (
2
0
1
6

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2
8
5

-0
0
0

M
a

in
 P

la
n
t 
D

ra
in

 L
in

e
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3
2
8
0

-0
0
0
; 

3
3
5
1

-0
0
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 B
 -

 B
a
s
in

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
s
 (

2
0
1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3
2
8
7

-0
0
0
; 

3
3
5
6

-0
0
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 B
 -

 D
A

F
T

 (
2
0
1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2
1
2

-0
0
0

E
a
s
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 I
n
fl
u
e
n
t 
C

h
a
n
n

e
l 
R

e
p
a
ir

 (
2
0
1
5

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2
1
8

-0
0
0

E
n
e
rg

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

o
o
f 

R
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
5

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2
1
6

-0
0
0

H
o
is

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n

c
e

 S
h
o
p
 (

2
0
1
3

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3
2
8
7

-0
0
0
; 

3
2
1
0

-0
0
0
; 

3
3
5
5

-0
0
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 D

ig
e
s
te

r 
4
 I
m

p
s
. 
(2

0
1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C

3
2
5
3

-0
0
0

E
ff

lu
e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 V

a
lv

e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
7

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

3
2
5
0

-0
0
0

P
la

n
t 
1
 G

ri
t 
B

a
s
in

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
2
0
1
7

)
C

C
C

C

3
2
8
6

-0
0
0

P
L
C

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
s
 (

2
0
1
8

)
C

C

4
0
0
1

-0
0
0

P
la

n
t 
D

ra
in

 S
y
s
te

m
 S

tu
d
y
 (

2
0
1
7

) 
(N

C
P

)
P

P

3
3
5
0

-0
0
0

M
C

C
 "

M
" 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9

)
D

D
D

3
3
5
4

-0
0
0

E
m

u
ls

io
n
 P

o
ly

m
e
r 

F
e

e
d
e
r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
9

)
C

C

3
3
5
3

-0
0
0

C
e
n
tr

a
te

 S
y
s
te

m
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9

)
D

D
D

F
is

c
a
l 

Y
e
a
r 

1
8
/1

9
F

is
c
a
l 

Y
e
a
r 

1
9
/2

0

141



T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3
5
9
2
-0

0
0
; 

3
3
5
9
-0

0
0

F
a
c
ili

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 
D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
5
9
5
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 D
e
v
ic

e
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
C

o
n
d
u
it
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
5
9
3
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
lu

d
g
e
 V

a
lv

e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

T
E

R
T

IA
R

Y
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 2
0
1
8

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
5
9
7
-0

0
0
; 

3
3
6
5
-0

0
0

M
C

C
-A

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
5
9
6
-0

0
0

A
p
p
lie

d
 W

a
te

r 
V

F
D

 P
u
m

p
 P

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 

(2
0
1
8
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
3
6
4
-0

0
0

C
h
lo

ri
n
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
B

a
s
in

 M
ix

e
r 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
3
6
6
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 F

ilt
e
r 

V
a
lv

e
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

E
X

P
O

R
T

 S
L

U
D

G
E

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
E

N
V

E
N

V
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

1
3
6
7

E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 L

in
e
 R

e
p
a
ir
 &

 R
ip

 R
a
p
 (

R
 -

 2
) 

(2
0
1
2
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

B
&

A
C

C
C

C

3
5
3
4
-0

0
0

E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 S

y
s
te

m
  
(1

9
9
7
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

B
&

A
C

C
C

C

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

3
5
9
4
-0

0
0

P
L
C

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

C
C

3
5
5
3
-0

0
0

P
la

n
t 
D

ra
in

a
g
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
2
0
1
7
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

3
3
5
8
-0

0
0

P
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
B

u
ild

in
g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

3
3
6
1
-0

0
0

A
W

M
A

 R
o
a
d
 S

it
e
s
 W

e
s
t 
1
 a

n
d
 2

 E
m

b
a
n
k
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

E
N

V
E

N
V

E
N

V
B

&
A

3
3
6
2
-0

0
0

A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 L

o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 R
e
p
a
ir
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 (

2
0
1
9
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

E
N

V
E

N
V

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
9

/2
0

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
5
(R

) 
- 

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
8

/1
9

142



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 2
0
1
8

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
0
1
-0

0
0

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
S

ys
te

m
 R

e
ro

u
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
4
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
0
2
-0

0
0

W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti
v
a
te

d
 S

lu
d
g
e
 V

F
D

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 
P

a
n
e
l 
(2

0
1
3
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
3
0
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 G
a
lle

ry
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
4
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
8
1
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
u
m

 S
k
im

m
e
r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
8
4
-0

0
0

D
A

F
 (

M
a
n
n
ic

h
) 

P
o
ly

m
e
r 

S
ys

te
m

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
8
5
-0

0
0

D
A

F
 D

is
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 T

a
n
k
 S

ys
te

m
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
8
6
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 G
a
lle

ry
 M

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
U

p
g
ra

d
e
 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
3
7
7
-0

0
0

E
n
e
rg

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 B

re
e
z
e
w

a
y
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7
6
1
-0

0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
7
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 2
0
1
9

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7
8
7
-0

0
0
; 

3
3
6
8
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
3
6
9
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 G

a
te

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
9
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
3
7
5
-0

0
0

P
h
a
s
e
 I
 S

o
lid

s
 P

ip
in

g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7
5
2
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 N

o
.2

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
7
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C

3
3
7
9
-0

0
0

S
E

T
 P

ip
in

g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7
9
0
-0

0
0

S
o
lid

s
 A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
8

/1
9

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
9

/2
0

143



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

4
0
0
8
-0

0
0

E
ff

lu
e
n
t 
E

q
u
a
liz

a
ti
o
n
 P

o
n
d
 a

n
d
 G

a
te

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
7
) 

(N
C

P
)

C
A

C
A

3
7
8
8
-0

0
0

P
L
C

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
8
)

C
C

3
3
6
7
-0

0
0

S
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 
In

fl
u
e
n
t 
S

e
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 M

a
n
h
o
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

(2
0
1
9
)

P
D

D

3
3
7
0
-0

0
0

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

e
p
a
ir
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

P
D

C

3
3
7
1
-0

0
0

W
e
s
t 
S

lo
p
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

P
P

3
3
7
2
-0

0
0

M
o
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

e
n
te

r 
A

, 
G

, 
H

 D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
D

D

3
3
7
3
-0

0
0

S
o
u
th

s
id

e
 P

la
n
t 
F

lo
o
d
in

g
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

P
P

3
3
7
4
-0

0
0

S
E

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
M

a
n
h
o
le

 R
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
C

3
3
7
6
-0

0
0

D
e
w

a
te

ri
n
g
 R

o
o
m

 F
lo

o
r 

S
e
a
lin

g
 a

n
d
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 

(2
0
1
9
)

D
B

&
A

C

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
8

/1
9

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
9

/2
0

144



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

Engineering Committee 

September 13, 2018 

The Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 
Engineering Committee was held on Thursday, September 13, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. at their 
Administrative Offices located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  The following 
members present: 

ROD WOODS  Moulton Niguel Water District  
MIKE MARQUIS City of San Juan Capistrano  
DON BUNTS  Santa Margarita Water District 
SARA MATHIS South Coast Water District  
DENNIS CAFFERTY El Toro Water District 
DAVID SHISSLER City of Laguna Beach 

Absent: 

LORRIE LAUTSEN  Trabuco Canyon Water District 
KEVIN BURTON Irvine Ranch Water District  
DAVE REBENSDORF City of San Clemente 
MICHAEL DUNBAR  Emerald Bay Service District 

Staff present: 

BRIAN PECK  Director of Engineering 
RONI YOUNG  Associate Engineer 
JASON MANNING  Senior Engineer 
JIM BURROR  Director of Operations 
AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance 
JEANETTE COTINOLA Procurement/Contracts Administrator 

1. Call Meeting to Order
Mr. Peck called the meeting to order at 8:31 a.m. and welcomed everyone present. 

2. Public Comments
Mr. Peck asked if members of the public desired to address the Engineering Committee

or desired to reserve addressing the Engineering Committee during the meeting regarding
any item on the Agenda.  No comments were received.

3. Review/Approval of Meeting Minutes

A. May 10, 2018 – Engineering Committee Meeting

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Mr. Bunts and seconded by Mr. Woods to approve the May 10,
2018, Engineering Committee Meeting minutes as submitted.

Motion carried:  Aye 4; Nay 0; Abstain 2; Absent 4 
Michael Dunbar Absent 
Sara Mathis Abstain 
Rod Woods Aye 

145



Minutes – Engineering Committee Page 2 of 5 
September 13, 2018 

Kevin Burton  Absent  
Mike Marquis  Aye 
Dave Rebensdorf Absent 
Lorrie Lautsen  Absent  
Don Bunts Aye 
Dennis Cafferty Aye 
David Shissler  Abstain 

B. August 9, 2018 – Engineering Committee Meeting

ACTION TAKEN
Motion was made by Mr. Bunts and seconded by Mr. Woods to approve the August 9,
2018, Engineering Committee Meeting minutes with the addition of “Carollo Engineers”
under the Action Taken section of the item Innovative Biosolids Handing Technologies
Engineering Support Services Proposal Review; sentence to read “…Support Services
to Carollo Engineers at a fee of $99,948.”

Motion carried:  Aye 5; Nay 0; Abstain 1; Absent 4 
Michael Dunbar Absent 
Sara Mathis  Aye 
Rod Woods  Aye 
Kevin Burton  Absent  
Mike Marquis  Aye 
Dave Rebensdorf Absent 
Lorrie Lautsen  Absent  
Don Bunts Aye 
Dennis Cafferty Aye 
David Shissler  Abstain 

4. Operations Report
DISCUSSION

Mr. Burror reported that Operations & Maintenance has continued to work with
Engineering on the engine at the Regional Treatment Plant.  Operations &
Maintenance remains focused on the effort to move forward and complete tasks for
the upcoming year.  An open discussion ensued.

Ms. Baylor reported that SOCWA had received all the permits to operate the co-
gen equipment at the JB Latham Treatment Plant.
ACTION TAKEN
Information only, no action required.

5. Use Audit Flow and Solids Methodology
DISCUSSION

Ms. Baylor reported that the Use Audit Flow and Solids Methodology was presented to
the Finance Committee to make certain that everyone had the process methodology and all
the raw data for each Project Committee (PC), and the information was outlined in a

146



Minutes – Engineering Committee Page 3 of 5 
September 13, 2018 

transparent manner.  The item was brought to the Engineering Committee to relay the 
information to each one of the Engineering Committee’s member agency PC’s, and look at 
the calculations that have been done in the past.  MNWD, TCWD, ETWD and SMWD 
provided questions regarding the data and SOCWA staff made those adjustments.   

Ms. Baylor welcomed any questions for future discussions and stated that the presented 
raw data and summaries outlined in the methodology was provided to the SOCWA Finance 
Department for completion of the Use Audit.  The future process will include SOCWA 
providing the member agencies the document, raw data and summaries outlined in the 
methodology annually at the close of each fiscal year.  Ms. Baylor requested that the 
Engineering members contact her directly to inquire how the numbers were obtained. 
ACTION TAKEN 
Information only, no action required. 

6. Regional Treatment Plant Co-Generation and Switchgear Project Construction Project
Status Update (Project Committee 17)
DISCUSSION 
 Mr. Manning reviewed the status of the Co-Generation and Switchgear Project. 
ACTION TAKEN 
Information only, no action required. 

7. Regional Treatment Plant Draft Ten Year Plan Review (Project Committee 17)
DISCUSSION 
 Mr. Peck provided an updated Table 7.1 for the draft Regional Treatment Plant Ten 
Year Plan.  Mr. Peck reviewed the source of cost increases in comparison with the ten-year 
cost projection provided to the member agencies with the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 
budget.  Mr. Peck noted that this item would be continued at the October 11, 2018 meeting. 
ACTION TAKEN 
Information only, no action required. 

8. J. B. Latham Treatment Plant Draft Package “B” Facility Improvements Project Status
Update (Project Committee 2)
DISCUSSION

Ms. Young presented Change Orders Nos. 5 and 6 to the Carollo Engineers' design
contract for the J. B. Latham Treatment Plant Package ‘B’ Facility Improvements Project.
Change Orders Nos. 5 and 6 related to the revised design for the Thickened Waste
Activated Sludge (TWAS) Pump Station and the looping of the SCADA fiber optic system.
The total cost of the two change orders is $65,594.00.  Mr. Bunts suggested that the
presentation of Change Order No.5 would be aided by showing construction and operations
cost savings related to the proposed design change.  The present members of Project
Committee 2 supported the recommendation of Change Orders Nos. 5 and 6.
ACTION TAKEN
The Project Committee 2 Engineering Committee representatives recommended the
presentation of Change Orders No. 5 and 6 to the SOCWA Board of Directors.

147



Minutes – Engineering Committee Page 4 of 5 
September 13, 2018 

9. J. B. Latham Treatment Plant Draft Ten Year Plan Review (Project Committee 2)
DISCUSSION 

Mr. Peck indicated that progress was being made on the development of the draft Ten 
Year Plan for J. B. Latham Treatment Plant.  A separate meeting will be established with 
Project Committee 2 to review the plan when work has been completed. 
ACTION TAKEN 
Information only, no action required. 

10. Construction Management Approach for Large Construction Projects
(Project Committees 2 and 15)
DISCUSSION

Mr. Peck discussed a forthcoming request for proposals for construction management
for the J. B. Latham Treatment Plant Package ‘B’ Facility Improvements and the Coastal
Treatment Plant Facility Improvements Projects.  Mr. Peck queried the Engineering
Committee members if the original design firms should be allowed to compete for
Construction Management.  The present Engineering Committee members approved of
including the original design firms in the construction management selection process.
ACTION TAKEN
Information only, no action required.

11. Coastal Treatment Plant Facility Improvements Project Status Update
(Project Committee 15)
DISCUSSION

Ms. Young reviewed the status of the Co-Generation and Switchgear Project. 
ACTION TAKEN 
Information only, no action required. 

12. Coastal Treatment Plant Tertiary System Upgrade Bid Review
DISCUSSION

Ms. Young reviewed the bid process for the Coastal Treatment Plant Tertiary System
Upgrade.  The apparent low bidder is S.S. Mechanical at a price of $883,211.00.  Ms.
Young noted that the bid was within budget and that SOCWA staff recommended the award
of the contract.  It was emphasized that the project cost was paid solely by the South Coast
Water District as the project is AWT related.  The present project Committee 15 members
supported the recommendation of the award of contract.
ACTION TAKEN
The Project Committee 15 members supported the recommendation of the award of contract
to S.S. Mechanical with the understanding that the project impacted only the South Coast
Water District as the project is AWT related.

Adjournment 
There being no further business, Mr. Peck adjourned the meeting at 9:23 a.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Engineering Committee 

148



Minutes – Engineering Committee Page 5 of 5 
September 13, 2018 

of September 13, 2018 and approved by the Board of Directors of the South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority. 

__________________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

149



Agenda Item
Budgeted:  No 
Budget amount: Not to Exceed $250,000 
Line Item:  PC12 
Legal Counsel Review: Yes 
Meeting Date:  11/1/2018 

TO: PC12 Members – MNWD & SMWD 

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

STAFF CONTACT: Amber Baylor, Director of Environmental Compliance 

SUBJECT:     PC12 Budget Adjustment for Basin Plan Amendment Work; Authorize the 
General Manager to Enter into a Contract with the State of California for 
Not to Exceed $750,000 for the Term November 1, 2018 to November 1, 
2021 Subject to SOCWA Approval in Each Fiscal Year of a Funding 
Budget (Exhibit B, Paragraph F) 

Summary 

On October 10, 2018, the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board (SDRWQCB) 
approved Resolution R9-2018-0123 which adopted the Prioritized List of Proposed Basin Plan 
Revisions Developed through the 2018 Basin Plan Triennial Review.  The Resolution allows for 
work to be completed for the Basin Plan Amendment to adjust Water Quality Objectives in the 
San Juan and Middle Trabuco hydrologic sub basins on behalf of the Moulton Niguel Water 
District (MNWD) and the Santa Margarita Water District (SMWD). 

Advisory Committee Review 

SOCWA and its member agencies MNWD and SMWD have worked together to approve 
resolutions in support of contracting with the State for the regulatory work on the Basin Plan 
revisions to move ahead. 

Legal and management staff at MNWD, SMWD, & SOCWA have reviewed the SWRCB 
contract and have approved the contract amounts through resolutions. 

Fiscal impact 

Annual contract to be budgeted not to exceed $250,000 per year.  MNWD & SMWD have 
agreed to fund the additional budgeted amount at a ratio of 25% to MNWD and 75% to SMWD.  
MNWD agrees to fund up to $42,000 prorated amount for FY 18-19 while SMWD agrees to 
fund $125,000 for the prorated amount for FY 18-19 to allow for the contract to begin 
November 1, 2018.  Funding for FY 19-20 and FY 20-21 will be $250,000 per FY pending 
SOCWA approval of the FY 2019-2021 Budgets.  

Recommendation 

Approve the additional budget of up to $250,000 per year via PC12 for FY 18-19 through FY 
20-21 subject to the budget approval for FY 2020 and 2021 and continuing concurrence to pay
for their shares as agreed to by MNWD and SMWD, with MNWD funding 25% and SMWD
funding 75% of service costs incurred and properly invoiced.

attachment(s) SOCWA & SWRCB Contract 
150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



Agenda Item     
Budgeted:  Yes 
Budget amount: $1,639,000 
Line Item:  PC2 &17 Line 5049 
Legal Counsel Review: Yes 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO: SOCWA Board of Directors    

FROM: Jim Burror, Director of Operations 

SUBJECT:   BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE 

BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this Plan update is to reevaluate and update the strategic direction of SOCWA’s 
Biosolids management program.  

The original Biosolids Management Strategic Plan for SOCWA was completed in 2002. The 
current version of the Biosolids Management Strategic Plan was adopted in 2006. The 2006 
adoption took place at a time of transition for SOCWA. In 2006, Biosolids management 
appeared unstable. This is because SOCWA’s primary contract, with Synagro in Corona, was 
no longer an option due to that facility closing, and other composting options in Riverside 
County were also pending closure or closing. 

Forward to 2018, the Biosolids market has been adding composting opportunities over the past 
few years. That said, the future of Biosolids management will be reshaped by the following 
outstanding issues:  

• Potential organics/Biosolids bans at landfills, starting as early as 2020, but fully
anticipated by 2025. This issue will eventually eliminate SOCWA’s current lowest cost
management option.

• New technology developments that could reshape Biosolids Management. SOCWA is in
the process of releasing a Request for Proposals for Innovative Biosolids Management
at the end of the year. It is anticipated that proposals will be presented to the Board of
Directors in April 2019.

A copy of the draft 2018 Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update is attached to this Report 
for review and comment.  The policy recommendations of the SOCWA Technical Advisory 
Committee are included in the attached draft Plan as summarized in Section 1.5.  Staff plans to 
update the Plan again in the coming year to include regulatory updates, any change in the 
industry/business opportunities and the results of the pending RPP. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

This is an informational item. 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Receive and file the 2018 Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update. 

165



BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE

November 2018 

166



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

i 

CONTENTS 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................. I 

1.1  Background ....................................................................................................i 
1.2  Biosolids Management at SOCWA ...................................................................i 
1.3  Regulatory Status and Trends ..........................................................................i 
1.4  Biosolids Disposal and Reuse Options ..............................................................ii 
1.5  Recommendations, Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions ..........iii 

2 INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................... 1 

3 BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT AT SOCWA ................................................................... 3 

3.1  Biosolids Handling at SOCWA .........................................................................3 
3.2  Biosolids Quantity ...........................................................................................6 
3.3  Biosolids Quality .............................................................................................8 
3.4  Historical Disposal Practices ............................................................................8 
3.5  Current Management Practices ........................................................................9 
3.6  Treatment Plant Issues ...................................................................................10 

4 REGULATORY STATUS AND TRENDS ..................................................................... 12 

5 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL AND REUSE OPTIONS ........................................................ 14 

5.1 Off-Site Disposal and Reuse Options ................................................................14 
5.1.1 Composting .................................................................................................15 
5.1.2 Landfill ........................................................................................................15 
5.1.3 Land Reclamation ........................................................................................17 
5.2  On-Site Treatment Solids Handling Options6 ....................................................17 

6 RECOMMENDATIONS, BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT GOALS AND 
IMPLEMENTING ACTIONS......................................................................................... 19 

6.1 Recommendations 19 
6.2  Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions 20 

167



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

ii 

FIGURES 
Figure 3-1 – SOCWA Facilities Map ......................................................................... 3 
Figure 3-2 – SOCWA Current Biosolids Disposal/Reuse Sites ................................. 4 
Figure 3-3 – Vendor Contracts for Biosolids Disposal/Reuse from 2016 to 2032 ...... 5 
Figure 3-4. Disposal/Reuse of Combined Biosolids Quantities from RTP and JBLTP 
During 2017 (wtpd) ................................................................................................... 6 

TABLES 
Table 1-1 Summary of SOCWA Biosolids Management Contracts ........................... ii 
Table 3-2 Biosolids Quantities (wtpd) ........................................................................ 7 
Table 3-3 Biosolids Quality ....................................................................................... 8 
Table 3-4 Current Biosolids Management Contracts ................................................. 9 
Table 5-1 Biosolids Management Options (by Volume) Reported by SCAP (2016) for 
Agencies in California ............................................................................................. 14 
Table 5-2 Daily average Biosolids deliveries during 2016, wet tons per day (wtpd). 15 
Table 5-3 Daily average Biosolids deliveries during 2017, wet tons per day (wtpd)..16 
Table 6-1 SOCWA Biosolids Management Goals and Implementing Actions ......... 21 

APPENDICES 
Appendix A  Current and Proposed Biosolids Regulations 
Appendix B  2016 SCAP Biosolids Trends Survey 
Appendix C  J.B. Latham Treatment Plant Facility Plan Technical Memorandum 8 
Appendix D  2013 Regional Treatment Plant Facility Plan Technical Memorandum 3-4 & 3-5 
Appendix E  2014 Santa Margarita Water District 3A Solids Report 

168



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority i 

1 Executive Summary 
1.1 Background 

The South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) and its member agencies currently 
produce approximately 100 wet tons of digested and dewatered Class B and sub-Class B 
Biosolids per day. SOCWA operated plants, the Regional Treatment Plant (RTP) and the J. B. 
Latham Treatment Plant (JBLTP), produce about 61 of those 100 wet tons with the remaining 39 
tons generated from treatment plants operated by Santa Margarita Water District, Irvine Ranch 
Water District, Trabuco County Water District and the City of San Clemente. This 2018 Biosolids 
Management Strategic Plan Update (“Plan Update”) focuses on Biosolids from RTP and JBLTP, 
referred to as “SOCWA Biosolids”. 
Biosolids management at SOCWA has been guided by the 2006 Biosolids Management Strategic 
Plan that was prepared in 2005. This 2018 Plan Update responds to recent changes in biomass 
disposal and reuse opportunities, particularly with an increase in the number of 3rd party 
composting contractors.  
Two issues dominate strategic planning for Biosolids management by SOCWA: 

• Possible ban on Biosolids disposal at landfills in California by 2025; and,
• Resolution of restrictions on land application of Class B Biosolids in California.

The purpose of this Plan Update is to review current Biosolids production and management by 
SOCWA, update regulatory information related to Biosolids management, and lay out a 
framework for implementing actions to manage Biosolids for the next several years. 

1.2 Biosolids Management at SOCWA 

Two classes of Biosolids are produced by SOCWA facilities: Class B from RTP, and Sub-Class 
B from JBLTP. Both classes of Biosolids are acceptable for composting and landfills. SOCWA 
Biosolids from RTP and JBLTP are presently disposed of through a combination of composting 
(82.3%) and landfilling (18.7%). Landfilling involves hauling, primarily by SOCWA staff, to the 
Prima Deshecha Landfill in San Juan Capistrano. Composting is presently performed off-site 
using contracted haul services to two composting vendors, one each in San Bernardino and Kern 
counties.  
SOCWA plans for capital improvement include the goal of upgrading the JBLTP Plant to reliably 
produce Class B Biosolids, possibly in the next 6 to 7 years.  

1.3 Regulatory Status and Trends 

California regulations requiring all organics (including Biosolids) be diverted from the landfills in 
the near future may impact SOCWA’s Biosolids management program in two ways: 

1. SOCWA may no longer be able to send Biosolids to landfills by 2025, eliminating the
lowest cost management option presently used for approximately 18.7% of SOCWA’s
Biosolids.

169



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority ii 

2. Composting of other organics diverted from landfills, primarily food wastes, has less
restrictive regulations than Biosolids and those compost products can be easier to market.
Therefore, composting companies may prefer to take landfill organics other than Biosolids
for composting and this may displace Biosolids from the composting market.

The Southern California Association of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) 2016 Biannual 
Biosolids Trends Survey Report concluded that 16% of California Biosolids are disposed of in 
landfills and landfill disposal is the generally accepted management method for smaller agencies 
in the state. The expected diversion of Biosolids and other organics from landfills to the compost 
market will greatly strain the demand for compost in the already limited compost end-use market. 
Unlike most other parts of the country, direct land application of Class A and B Biosolids is 
effectively banned in southern California either through individual county ordinances or through 
restrictive Conditional Use Permit conditions. 

1.4 Biosolids Disposal and Reuse Options 

The two “markets” for Biosolids disposal presently used by SCOWA, composting and landfilling, 
have been relatively stable for the past several years. Because of recent regulatory trends, it is 
expected that the landfilling of Biosolids in California could be phased out as early as 2025, 
although Biosolids generators are pushing back on the regulators to retain landfills as a backup 
option for Biosolids disposal. If implemented, this ban on Biosolids in California landfills could shift 
SOCWA’s management entirely to the compost market, or new markets not developed today, 
after 2025. 

Compost markets are much more diversified as to the material to be composted in contrast to the 
Biosolids based products.  This allows for extensive (and higher value) compost usage by 
horticultural and retail markets, as well as agriculture and land reclamation. Composting is 
expected to be a viable market for Biosolids disposal in the foreseeable future. There are also 
emerging technologies offering access to other markets like power and fuel markets. These 
markets have unlimited potential, but the costs for processes Biosolids to enter these markets 
remains twice as expensive as current Biosolids options. 

Table 1-1, below, provides a summary of SOCWA’s Biosolids management contracts and 
comparative costs.  

Table 1-1. Summary of SOCWA Biosolids Management Contracts 
Company-Option Biosolids Processing Cost per ton (based on a 

24 ton shipment) 
Synagro – SKIC Composting $69.97(a) 
Nursery Products – Hewes 
Composting Facility Composting $47.63 (RTP)(b) 

$53.13 (JBL)(b) 
SOCWA – OC Landfill Disposal (possibly ending in 

2025) 
$38.50(c) 

(a) CPI increases in the contract.
(b) Includes a $495 truck delivery fee, $27.00 per ton management fee, and a $88 trailer rental fee

for JBLTP and an average of 24 tons per truck load.
(c) Landfill tipping fee only. Staff labor is estimated to add $15 per ton without a delay at the landfill.

170



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority iii 

Alternative management options or markets such as biofuel, pellets/fertilizer, and deep well 
injection are all considered too expensive or impractical for SOCWA’s facilities at this time. Based 
on one of the responses to SOCWA’s 2016 RFP, land reclamation using Biosolids may represent 
a developing use for Biosolids. Land reclamation includes fire-ravaged lands, overgrazed 
rangelands, abandoned mine sites, and brownfields. 

1.5 Recommendations, Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions 

Recommendations 

Based on the continuing production of Sub-Class B and Class B products from JBLTP and RTP, 
respectively, the short, medium, and long-term recommendations and implementing actions for 
SOCWA are: 

Short-term 

• Maintain backup capacity at composting vendor(s) to accept Biosolids when Prima
Deshecha Landfill is unavailable because of weather prohibitions or hauling logistics.

Medium-term (prior to 2025) 

• Continue arrangements with at least three composting vendors with sufficient failsafe
backup capacity for two of the vendors to receive all of SOCWA’s Sub-Class B and Class
B products if one of the vendors fails for any reason.

• Cooperate with the County of Orange and other Biosolids producers to support the
development and application of regulatory measures that ensure comprehensive local
recycling and reuse options for Biosolids diverted from landfills in California.

Long-term 

SOCWA should maintain plans for on-site driers, and other on-site technologies, to allow for the 
full impact of locating on-site technologies at the constrained treatment plant sites to be 
understood (JBL and RTP). 

• The long-range facilities capital plans should include improvements to allow SOCWA to
reliably produce Class B Biosolids instead of Sub-Class B. This will better position
SOCWA for potential changes in Biosolids markets.

• SOCWA should maintain at least three disposal/reuse options for each treatment plant.

• SOCWA should continue to meld the overall Biosolids management costs for all the
Project Committees (PC’s). This is assuming that one plant is not causing additional
Biosolids management costs due to facility or treatment plant constraints.

Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions 

SOCWA’s Biosolids management goals were adopted in 2006 as a result of several 
workshops with the member agencies. The goals from the 2006 Management Plan were 

171



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority iv 

reviewed for this Plan Update and were found to be relevant and applicable for SOCWA today. 
The Biosolids management goals and Implementing actions are as follows: 

SOCWA Biosolids Management Goals Implementing Actions 
• Maintain multiple economical options. At

least three options are to be identified for
each treatment facility.

• SOCWA will maintain at least three disposal/recycling
vendors for each treatment plant.

• The program should maximize SOCWA
control. Options should include both reuse
and disposal within the County.

• SOCWA will maintain plans for on-site driers, and other
on-site technologies, to allow for the ability to locate on-
site technologies at the constrained treatment plants.

• The facility plans should include improvements to allow
SOCWA to reliably produce Class B Biosolids instead
of Sub-Class B. This will better position SOCWA for
potential changes in Biosolids markets.

• The selected program should not increase
impacts to the neighbors surrounding the
SOCWA treatment plants.

• Evaluate environmental impact for any operational or
physical changes to the facilities.

• The program should adhere to
environmentally sound practices.

• Evaluate environmental impact for any operational or
physical changes to the facilities.

• The beneficial reuse of Biosolids is to be
promoted; however, this goal does not
outweigh the need for a program that strives
for long-term economic responsibility

• Staff will stay in communication with the County of
Orange to discuss how SOCWA might participate in the
ongoing effort to plan for nearly all organics (including
Biosolids) to be diverted from the landfills by 2025.

• The Biosolids Management Strategic Plan
needs to remain flexible and should be
updated every two to five years based on
changes in the Biosolids markets.

• Update the Plan (1) every 5 years, (2) when events
occur that require the Plan to be updated to stay
relevant, or (3) one year prior to the issuance of a new
major Biosolids Request for Proposals.

172



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 1 

2 Introduction 
Biosolids management at SOCWA has been guided by Biosolids Management Strategic Plans 
since the preparation of the original plan in 2002.The most recent Plan update was performed in 
2006 and involved several workshops with the member agencies. Over the past 12 years SOCWA 
Biosolids have been managed through off-site composting and landfilling. This 2018 Plan Update 
is being developed at a time when the number of Biosolids management options is slowly 
improving, particularly with the increase in the number of 3rd party composting contractors. This 
increase in available contract composting vendors appears to be containing overall management 
costs.  

Two issues dominate mid- and long-term strategic planning for Biosolids management by 
SOCWA: 

• Possible ban on Biosolids disposal at landfills in California by 2025; and,

• Resolution of restrictions on land application of composted Class B Biosolids in California.

California regulations AB939 and AB32 require that all organics be diverted from the landfills in 
the near future. Each county in the State of California is in the process of developing plans to 
comply with these regulations. This will impact SOCWA’ Biosolids management program in two 
ways: 

• SOCWA may no longer be able to send Biosolids to landfills by 2025, eliminating
SOCWA’s lowest cost management option.

• A potential concern is the displacement of Biosolids by food wastes and other organic
materials being diverted from landfills to composting facilities.

• Composting vendors may be interested in “other” organics due to less stringent regulation
of composting and marketing of products that do not include Biosolids.

Unlike most other areas of the country, direct land application of Class A and B Biosolids is 
effectively banned in southern California either through individual county ordinances or through 
restrictive Conditional Use Permit conditions. Resolution of restrictions on land application of 
Class B Biosolids in California is essential for long-term Biosolids management planning. 

The purpose of this Plan Update is to review current Biosolids production and management by 
SOCWA, update regulatory information related to Biosolids management, and lay out a 
framework for implementing actions to manage Biosolids for the next 2 to 5 years. Documents 
incorporated by reference to complete this Plan Update include the following: 

• 2006 Biosolids Management Strategic Plan (SOCWA 2006).

• 2013 SOCWA Facility Master Plans (SOCWA 2014).

• Proposal information from the 2016 SOCWA Open Biosolids Management RFP.

173



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 2 

• Draft JBLTP Package B Planning Study (2011) – Biosolids Facility Planning Study for 3A
solids to potentially be treated at JBLTP.

• Southern California Association of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) (2016)
SCAP Biannual Biosolids Trends Survey Report.

This 2018 Plan Update includes a discussion of the following: 

• Biosolids Management at SOCWA

• Regulatory Status and Trends

• Biosolids Disposal and Reuse Options

• Recommendations, Biosolids Management Goals, & Implementing Actions

174



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 3 

3 Biosolids Management at SOCWA 
3.1 Biosolids Handling at SOCWA 

SOCWA performs solids treatment at two of its treatment plants: the J.B. Latham Treatment Plant 
(JBLTP) and the Regional Treatment Plant (RTP). The Biosolids are anaerobically digested at 
each of the plants.  The digested Biosolids are then dewatered by centrifuges and managed off 
site through composting and landfilling of Biosolids. Figure 3-1 shows the location of JBLTP and 
RTP, the two SOCWA facilities that produce Biosolids. 

Figure 3-1 – SOCWA Facilities Map 

Regional 
Treatment Plant 

J.B. Latham 
Treatment Plant 

175



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 4 

At the JBLTP and RTP plants, the dewatered Biosolids are discharged to 40 cubic yard trailers 
for hauling off-site. Over the past 10 years SOCWA Biosolids have been managed through off-
site composting and landfilling. Contractor truck-hauling is used to deliver Biosolids to composting 
vendors. SOCWA recently ended its own hauling to the landfill, determining that contract hauling 
would be more efficient. SOCWA owns the tractor and trailer equipment for the hauling operations 
to the local landfill. The locations of SOCWA Biosolids management sites are shown on Figure 
3-2.

Figure 3-2 – SOCWA Current Biosolids Disposal/Reuse Sites. 

In 2004, SOCWA signed a 10-year contract with Synagro that included up to two (2) five-year 
renewals. The Synagro contract was for composting in a facility in Kern County titled the South 
Kern Industrial Center (SKIC) composting facility. This contract guarantees a minimum shipment 
of 25 wet tons per day (wtpd) of SOCWA Biosolids to the SKIC facility, however it has no maximum 
limit so it provides 100% fail-safe back-up for all of SOWA’s Biosolids. The SOCWA Board 
approved the first five-year extension that carries the contract through the year 2020.  

In November 2016, SOCWA approved a contract with Nursery Products to compost Biosolids for 
five (5) years with up to two (2) five-year renewals. The Nursery Products contract has no 
minimum guarantees or maximum limit, so it provides 100% fail-safe back-up for all of SOCWA’s 
Biosolids.   

SOCWA currently has an agreement with the OC Waste and Recycling for up to 140 wtpd of both 
Class B and Subclass B Biosolids to the Prima Deshecha Landfill.  Although the Prima Deshecha 

176



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 5 

Landfill is theoretically capable of taking all of the daily SOCWA Biosolids production under its 
permits, landfill operational limits restrict Biosolids due to: 

• There are mixing requirements of 1 part (Biosolids) to 4 parts (Trash).
• Deliveries must be made before 11 a.m. to minimize odor complaints.
• Landfill operations cease during rainy weather and do not resume until the unloading area

is dry.
• No deliveries are allowed on weekends and holidays

Also, due to higher hauling costs, the contractor loads need to be full loads near 24 wet tons to 
be cost effective. Operationally, this is difficult to balance because one of the plants, JBL, has no 
storage facilities for Biosolids. Thus, actual landfill deliveries average approximately 11 wtpd, or 
approximately 18.7% of SOCWA’s Biosolids production. California regulatory objectives for 
diverting organics (including Biosolids) from landfills by 2025 may not allow the landfill disposal 
of Biosolids after that date. 

Figure 3-3 illustrates the status and timing of SOCWA’s current contracts and possible contract 
options for Biosolids disposal or reuse from January 2016 to 2032. 

Figure 3-3 – Vendor Contracts for Biosolids Disposal/Reuse from 2016 to 2032. 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Prima Deshecha Landfill

Synagro Compost

Nursery Products Compost

Contract

Option1

Option2

2016  2018 2020  2022  2024  2026  2028  2030  2032 

177



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 6 

3.2 Biosolids Quantity 

The quantity (wtpd) of SOCWA’s Biosolids exported for disposal/reuse for the past four years is 
presented in Table 3-1. Average wtpd Biosolids delivery for disposal/reuse for each month in 
2017 is presented in Figure 3-4.  

Table 3-1. SOCWA Biosolids Production and Deliveries for the Past Four Years (wtpd) 

Disposal/Reuse Vendor 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Orange County – Prima Deshecha Landfill 17.7 15.1 14.1 10.9 
Synagro – South Kern Compost Facility 25.0 25.2 25.3 25.5 
Nursery Products 19.7 20.7 21.9 25.4 

Total 62.4 61.0 61.3 61.8 

Figure 3-4. Disposal/Reuse of Combined Biosolids Quantities from RTP and 
JBLTP During 2017 (wtpd) 

Based on the Center for Demographic Research, at California State University, Fullerton, the 
areas served by SOCWA’s treatment plants are essentially built out and will see little, if any, 
population growth (CDR, 2016 Orange County Progress Report). Although the recent drought has 
seen wastewater flows drop about 10 percent per year for the last 5 years, the amount of the 
solids in the sewer has remained relatively unchanged. 

Because there are ongoing plans in the service area to expand recreational uses and intensify 
housing densities, for planning purposes the ultimate Biosolids quantities that SOCWA expects 
to be produced at the SOCWA facilities remains the same as in the 2006 Plan. Biosolids quantities 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

Nursury Products

Synagro

OC Prima Des. Landfill

178



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 7 

in Table 3-2, below, include the existing SOCWA Project Committee and JPA agreements and 
the ongoing Capital Improvement Program.  

Table 3-2 Biosolids Quantities (wtpd) 

Production JBLTP RTP Total 
Current (1) 22.6 39.2 61.8 

Ultimate (2)(3) 27.1 55.1 82.2 

Notes: 
(1) 2017 Biosolids Production
(2) Based on a 15% increase
(3) The ultimate quantity includes Coastal Treatment Plant (CTP) and

(El Toro Water District Water Reclamation Facility (ETWRF) solids
contributions.

179



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 8 

3.3 Biosolids Quality 

The quality of the SOCWA Biosolids compared to the Exceptional Quality (EQ) as per 40 CFR 
503 regulations is reported in Table 3-3. RTP meets the Class B requirements 
except for a few months during digester cleaning that happens approximately 
every five years. JBLTP Biosolids do not always meet Class B processing 
holding time requirements. The available digester volume at JBLTP does not 
reliably provide the required 15 days hydraulic detention time that is required 
to meet Class B, therefor SOCWA designates the Biosolids sub-Class B.  

Once the Capital digester upgrade projects are completed as part of Packages 
B and D, it is anticipated that there will be more than 15 days of solids 
detention time at JBLTP. Package B and D will be overhauling the solids 
processing facilities at JBL. This will include rehabilitating the DAFT’s, 
rehabilitating the older Digesters’ 3 and 4, replacing above and below ground piping systems, and 
revamping supplemental heating boiler system. This work will be completed over the next 5 years. 
The inclusion of a new digester will be based on what amount of solids tributary to 3A will be 
processed at JBL. This decision is anticipated by the spring of 2019. The Package B project is 
nearing construction. The Package D project will start once the determination is made as to 
whether a digester will be included in the next project. 

As shown in Table 3-3, all of the Biosolids meet the requirements for Exceptional Quality (EQ per 
40 CFR 503). EQ is a prerequisite for Biosolids to be further processed and meet Class A 
requirements. Therefore, once SOCWA’s Biosolids are composted they meet the Class A and EQ 
requirements and allow the Biosolids to be used for a wider range of reuse options. 

Table 3-3 Biosolids Quality 
Quality per 40 CFR 503 JBLTP RTP 
Class B No Yes 
Class A No No 
Exceptional Quality Yes* Yes* 
* Sub-Class B and Class B Biosolids from SOCWA facilities have low levels

of metals and other constituents that meet the designation of Exceptional
Quality when composted.

3.4 Historical Disposal Practices 

Disposal of Biosolids by SOCWA has historically been done at the County of Orange Prima 
Deshecha Landfill within the City of San Juan Capistrano. During the 1980’s the South East 
Regional Reclamation Authority (SERRA, one of the predecessor agencies to SOCWA) disposed 
of Biosolids in Los Angeles County Sanitation District landfills and the BKK landfill in West Covina. 

The trend away from landfilling as the sole disposal method began in the early 1990’s. At that 
time solids from the JBLTP were periodically hauled to the SMWD’s Chiquita Water Reclamation 
Facility for a pilot compost project. This pilot facility operated for approximately one year, after 
which the operation was terminated due to the lack of compost demand.  

For landfill 
disposal or 
compost reuse 
purposes, there is 
currently no cost 
difference 
between Class B 
and Sub-Class B. 

180



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 9 

The first contract with a private company for the hauling and disposal of Biosolids was established 
in the mid-1990’s. A subsequent contract was signed in 1997 for the hauling of Biosolids to the 
recycling compost facility in Corona. This facility was subsequently acquired by Synagro.  

Another contract was approved in 2000 with Synagro for the land application of Biosolids. 
SOCWA also entered into a contract with the firm Waste Markets in 2001 to provide a back-up 
landfilling option in the State of Arizona.  

Synagro also established a highly mechanized composing facility in the mid-2000’s in Kern 
County. After completion of the 2006 Plan, SOCWA contracted with Synagro to manage a 
minimum of 25 wtpd at the facility for 10 years with two optional 5-year extensions. The first five 
(5) year option was approved by the Board in late 2015 to take advantage of an offer by Synagro
to reduce Biosolids management costs by approving the renewal option early.

In 2013, a new composting vendor responded to SOCWA’s Biosolids Management RFP, Nursery 
Products, located in San Bernardino County. The outcome of the 2013 RFP was a two (2) year 
contract with Nursery Products that included three (3) optional annual renewals.  In 2016, SOCWA 
issued another Biosolids Management RFP, Nursery Products was also the most responsible and 
responsive proposer for that procurement. The outcome of the 2016 RFP was a five (5) year 
contract with Nursery Products that included two (2) optional five (5) year renewals. 

Synagro has recently purchased Nursery Products, however contractual arrangements remain 
unchanged. 

3.5 Current Management Practices 

SOCWA currently maintains contracts for composting with Synagro and Nursery Products. 
SOCWA also maintains a contract with OC Waste and Recycling for disposal in the Prima 
Deshecha Landfill. The current cost for each of the management option is contained in Table 3-
4. 

Table 3-4. Current Biosolids Management Contracts 

Company-Option Biosolids Processing Cost per ton (based on a 24 
ton shipment) 

Synagro – SKIC Composting $69.97(a) 
Nursery Products – Hewes 
Composting Facility Composting $47.63 (RTP)(b) 

$53.13 (JBL)(b) 

SOCWA – OC Landfill Disposal (possibly ending in 
2025) $38.50(c) 

(a) CPI increases in the contract.
(b) Includes a $495 truck delivery fee, $27.00 per ton management fee, and a $88 trailer rental fee for JBLTP

and an average of 24 tons per truck load.
(c) Landfill tipping fee only. Staff labor is estimated to add $15 per ton without a delay at the landfill.

181



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 10 

3.6 Treatment Plant Issues 

J. B. Latham Treatment Plant 

There are several issues at JBLTP that can hinder operations and Biosolids management. These 
include: 

1) JBLTP does not currently produce Class B rated Biosolids due to a lack of digester
detention time. This limits the currently available disposal methods to landfilling and
composting.

2) JBLTP loads Biosolids directly into hauling trailers because there are not loading hoppers.
Loading a trailer directly can take up to 8 hours and can be challenging to meet scheduled
delivery windows. A stationary trailer is difficult to evenly or fully load so that haul-cost per
ton can be minimized. These issues require additional attention to the loading process.
Very often staff has to shovel 1 to 2 tons of Biosolids to minimize uneven loads and
under/overweight vehicles.

3) The plant has limited available storage volume and storage is only in the digesters. The
JBLTP digesters can hold approximately 2 days of sludge. One week of storage capacity
would be desirable to handle interruptions in hauling operations, equipment failures, rain
delays at disposal sites, and other potential interruptions.

4) JBLTP has also started to have issues maintaining 2 of the 3 centrifuges. These larger
units have a higher capacity than the third unit and allow for the processing of solids
without silo storage facilities (direct trailer loading with operator attendants). Carollo
Engineers recently assessed these units and recommended that their replacement be
scheduled within the 10-year capital improvement program. O&M staff is working closely
with the manufacture to better understand SOCWA’s actual timeline for replacement.
Currently, the issues for the centrifuges includes:

• Key parts are fabricated as ordered leading to long lead times (up to 18 weeks) for
non-wear parts – SOCWA is assessing this change and considering adding non-
wear spare parts to its inventory at the plant.

• Wear parts from the manufacturer vendors continues to change leading to errors
in orders by the Centrifuge manufacturer from its suppliers – SOCWA is working
with the Centrifuge Manufacture to maintain an updated list of wear parts and
considering adding spare parts to its inventory at the plant.

• Balancing services have been relocated from California to Texas – SOCWA is now
planning to include this additional time and expense when scheduling major
overhauls that include offsite balancing.

Regional Treatment Plant 

There are several issues at RTP that can hinder operations and Biosolids management. These 
include: 

1) RTP does produce Class B rated Biosolids, but can fall into Sub-class B for a few months

182



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 11 

during digester cleaning operations which occurs approximately every five years. 

2) The plant has limited available storage volume. The RTP cake hoppers can store about
one days’ worth of Biosolids. The RTP digesters can hold approximately 2 days of sludge.
The total emergency storage is about 3 days. Similar to JBLTP, one week of storage
capacity would be desirable to handle interruptions in hauling operations, equipment
failures, rain delays at disposal sites, and other potential interruptions.

183



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 12 

4 Regulatory Status and Trends 
The purpose of this section is to provide a review and, where applicable, update any recent 
changes to existing and proposed federal, state and regional regulatory requirements governing 
the reuse and disposal of Biosolids by SOCWA. 

The management of wastes and Biosolids is highly regulated. Regulations cover all aspects of 
the processing and handling of wastes, including Biosolids based products. SOCWA staff 
continues to participate on the SCAP Biosolids Committee. This resource group continues to 
focus on all the developments related to new regulations affecting Biosolids management.  

SOCWA’s use of landfill disposal and contract composting to Class A quality for reuse is expected 
to remain more or less stable from now until 2025. Statewide measures to divert organics from 
landfills have the potential to impact Biosolids disposal in landfills after 2025. The California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) is currently in the process of evaluating what 
CalRecycle’s intent is with respect to Biosolids disposal, but, for planning purposes, it is assumed 
that after 2025, SOCWA will no longer be able to dispose of its Biosolids in California landfills.  

California regulations requiring all organics (including Biosolids) be diverted from the landfills in 
the near future may impact SOCWA’s Biosolids management program in two ways: 

1. SOCWA may no longer be able to send Biosolids to landfills by 2025, eliminating the
lowest cost management option presently used for approximately 18.7% of SOCWA’s
Biosolids (Estimated increase would be $10 wtpd for landfilled materials or about $50,000
per year).

2. Composting of other organics diverted from landfills, primarily food wastes, has less
restrictive regulations than Biosolids and those compost products can be easier to market.
Therefore, composting companies prefer to take landfill organics other than Biosolids for
composting and this may displace Biosolids from the composting market.

The 2016 SCAP Biosolids survey concluded that 16% of California Biosolids are disposed of in 
landfills and landfill disposal is the generally accepted management method for smaller agencies 
in the state. The expected diversion of Biosolids and other organics from landfills to the compost 
market will greatly strain the demand for compost in the already limited compost end-use market. 
Unlike most other areas of the country, direct land disposal of Class A and B Biosolids is 
effectively banned in southern California either through individual county ordinances or through 
restrictive Conditional Use Permit conditions. Resolution of restrictions on land application of 
Class A and B Biosolids in California is essential for long-term Biosolids management planning. 
The following is a summary of important regulations affecting Biosolids management today: 

1) In 2017, the City of Los Angeles and Kern County settled their long-standing litigation over
a potential ban of Biosolids in Kern County. The settlement allows for Class A compost
Biosolids application in unincorporated areas of Kern County.

2) There appears to be a relaxing of regulations in some areas of unincorporated San
Bernardino County. This is allowing for the composting and application of Class A
composted Biosolids.

184



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 13 

3) Organics will be banned from the local landfills (including the Prima Deshecha Landfill) in
stages through 2025 under – greenhouse gas reduction legislation AB969 and AB341.
The first step is a 50% reduction by 2020 and 75% reduction by 2025. The baseline year
for calculating the diversions is 2013.

A complete assessment of each of the current and proposed regulations is contained in Appendix 
A. [** Exhibit in Preparation]

185



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 14 

5 Biosolids Disposal and Reuse Options 
5.1 Off-Site Disposal and Reuse Options 

The SCAP (2016) biannual Biosolids trends survey report provides a summary of the disposal 
and reuse options employed by publicly owned treatment works in California. As shown in Table 
5-1, the most prevalent technology or disposal method utilized by reporting agencies in 2015/16
was: composting (48%); followed by land application (35%); landfills (16%); and mine reclamation
(1%). Disposal or reuse using biofuel, pellets/fertilizer, and deep well injection technologies were
all reported as insignificant by California agencies.

Furthermore, Table 5-1 shows that agencies use of these disposal/reuse methods changed 
significantly from that reported in 2014. Landfilling usage remains the same as in 2014. In 
comparing 2014 results with 2015/16, the volume percentage for composting significantly 
increased while the percentage volume employing land application decreased.  

Table 5-1. Biosolids Management Options (by Volume) Reported by SCAP (2016) 
for Agencies in California 

2015/16 2014 
Composting 48% 32% 
Land Application 35% 51% 
Landfill 16% 12% 
Land (Mine) Reclamation 1% 0% 
*Biofuel 0% 0% 
*Pellets/Fertilizer < 0% 2% 
*Deep Well Injection < 0% 3% 

*  Considered non-viable for Class B and Subclass B
Biosolids produced by SOCWA facilities.
These technologies/markets are too expensive or
unsuitable for Class B and Subclass B Biosolids.

Treatment technologies, such as heat drying or incineration, can provide greater independence 
for SOCWA by reducing the amount of Biosolids to be removed from the plant sites. However, 
these alternatives are highly regulated and costly. Because the air basin is non-attainment for 
many of the pollutants associated with Biosolids treatment technologies, permitting in the South 
Coast Air Quality Management District (AQMD) has proven difficult. 

The costs from the 2016 SCAP Biosolids Survey on the Biosolids management costs by product 
market are included in Table 5-2, below.  The reported costs represent a total cost that reflects 
both the gate fee and the transportation cost. The 2015/16 average of the total management 
rate/ton reported was calculated to be $49.94/ton, which is a decrease of $4.00/ton from the 2014 
average rate.  

186



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 15 

Table 5-2. SCAP (2016) Biosolids Management Option Cost Summary 
Management 

Options 
Agencies 
Reporting 

2015/16 
Volume 

(Wet Tons) 

Total Mgmt 
Cost/Ton 

Range 

Avg. Total 
Mgmt 

Cost/Ton 

2015/16 
Percent 
of Total 

*Composting 16 858,667 $32.26 to 
$86.00 

$54.59 47% 

*Landfill 14 279,887 $8 to $72 $55.66 15% 
Land 
Application 

13 627,909 $36 to $65 $49.79 35% 

Land (Mine) 
Reclamation 

1 11,782 $48 $48 1% 

*Disposal/reuse methods presently used by SOCWA.

5.1.1 Composting 

Contract composting is the method by which SOCWA presently achieves a Class A Biosolids 
product that can be usefully reused or recycled in a variety of end-use markets. The costs for 
composting as a whole have seen a decrease because new vendors have become available over 
the past several years. The composting sites that came online in the past few years include 
Nursery Products site in San Bernardino, the City of Los Angeles site in Kern County, and the Los 
Angeles County Sanitation District site in Kern County. 

SOCWA has historically negotiated contracts with private contractors for the off-site disposal 
and/or the beneficial reuse of Biosolids. This has been a reliable and cost effective approach to 
Biosolids management. Maintaining a minimum of three treatment/reuse/disposal vendors for 
each SOCWA treatment facility provides security to continued contracting with private firms. 

With the resolution of litigation in Kern County (Settlement agreement in the cases entitled City of 
Los Angeles et al. v. County of Kern., and County Sanitation District No. 2 of Los Angeles County 
et al. v. County of Kern. Tulare County Superior Court Case Nos. VCU242057 and VCU189564 
(Case No. VCU242057) - 8/23/2017), the long-term cost prospects for contracted composting 
services are positive at this time. Several new compost vendors have come to the southern 
California market over the past few years indicating a strengthening market. A potential concern 
for long term access to composting vendors is the displacement of Biosolids by food wastes and 
other organic materials being diverted from landfills to composting facilities. Composting vendors 
may be interested in “other” organics due to less stringent regulation of composting and marketing 
of products that do not include Biosolids. 

5.1.2 Landfill 

SOCWA currently has an agreement with the OC Waste and Recycling for up to 140 wtpd of both 
Class B and Subclass B Biosolids to the Prima Deshecha Landfill.  The available disposal capacity 
at the landfill is theoretically more than SOCWA’s daily Biosolids production.  However, there are 
three operational limits to this disposal method, as follows: 

• The landfill is closed during wet weather. Biosolids need to be diverted to composting
facilities.

187



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 16 

• The disposal is limited to a ratio of 10 units of trash per 1 unit of Biosolids. Biosolids trucks
sometimes need to wait at the landfill while sufficient trash is delivered to the landfill to
maintain the 10:1 ratio.

• The Biosolids must be delivered before 11:00 am to minimize odor complaints from the
landfill’s adjacent homeowners. (New issue starting in 2017)

Although the Prima Deshecha Landfill is theoretically capable of taking all of the daily SOCWA 
Biosolids production, the operational limits summarized above create a practical limit of 
approximately 20 wtpd. During 2017, for example, rainy weather during January limited deliveries 
to the landfill to an average of 4.9 wtpd, with a maximum for the year of only 19.6 wtpd average 
in June. During January, the Biosolids that could not be delivered to the landfill were diverted to 
Nursery Products for composting. Therefore, the landfill cannot be considered to provide any fail-
safe backup for Biosolids if either or both of the compost facilities become unavailable. 

Table 5-3. Daily average Biosolids deliveries during 2017, wet tons per day (wtpd). 
Destination Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Avg % 

Nursery Products 36.5 28.3 23.0 20.5 19.7 20.6 19.2 21.3 21.1 26.2 31.9 36.9 25.4 41.0 
RTP 16.2 7.9 5.7 7.3 5.5 6.4 4.8 6.3 6.0 8.2 12.4 12.2 8.2 13.3 

JBL 20.3 20.4 17.3 13.2 14.2 14.2 14.4 15.0 15.1 18.0 19.5 24.7 17.2 27.7 

Synagro 24.6 30.5 26.0 25.3 26.1 24.3 25.3 25.2 24.5 24.5 25.3 25.3 25.6 41.3 
RTP 24.6 30.5 26.0 25.3 26.1 24.3 25.3 25.2 24.5 24.5 25.3 25.3 25.6 41.3 

JBL 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

OC Prima 
Deshecha Landfill 4.9 6.0 18.4 18.2 16.0 19.6 16.6 14.8 13.5 3.4 0.2 0.0 11.0 18.7 

RTP 2.2 1.6 10.9 8.4 7.4 10.9 8.3 7.2 6.9 2.2 0.0 0.0 5.5 8.9 

JBL 2.7 4.4 7.5 9.8 8.6 8.6 8.3 7.6 6.6 1.2 0.2 0.0 5.5 8.8 

Total wtpd 66.0 64.8 67.4 64.0 61.8 64.5 61.1 61.3 59.1 54.1 57.4 62.2 62.0 100 

SOCWA continues to balance the hauling of Biosolids to the Prima Deshecha Landfill with the 
need to ensure that contracted haulers delivering to the two composting vendors have the 
maximum amount of material that can be placed in their trailers. This is because the Prima 
Deshecha Landfill is the lowest cost option but SOCWA’s costs for delivery to the composting 
facilities increase on a per ton basis if the contractor’s trucks are not full. This is because 
SOCWA’s compost vendor pricing is based on full loads. 

SOCWA recently added a hauling contract to the landfill to fill in for staff vacancies, planned 
vacations, determining that contract hauling would be more efficient. SOCWA owns the tractor 
and trailer equipment for the hauling operations. 

It is unclear what the long-term cost impact will be from greenhouse emission regulations requiring 
diversions of organics from landfills. It is also unclear how Biosolids will be affected by the 
diversion requirements.  

188



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 17 

Organics from Biosolids are already below the 75% diversion requirement based on the 
2013 baseline. Again, this is because several agencies (Orange County Sanitation District 
and City of San Clemente) stopped sending Biosolids to the Prima Deshecha Landfill in 
2016.  However, at this time, it is unclear how the landfill operator will calculate organics 
diversions and apply them to Biosolids. SOCWA staff has had several meetings with 
County staff and they appear to be planning for on-site management (composting or 
digestion) at the landfill to maintain revenues from tipping fees. Composing and digestion 
projects will likely increase tipping fees unless grants, or other funds, lower the lifecycle 
cost of the project. 

Staff will continue to track the impact of the proposed Biosolids landfill diversions as it 
develops. Presently, it seems that California’s goals for greenhouse gas reduction and 
diversion of organics from landfills is in conflict with the increasingly strict regulations 
preventing direct land application of Class B Biosolids. For composting to be an effective 
alternative to landfilling, the end-use market for compost would have to be greatly 
increased with sufficient demand to handle the complete diversion of organics from the 
landfills and subsequent use as compost.  

5.1.3 Land Reclamation 

The 2016 request for proposals yielded a new potential market for SOCWA’s Biosolids: 
Land Reclamation. Holloway Environmental proposed lime stabilization to Class A 
followed by land reclamation at a mining site that is being reclaimed. The reclamation 
process will restore the site to more natural conditions. The site is outside Buttonwillow, 
California. The management option utilizes Biosolids in an area that was previously mined 
for Gypsum. This proposal also involved mixing Biosolids with auto shredder wastes. Auto 
shredder wastes are known to contain heavy metals and polychlorinated biphenyl’s (PCB) 
and, upon review, the proposal was rejected because SOCWA was unwilling to assume 
the environmental liability associated with such a project.  
Nevertheless, the use of Biosolids for land reclamation may represent a developing 
market. Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD; 2017) reported that land reclamation 
opportunities in Southern California can be categorized as follows: fire‐ravaged lands, 
overgrazed rangelands, abandoned mine sites, and brownfields. U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) Region IX supports mine reclamation with Biosolids, but these 
projects are few, and typically require a large quantity of Biosolids over a short period. As 
is described by OCSD, research is being proposed or is under way to support use of 
Biosolids in fire‐ravaged lands and overgrazed rangelands (e.g., Marin Carbon Project). 
Outcomes of these research projects are expected to expand opportunities to use 
Biosolids in those applications. In particular, the Marin Carbon Project work will use both 
Class A and Class B Biosolids, thus potentially opening up markets for SOCWA’s Class 
B Biosolids products. 

5.2 On-Site Treatment Solids Handling Options 

The potential options for processing Biosolids on-site at SOCWA facilities have been the subject 
of several recent and one ongoing study. 

189



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 18 

These recent reports are incorporated by reference and include the following: 

1) 2013 J.B. Latham Treatment Plant Facility Plan – Technical Memorandum 8-8 – Appendix
C (Carollo/HDR 2013)

2) 2013 Regional Treatment Plant Facility Plan – Technical Memorandum 3-4 and 3-5 –
Appendix D (Carollo/HDR 2013)

3) 2014 Santa Margarita 3A Solids Report – Appendix E (Santa Margarita Water District Staff
Report 2014)

There is an ongoing project to optimize the JBLTP solids facility following the recent report by 
SMWD to increase reclamation at 3A but send all the wastewater solids to JBLTP. This report is 
being developed under Package B of the Ten-Year Capital Improvement Program. This study will 
be completed in the Spring of 2019. A major component of this study will be considerations for 
JBLTP to be able to meet Class B time retention requirements. 

The recommendations and conclusions from the past and more recent studies are that SOCWA 
should continue to optimize wastewater treatment and produce solids that will either be landfilled, 
or further processed off site to produce marketable products. This is based on the cost and/or 
limited experience with emerging technologies to further process Biosolids on-site. It is 
recommended that staff update the previous study to locate a dryer at the Regional Treatment 
Plant to better understand potential costs that would be incurred if the Biosolids markets are 
severely interrupted. 

190



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 19 

6 Recommendations, Biosolids Management Goals 
& Implementing Actions 

6.1 Recommendations 

Based on the continuing production of Sub-Class B and Class B products from JBLTP and RTP, 
respectively, the short-, medium, and long-term recommendations for SOCWA are as follows: 

Short-term 

• Maintain backup capacity at composting vendor(s) to accept Biosolids when Prima
Deshecha Landfill is unavailable because of weather prohibitions or hauling logistics.

Medium-term (prior to 2025) 

• Continue arrangements with at least three composting vendors with sufficient failsafe
backup capacity for two of the vendors to receive all of SOCWA’s Sub-Class B and Class
B products if one of the vendors fails for any reason.

• Cooperate with the County of Orange and other Biosolids producers to support the
development and application of regulatory measures that ensure comprehensive local
recycling and reuse options for Biosolids diverted from landfills in California.

• Maintain a mix of contracts that allows for periodic RFP’s and long term sustainability by:

o Limiting longer-term guarantee contracts to one.
o Avoiding multiple contracts expiring at the same time.
o Avoiding contracts with a minimum daily or annual tonnage.

• Through periodic Requests for Proposals (RFP) rely on contracted off site services to
manage Biosolids and maintain a pulse on changes in the market (every 2 to 5 years).

Long-term 

• SOCWA should maintain plans for on-site driers, and other on-site technologies, to allow
for the full impact of locating on-site technologies at the constrained treatment plant sites
to be understood (JBL and RTP).

• The long-range facilities capital plans should include improvements to allow SOCWA to
reliably produce Class B Biosolids instead of Sub-Class B. This will better position
SOCWA for potential changes in Biosolids markets.

• SOCWA should maintain at least three disposal/reuse options for each treatment plant.

• SOCWA should continue to meld the overall Biosolids management costs for all the
Project Committees (PC’s). This is assuming that one plant is not causing additional
Biosolids management costs due to facility or treatment plant constraints.

191



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 20 

6.2 Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions 

SOCWA’s Biosolids management goals were adopted in 2006 as a result of several workshops 
with the member. The goals from the 2006 Management Plan were reviewed for this Plan Update 
and were found to be relevant and applicable for SOCWA today. The Biosolids management 
goals are as follows:  

• Maintain multiple economical options for disposal/reuse. At least three options are to be
identified for each treatment facility.

• The program should maximize SOCWA control. Options should include both reuse and
disposal within the County.

• The selected program should not increase impacts to the neighbors surrounding the
SOCWA treatment plants.

• The program should adhere to environmentally sound practices.

• The beneficial reuse of Biosolids is to be promoted; however, this goal does not outweigh
the need for a program that strives for long term economic responsibility.

• The Biosolids Management Strategic Plan needs to remain flexible and should be updated
every two years to reflect the rapidly changing Biosolids market.

This 2018 Plan Update is being developed at a time when the number of Biosolids management 
options is slowly increasing. This increase appears to be containing overall management costs. 
However, Californian regulations will be requiring that all organics be diverted from the landfills in 
the near future. Each county in the State of California is in the process of developing their plan(s) 
to comply with these regulations: AB939 and AB32. This will impact SOCWA’ Biosolids 
management program in two ways: 

• SOCWA may no longer be able to send Biosolids to landfills by 2025, eliminating
SOCWA’s lowest cost management option.

• Biosolids management companies are attempting to take landfill organics for composting
and this may displace Biosolids from the composting market. Composting of landfill
organics, primarily food waste, has less restrictive regulations than Biosolids and can be
easier to market.

This 2018 Plan Update may be recommended for updates and revisions upon receiving proposals 
from respondents to SOCWA’s upcoming Biosolids Innovation Request for Proposals (RFP). This 
RFP is currently being prepared by Carollo Engineers for issuance towards the end of 2018. 
Resulting proposals are anticipated to be presented to the Board by April 2019.  

In light of these existing and coming challenges, the goal of this Plan Update is to maintain a 
sustainable, reliable, and economical program to manage Biosolids. The Plan Update 
recommendations summarized allow several implementing actions that will support SOCWA’s 
Biosolids Management Goals as summarized in Table 6-1, below:  

192



2018 SOCWA Biosolids Management Strategic Plan Update 

South Orange County Wastewater Authority 21 

Table 6-1. SOCWA Biosolids Management Goals and Implementing Actions 
SOCWA Biosolids Management 

Goals 
Implementing Actions 

• Maintain multiple economical options for
disposal/reuse. At least three options are to
be identified for each treatment facility.

• SOCWA will maintain at least three disposal/recycling
vendors for each treatment plant.

• The program should maximize SOCWA
control. Options should include both reuse
and disposal within the County.

• SOCWA will maintain sufficient space and plans for on-
site driers, and other on-site technologies, to allow
location of on-site technologies at the constrained
treatment plants.

• The facility plans should include improvements to allow
SOCWA to reliably produce Class B Biosolids instead
of Sub-Class B. This will better position SOCWA for
potential changes in Biosolids markets.

• The selected program should not increase
impacts to the neighbors surrounding the
SOCWA treatment plants.

• Evaluate environmental impact for any operational or
physical changes to the facilities.

• The program should adhere to
environmentally sound practices.

• Evaluate environmental impact for any operational or
physical changes to the facilities.

• The beneficial reuse of Biosolids is to be
promoted; however, this goal does not
outweigh the need for a program that strives
for long-term economic responsibility

• Staff will stay in communication with the County of
Orange to discuss how SOCWA might participate in the
ongoing effort to plan for nearly all organics (including
Biosolids) to be diverted from the landfills by 2025.

• Staff will update the Board of Directors with the results
of the Biosolids Innovation RFP.

• The Biosolids Management Strategic Plan
needs to remain flexible and should be
updated every two to five years based on
changes in the Biosolids markets.

• Update the Plan (1) every 5 years, (2) when events
occur that require the Plan to be updated to stay
relevant, or (3) one year prior to the issuance of a new
major Biosolids Request for Proposals.

193



Appendix A 
To be included with the final report. 

194



Agenda Item
Meeting Date:  November 1,  2018 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations 

Attached are staff updates for the State Audit Response Schedule. 

Recommended Action 

The Board will be requested to receive and file the Monthly Progress Report on State Audit 
Recommendations – State Audit Response Schedule. 

195



SO
CW

A 
St

at
e 

Au
di

t R
es

po
ns

e 
Sc

he
du

le
 

Pa
ge

 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l A
ct

io
ns

 to
 Im

pl
em

en
t 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
Sc

he
du

le
/R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 S

ta
ff 

Fi
lin

g 
Da

te
 

16
 

Fi
ni

sh
 In

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
in

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
ca

sh
 b

al
an

ce
s p

er
 

au
di

te
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 

(a
)

Co
m

pl
et

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

of
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 in
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

ca
sh

ba
la

nc
es

 to
 a

ud
ite

d 
fin

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

.
(b

)
De

ve
lo

p 
a 

m
et

ho
d 

th
at

 is
 a

gr
ee

ab
le

to
 m

em
be

rs
 fo

r a
llo

ca
tin

g 
ad

di
tio

n a
l

ca
sh

 to
 th

e 
cr

ed
it 

of
 m

em
be

rs
:

(i)
Co

ns
id

er
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

to
 m

em
be

rs
ba

se
d 

on
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
to

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ca

sh
(ii

)
Im

pl
em

en
t i

m
pr

ov
ed

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r

m
em

be
r c

as
h

(ii
i)

Pr
ov

id
e 

m
on

th
ly

 re
po

rt
s o

f
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ca
sh

 b
al

an
ce

s t
o 

m
em

be
rs

 

(a
)P

re
pa

re
 re

su
lts

 o
f

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
re

po
rt

, a
nd

di
sc

us
s w

ith
 F

in
an

ce
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 B
oa

rd
(b

)C
as

h 
Ro

ll 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
re

su
lts

di
sc

us
se

d 
Fi

na
nc

e
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 B
oa

rd
 o

f
D i

re
ct

or
s A

pr
il,

 2
01

8
(i)

Bo
ar

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
by

 Ju
ne

, 2
01

8
(ii

)
U

nd
er

w
ay

(ii
i)

U
nd

er
w

ay

R e
sp

on
sib

le
:  

Fi
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ro
lle

r 

(a
)T

o 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
:

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

18
 –

Su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 S

ta
te

 9
/2

0/
18

fo
r 6

 m
o.

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

(b
)(i

)T
o 

be
 C

om
pl

et
ed

:
Se

pt
em

be
r, 

20
18

 –
 F

CM
di

re
ct

ed
 st

af
f t

o 
pr

ov
id

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 to

al
lo

ca
te

 a
nd

 to
 m

ee
t w

ith
Ag

en
cy

 F
in

an
ce

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 to
re

vi
ew

, m
ee

tin
g 

pe
nd

in
g

ea
rly

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

8 
–

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

Bo
ar

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
an

d 
de

te
rm

in
e 

fin
al

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

op
tio

n 
by

21
/3

1/
18

.
(ii

)2
01

5-
16

 C
as

h 
Ro

ll
Fo

rw
ar

d 
w

as
 d

ist
rib

ut
ed

 to
Bo

ar
d 

Ap
ril

, 2
01

8;
 2

01
6-

17
to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

Fi
na

nc
e

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 M

ay
, 2

01
8 

-
Do

ne
(ii

i)C
om

pl
et

e 
20

17
-1

8 
up

da
te

an
d 

Im
pl

em
en

t m
on

th
ly

up
da

te
s w

ith
 Ju

ly
 2

01
8

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
s

(p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

at
 1

0/
20

18
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 fo
r

re
vi

ew
 &

 a
pp

ro
va

l)

196



Pa
ge

 1
 

Pa
ge

 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ts
 to

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

Pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

Sc
he

du
le

/R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 S
ta

ff 
Fi

lin
g 

Da
te

 

19
 

SO
CW

A 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
 

sh
ou

ld
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t J
PA

 to
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 
st

at
e 

w
he

th
er

 m
em

be
rs

 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

sp
on

sib
le

 fo
r 

SO
CW

A 
re

tir
em

en
t 

be
ne

fit
s 

SO
CW

A 
sh

ou
ld

 in
fo

rm
 p

la
n 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

. 
Be

gi
n 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 JP
A 

Re
vi

sio
ns

 w
ith

 a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

f 
SO

CW
A 

Co
un

se
l b

y 
Ju

ly
, 

20
18

 

Su
bm

it 
to

 A
ge

nc
ie

s f
or

 
ap

pr
ov

al
, J

ul
y,

 2
01

9 

R e
sp

on
sib

le
:  

GM
/S

O
CW

A 
Co

un
se

l 

To
 b

e 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

: 
Se

pt
em

be
r, 

20
19

 

28
 

De
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
 a

 
tim

el
in

e 
w

ith
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
de

ad
lin

es
 fo

r c
om

pl
et

in
g 

ea
ch

 o
f i

ts
 p

la
nn

ed
 y

ea
r-

en
d 

ta
sk

s 

i.
Pr

ep
ar

e 
a 

po
lic

y 
re

qu
iri

ng
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 in
te

rn
al

co
nt

ro
l d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s w

ith
in

 si
x

m
on

th
s o

f i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

by
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r
ii.

De
ve

lo
p 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

in
cl

ud
in

g 
st

ep
-b

y-
st

ep
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
iii

.
Am

en
d 

po
lic

y 
on

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

ts
to

 sp
ec

ify
 th

at
 S

O
CW

A 
sh

ou
ld

en
te

r i
nt

o 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 o
f a

t
le

as
t 5

 y
ea

rs
 w

ith
 c

om
pe

tit
iv

el
y

pr
oc

ur
ed

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
fir

m
s.

iv
.

Ad
op

t p
ol

ic
y 

to
 ro

ta
te

 e
xt

er
na

l
au

di
to

r w
he

n 
st

at
e 

la
w

 re
qu

ire
s.

(i)
Co

un
se

l t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

by
M

ay
 2

01
8 

Bo
ar

d 
m

ee
tin

g.
Re

sp
on

sib
le

: G
M

/S
O

CW
A

Co
un

se
l

(ii
)U

nd
er

w
ay

. R
es

po
ns

ib
le

:
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ro

lle
r

(ii
i)

C o
un

se
l t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
by

M
ay

 2
01

8 
Bo

ar
d 

m
ee

tin
g.

Re
sp

on
sib

le
: G

M
/S

O
CW

A
Co

un
se

l.
(iv

)C
ou

ns
el

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 b

y
M

ay
 2

01
8 

Bo
ar

d 
m

ee
tin

g.
Re

sp
on

sib
le

: G
M

/S
O

CW
A

Co
un

se
l.

(i)
Co

m
pl

et
ed

, r
ep

or
te

d 
to

St
at

e 
Au

di
to

r 5
/1

0/
18

(ii
)P

ro
ce

du
re

s &
 S

ch
ed

ul
e

fo
r Y

ea
r E

nd
 to

 re
vi

ew
 w

ith
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 A
ug

us
t,

10
 2

01
8.

 S
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 S
ta

te
9 /

20
/1

8 
w

ith
 6

-m
on

th
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
up

da
te

(ii
i)a

nd
(iv

) c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 S
ta

te
 A

ud
ito

r
w

ith
 in

iti
al

 6
0-

da
y

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

5/
11

/1
8.

Pa
ge

 2
 

197



34
 

As
su

re
 fu

ll 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ec

or
ds

 
Ac

t 

(i)
U

pd
at

e 
po

lic
y 

on
 P

RA
 a

t l
ea

st
an

nu
al

ly
 to

 tr
ac

k 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s i
n

la
w

s.
(ii

)
De

ve
lo

p 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 S
O

CW
A 

re
sp

on
ds

 to
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r r
ec

or
ds

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e
w

ith
 P

RA
.

(ii
i)

Es
ta

bl
ish

 a
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 re
ta

in
 a

cc
ur

at
e

re
co

rd
s a

nd
 su

pp
or

tin
g

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 fu
ll

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

PR
A

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.

(i)
Ap

ril
 2

01
8 

Bo
ar

d
M

ee
tin

g
(ii

)
M

ay
 2

01
8,

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
/S

t a
ff

Tr
ai

ni
ng

Re
sp

on
sib

le
:

GM
/S

O
CW

A
Co

un
se

l
(ii

i)
Ap

ril
 2

01
8 

Bo
ar

d
M

ee
tin

g

(i)
Ad

op
te

d 
Ap

ril
 2

01
8

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g
(ii

)
Pe

nd
in

g 
(9

/2
01

8)
(ii

i)
Ad

op
te

d 
Ap

ril
 2

01
8

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g
(iv

)
Su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 S
ta

te
Au

di
to

r w
ith

 in
iti

al
 6

0-
da

y 
re

po
rt

 o
n 

5/
10

/1
8

Pa
ge

 3
   

U
pd

at
e 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

8 

198



TO: SOCWA Board of Directors   

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

SUBJECT:    General Manager’s Status Report 

Operations & Maintenance 

JBL Projects Update 

This month we are highlighting some recent projects at JBL. 

Grinding Pump Added to the Scum Pumping System 

O&M staff installed a grinding pump in front of the scum pump. The scum line to the digesters 
was regularly plugged with plastics and other solid debris. This grinding pump breaks up items 
that were plugging the line.  The scum line is adjacent to the new homes next to JBL, and 
unclogging the scum line was a very odorous and messy process. The new system is working 
very well, and the line has not plugged since it was installed. 

     Agenda Item
Legal Counsel Review: No 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

199



General Manager’s Status Report Page 2 of 3 
November 1, 2018 

New Gas Line for Effluent Pumping Station 

The gas line to the JBL effluent pumping station was replaced. The original ductile iron pipe to 
the station was severely corroded. The new line is stainless steel. The new pipe is pictured 
below and will be painted yellow. The old pipe, pictured below, will be disposed of appropriately. 

Hazardous Waste Shed Recoating 

The hazardous waste shed at JBL was recoated (pictured below). The project involved treating 
areas that were starting to corrode due to the ocean salty air.  All the required signage for the 
storage shed will be reinstalled after the coating system dries. 

New Odor Control Chemical Testing 

O&M staff tested a new odor control product at JBL Headworks #1. The product was Odor-No-
More by Cupridyne. The product is an iodine based chemical that is designed to oxidize 
odorants in the air. As a primary odor controller in a well-ventilated building, O&M testing was 
inconclusive. O&M staff will look at other potential applications where the odorants are more 
dilute and/or the area to be treated is not well ventilated. 

200



General Manager’s Status Report Page 3 of 3 
November 1, 2018 

WEFTEC 2018 

SOCWA General Manager, Director of Operations and staff from Engineering and O&M 
attended this year’s WEFTEC in New Orleans. Staff found several new vendors offering new 
odor control products and several vendors offering a replacement to the Hach 1720 turbidity 
meter that is being discontinued (SOCWA uses the 1720’s to monitor the AWT operations). 
There were excellent presentations on O&M processes and practices that were very 
informative. These presentations included topics like food waste co-digestion, integrating 
maintenance management systems, asset management systems and financial management 
systems. Staff has already contacted local representatives of the equipment found at WEFTEC 
for potential trials. 

Lastly, O&M and Engineering staff met with representatives of Andritz Separation regarding our 
ongoing service issues. O&M staff were able to meet privately with Andritz Separation’s 
executive management for Northern America to discuss performance issues.  

SCE Transformer Replaced at CTP 

SCE replaced their incoming transformer at CTP. The project required CTP to run on 
generators during the transition. Staff manned the plant around the clock during the project. 
The project was completed in one day without interruptions or impacts to treatment; however, 
the project did require a shutdown of the recycled water system for the 24-hour period. 

Flare Overhaul at RTP 

The new engine at RTP required O&M staff to overhaul the flares at RTP. The flare piping was 
flushed out, the flame arresters were rebuilt, and the ignition system was rehabilitated. The 
system now starts automatically when the new engine shuts down. These systems were rarely 
used with the three (3) old engines at RTP. The single engine system requires an immediate 
starting of the flares based on the volume of gas being produced at RTP. 

Environmental Compliance 

CASQA & Vector Control 

On October 15, 2018, SOCWA Staff joined the second day of the California Stormwater Quality 
Association (CASQA) Annual Conference in Riverside and attended workshop and training 
events.  Staff met with the Mosquito and Vector Control Association (MVCAC) to follow up on the 
notice from Director Iseman from the October 4, 2018, Board meeting.   

Staff recognizes that personnel are exposed to many locations with standing water and wanted to 
provide education to staff and the Board on this issue.  There are two invasive mosquito species, 
Aedes aegypti and Aedes albopictus, which are capable of transmitting viruses dangerous to 
people (e.g. chikungunya, dengue, and Zika), and bite aggressively during the day.  The 
representative from MVCAC stated that should SOCWA staff spot any areas where mosquitos are 
breeding to contact the Orange County Mosquito and Vector Control District.  The representative 
from MVCAC also indicated that the following long-lasting active ingredients of insect repellents 
are advised to prevent mosquito bites: DEET, IR3535, Picaridin, and Oil of Lemon Eucalyptus.   

201



Agenda Item
Legal Counsel Review: Yes 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2018 

TO:  Board of Directors   

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

SUBJECT:     JPA and Project Committee Claims from Third Parties 

Summary 

At the request of Director Reinhart a Special Board of Directors meeting was held on October 4, 
2018, at 10:30 a.m. to discuss Project Committee claims/litigation in conjunction with the 
SOCWA Joint Powers Agreement (JPA). 

Prior Related Board Action(s) 

The Board of Directors requested that Legal Counsel prepare and provide a formal written  
Legal Opinion** at the November 1, 2018, Board of Directors Meeting regarding liability for third 
party lawsuits specific to member agencies not a party to Project Committee litigation. 

Recommendation 

Information item. 

Fiscal impact 

None. 

attachment(s)  SOCWA Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) 

** Confidential Memo to be provided to Board of Directors under separate cover. 

202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251


	1 MINUTES BoD 10-4-18
	DESCRIPTION                      MOTION MADE BY                    ACTION
	4. Consent Calendar       Miller                       Approved

	1 MINUTES BoD 10-4-18
	DESCRIPTION                      MOTION MADE BY                    ACTION
	4. Consent Calendar       Miller                       Approved

	2 Minutes - SPECIAL BoD Meeting 10-4-18 1030
	3 Finance Committee Minutes 6.27.18
	4 Finance Committee Minutes 8.10.18
	5 Finance Committee Minutes 8.29.18
	5a Attachment FC 8-29-18
	6 Finance Committee Minutes 9.19.18
	7 Staff Report_July 2018 Financials_10.31.18 (002)
	7a Finance Numbers
	8 Staff Report_Aug 2018 Financials_10.31.18
	8a Finance Numbers
	9 Staff Report_Sept 2018 Financials_10.31.18
	9a Finance Numbers
	10 Staff Report_Quarterly (Q1) FY 2018-19 Financial Reports_10.31.18
	10a Quarter Numbers
	10b Cash Roll Forward
	11 Agenda Item - September 2018 Operations Report
	00K-Q1-Q2-Q3 Agenda Item Sept 2018 Operations Report to Nov 2018 Board
	01 Monthly Operational Report Cover Sheet
	02 September 2018 Ops Report Page 1
	03 September 2018 Ops Report Page 2
	04 September 2018 Ops Report Page 3
	05 September 2018 Ops Report Page 4
	06 September 2018 Ops Report Page 5
	07 September 2018 Ops Report Page 6
	07A September 2018 Ops Report Page Critical Maint Work -2 pages
	07B Sept 2018 First Quarter CM Assessment
	08 SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency Cover Page
	09 September 2018 Ops Report Page Tab 2
	10 SOCWA KPI Cover Page
	11 Sept 2018 Electricity KPI
	12 Sept 2018 Odor Control KPI
	13 Sept 2018 Polymer KPI
	14 Sept 2018 Biosolids KPI
	15 Sept 2018 Maintenace KPI
	16 Sept 2018 Small Capital KPI
	17 Safety Update Graphs - thru September  2018

	11a ACOO_0013
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Stations
	Offshore

	12 SJCOO_0012
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Stations
	Offshore

	13 Pretreatment Report Cover
	14 2018-10 PT Monthly Report
	15 Capital Improvement Report November 2018
	16 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 1 Revised
	17 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 2 Revised
	18 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 3 Revised
	19 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 4 Revised
	20 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 5 Revised
	21 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 6
	22 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 7
	23 Capital Improvement Report November 2018 Attachment 8
	24 9-13-18 DRAFT Engineering Committee Minutes
	25 AGENDA ITEM_BPA_Baylor
	26 Basin Plan-SOCWA- State Contract
	27 Agenda Item - BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE 2018
	28 Biosolids Update Rev 10-18
	1 Executive Summary
	1.1 Background
	1.2 Biosolids Management at SOCWA
	1.3 Regulatory Status and Trends
	1.4 Biosolids Disposal and Reuse Options
	1.5 Recommendations, Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions

	2 Introduction
	3 Biosolids Management at SOCWA
	3.1 Biosolids Handling at SOCWA
	3.2 Biosolids Quantity
	3.3 Biosolids Quality
	3.4 Historical Disposal Practices
	3.5 Current Management Practices
	3.6 Treatment Plant Issues

	4 Regulatory Status and Trends
	5 Biosolids Disposal and Reuse Options
	5.1 Off-Site Disposal and Reuse Options
	5.1.1 Composting
	5.1.2 Landfill
	5.1.3 Land Reclamation

	5.2 On-Site Treatment Solids Handling Options

	6 Recommendations, Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions
	6.1 Recommendations
	6.2 Biosolids Management Goals & Implementing Actions


	29 Appendix A
	30 AGENDA ITEM Monthly State Audit Updates 
	31 State Audit Response Schedule November 2018 meeting
	32 General Manager Report 11-1-17
	33 AGENDA ITEM_JPA & Project Committee Claims
	34 SOCWA JPA



